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LINN COUNTY GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
300 Fourith Avenue, SW (Room 201), PO Bax 100, Albany OR 97321-003f

Phone (541) 967-3823 Fax {541) 926-3228 BN OF COMMISSIONERS
Jahn K. Lindsay
Accounting/Payrofi, Fersonnel Services, Data Processing, Roger Nyquist
Genaral Services/Facilitios, Printing/Supplies, Veferans' Services Wi Tucker
RALPH E. WYATT November 9, 2016

Admintsteative Officar

Haonorable Members
Board of Comimnissioners
County of Linn, Oregon
P.Q. Box 100

Albany, Oregon 97321

Members of the Board and the Citizens of Limn County:

In accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes Title 28, Section 297.425, the Annual Financial Report of Linn County, Oregon
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 is hereby submitted. This report consists of management’s representations concerning the
finances of Linn County and specifies that the responsibility for the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rest with Linn County. Tt is believed that the datfa is accurate in all material aspects and
is prepared in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of the operation of Linn County as measured by the
financial activity of its various funds. All disclosures necessary 1o enable the reader to gain a clear and comprehensive understanding

of Linn County's financial affairs have been included.

Tn providing a reasonable basis for making these representations, the adequacy of Linn County’s accounting system and the
internal accounting controls are key factors. Linn County has established and routinely reviews internal accounting controls and the
framework of procedures that are designed and monitored to both protect the County’s assets from loss, thefl, or misuse and to
compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of Linn County’s financial statements in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The controls and procedures are intended and designed to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstaternent. As management, we assert that, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, Linn County’s internal controls and procedures adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable
assurance that financial transactions are properly recorded and monitored on a continuing and ongoing basis.

Linn County's financial statements have been audited by Pauly, Rogers and Co., P.C., a firm of licensed certified public
aceountants, with the audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. The goal of the independent audit is
to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of Linn County, for the fiscal year ending June 3G, 2016, are free of
material misstatement, The independent audit involved examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in




the financial statements and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor ¢concluded, based upon
the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that Linn County’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2016 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the financial scetion of this report.

As with lasl year’s report, this report has been prepared following the guidelines recommended by the Government Finance
Officers Association (GFOA) of the United Stafes and Canada. It is our belief that the accompanying financial repott continues to
meet those program standards and this report will be submitted to the GFOA for review. Specific attention is encouraged toward
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the basic financial statements located in the Financial Section statling on page a.
The purpose of the MD&A is to analyze Linn County’s overall financial position and the results of its operation in FY 2015 - 2016.

PROFILE OF LINN COUNTY

Linn County, established December 28, 1847, is in the center of Oregon’s Willamette Valley with the Willamctte River as its
western boundary and the crest of the Cascade Mountain Range as its eastern boundary. Linn County has a land area of 2,308 square
miles and is home, per the Portiand State Population Research Center, to an estimated July 1, 2015 population of 120,860, The
County is governed under Oregon law as a “general law county” with a governing body of three full-time commissioners glected at
large on a partisan basis and serving four year terms. The Board of Commissioners is responsible for, among other things, adopting
policies, passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appeinting various committees and advisory groups, conduciing hearings and hiring
and supervising key department heads including the Administrative Officer. The Board’s responsibilities alsc include monitoring the
aclivities of the County and coordinating those activities and operations with the other elected officials (Assessor, Clerk, District
Attorney, Justice of the Peace, Sheriff, Surveyor and Treasurer) and depariment heads.

Linn County provides its citizens a wide range of services that include:

PUBLIC SAFETY including the Sheriff’s Office (Detective, Patrol, Corrections, Programs, Civil and Support Services Divisions
plus Dog Control), District Attorney’s Office, Juvenile Department including the Detention Center, Justice Court and the Law Library.
HEALTH SERVICES including Public Health, Environmental Health, Mental Health, Alcohol & Dug, and Developmental
Disabilities.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT including Planning & Building, Surveyor™s Office, Parks & Recreation, Fair & Expo Center,
Oregon State University Extension, Geographic Information Systems, Veterans’ Services and Property Management.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES including the Assessor’s Office & Tax Collector, Treasurer’s Office and Clerks Office.
ROAD DEPARTMENT which maintains 1,105.34 miles of road and 335 bridges including six covered bridges with a structured
program te rebuild, resutface and improve the road sysiem on a continuing basis.
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ADMINISTRATION and SUPPORT including the Board of Commissioners, County Attorncy, Information Technology Services,
General Administration, Printing & Supplies and General Services.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for Linn County’s financial planning and control. Based on guidelines provided by
the Board of Commissioners, all offices and departments of Linn County submit their budget requests to the Budget Officer in
March/April of each year. The Budget Officer develops a proposed budget based on these requests with the proposed budget
presented to the Budget Committes (three Commissioners and three lay members) who review, discuss, balance and approve the
budget during public budget hearings in April/May. The approved budget is then adopted by the Board of Commissioners in June
prior to the July 1* start of the County’s fiscal year. The adopted budget sets appropriation amounts by fund (e.g., {General or Road)
and office or depariment {e.g., Assessor or Planning & Building) for the following categories: personal scrvices, materials & supplics,
capital outlay, other requirements and operating contingency. Elected officials and department heads may make transfers within
categories but transfers betwoen categories or offices/departments require the approval of the Board of Commissioners. Budget-fo-
actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has
been adopled. For the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds, this comparison is presented on pages & through 22. For the
other funds, the comparisons are presented starting on page 64,

FACTORS AFFECTING LINN COUNTY'S FINANCIAL CONDITION

Local Economy. Linn County’s economic indicators, over the twelve month peried of this audit, continue fo reflect improvements in
local ceconomies that started, for Oregon, in the Portland Metto area. That said, the County’s recovery still lags the improvements
shown in Oregon and national economic activilies. The recovery from the historic recession is almost complete as shown by the
County’s unemployment rate change - a revised rate of 6,4% for June 2616, down from the 7.2% revised rate for June 2015. The
County’s uncmployment rafe has continued to remain higher than the State (4.8%) June 2016 rate, The improvement in the
unemployment rate is reflected in the increase in employment levels over the past year with the number of nonfarm employed County
residents up by 1,590 jobs (Tune 2015 to June 2016), a 3.5% increasc. From February 2008, the pre-recession employment peak, to
June 2016, the County is roughly140 jobs down, or almost back fo the peak. Both job sectors arc growing with the private-scctor
producing healthy growth (+4.3%) while public sector showing some growth (1.5%0) during the past year.

Along with the improved jobs data, there are other positive cconomic developments. As mentioned in the past few Audits, the
new medical school in Lebanon, the College of Osteopathic Medicine of the Pacific in partnership with Samaritan Ilealth Services, is
now in operation and graduating students who are moving on and completing their residency requirements. The campus complex
confinues to be built out with new facilities and businesses, with a conference center open and hotel and restaurant in use. Employers
are experiencing difficulty in hiring qualified warker with local schools adapting to meet the needs. For example, Linn-Benton
Community College just opened a new Innovation Center and Heavy Transportation Building at the Advanced Transportation
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Technology Center in Lebanon aimed at producing highly qualified technicians. Activily continues to increase in the Planning and
Building Department indicating that the housing sector of the economy is on the way back up, In the long term, Lino County’s
favorable Mid-Willamette Valley location and economic diversification will continue to provide the factors that have allowed the
County to work its way out of the recent rccession and get jobs back to the 2008 level, That said, making up the “lost™ years will

continue to posc challenges,

Revenues and Expenditures. Linn County’s revennes continue to reflect the variety of impacts and changes to the revenus sources -
Federal, State and Local. The first year of the State’s FY 2015 — 2017 Budget has reflected the improvement in the State’s economy
and provided more stability in tevenues but, of course, the State’s rcvenue dependence on income taxes contibves, The State’s FY
2015 — 2017 Budget was balanced using the more positive 1evenue forceasts along with savings cxpected from changes to the public
safety, health and retircment systems (with the retirement savings mostly eliminated with a 2014 Oregon Supreme Court decision).
The Siate’s stahilizing General Fund revenues have not resulted in increases in State funding for County programs with much of that
funding being changed and redirected by a variety of law changes from recent legislative sessions.

The County’s service capabilities are cxpected to continue to shift in the future with the on-going changes in two major
revenue sources — State and Federal. The end of Federal “safety net” payments was pushed off but has now ended so revenuc will be
based on actual Bureau of Land Management and Forest Service sales going forward. The outlook for payments from another major
revenne source, the State of Oregon, is also mixed with shifts in public safety and health payments to the County, with the most
sipnificant shift the one being made in health funds to Coordinated Carc Organizations (CCOs) which may then gontract with the
County for services, A third major revenue source, the County’s local option Law Enforcement Levy, has a more positive outlook.
The voters approved a new four year tevy starling July 1, 2014, replacing the last year of the prior levy with an increased rate of $2.83
per thousand valuation. The Levy revenue is recovering from lower property values and Measure 5 compression losses are declining

a3 detailed below.

The County’s major source of tevenue remains intergovernmental receipts ($50,392,072; 52.23% of revenue; down 1.75%)
with the decrease primarily due to less funding for Federal rond projects, The fiscal impacts on the County from the severc decline in
timber sales have continued to be offset to a lessening degrec by a long seties of Federal timber “safety net” laws and those declining
payments were extended as mentioned earlier with FY 2015-2016 the last year for the “safcty net” {Federal Forest Service and Buregu
of Land Management Title I, IT and III payments; $4,789,972; 4.97% of revenue; down 17.02%). State-provided funds decreased
($33,264,502; 34.49% of revenue; down 5.09%) and provided the bulk of the temaining intergovernmental reccipts. The decrease in
health services was due to a one time payment to mental health of $2,145,328 in the prior year.

The impacts on Coutity property taxes ($31,576,592; 32.73%; up 5.77%) from Measure 5 and Measures 47450 limits continue
to constrain this revente source with these limits continuing to have a negative impact even as growth (3.77%) in the County’s
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asscssed property values continues to improve. The County’s Law Enforcement Levy (ratc of $2.83 per thousand [note that the
County’s permancnt tax rate is $1,2713 per thousand)} is critical to the County’s revenue structure ($19,528,755; 61.8% of the total
property taxes). The Law Enforcement Levy’s net amount continues to be significantly reduced {“compressed”) by 22.25%
($5,432,606) duc to the Measure 5 limitations but is easing with increasing property values. The County’s second local option levy is
for the Veterans’ Home ($1,284,177; 4.07% of the total property taxes) and was approved to repay the 10 year, $12,000,0000 loan
from the Road Fund used to provide the local match required to fund the project. The last major sector of County revenues, the
Licenses, Permits, Fines & Services category ($11,924,879; 12.36% of revenue; up 10.42%) is continving to increase as the economy
is improving, Overall, the outlook is, at best, for the County’s total revenues to siabilize over the next few years depending on how
State funding combines with the declining Federal Forest payments and the Law Enforcement Levy revenues.

On the expense side, the cost of County operations over the long term is expected to grow due mainly to increasing costs per
employce. These costs have been driven by cost-of-living (COLA) salary increases and health benefit premium inereases as
established by collective bargaining agreements. For FY 2015 —20186, the total personnel cost increased by 7.25% due to retircment
costs, cost of living adjustments (COLAs) and an increase in the number of employecs (health insurance premimns had minimal
increases, about a 4% overall). The cost of the County’s retirement programs, the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS) and the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), increased effective July 1, 2015 by approximately 1.34% overall,
With the new increased rates and more employees, total PERS payments (including the employees’ “pick-up” paid by the County)
increased $891,114 (12.5%) over the year, Relirement costs are expected to change significantly with large rate increases {3+%
increases applied to salaries for 2017, 2019, 2021 and further?). Future health insurance costs are still a big unknown given the
Federal legislation (Affordable Care Act) continued implementation and the January 1, 2018 “Cadiliac Tax™. Another added expense
may cone from Oregon’s new mandatory sick leave law, effective January 1, 2016, that increases costs for temporary and seasonal

employee.

In sum, given Orcgon’s tax structure and current statutory and constitutional restrictions, Linn County's General Fund budget
will continue to be diflicult to balance with the same holding true for the Connty’s total budget. This difficulfy had been moderated to
a degree by Federal Forest payments but that revenue stream’s future is uncertain. However, the continued recovery from the “great”
recession and the local option Law Enforcement Levy provide an improving outlook. Oregon’s tax structure and initiative/referendum
processes always inject an added element of uncertainty into the State’s current biennium budget sure to produce revenue change for

the County.

Initiatives, Projects and Significant Activities, Linn County continues its commitment to planning and implementing carefully
measured programs and actions focused on effective scrvice delivery, preserving and improving the infrastructure and minimizing
costs through modernization and intergovernmental cooperation. The past year has continued to be active in several areas driven by

both jnternal and external faclors,



A key major property purchase started during andit year, closing in July 2016, which will be important to future County
operations. The properties — the Albany Police Station and the Nation Guard Armory land — were purchased from the City of Albany
for §1,750,000. The Police Siation abuts the County Jail and the Armory land abuts the Fair Expo complex with both allowing for the
future expansion of County activities. Albany is building a new Station and the plan is to lease the existing Station to the State’s local
Parole and Probaticn office after the Albany Police move and the old Station is remodeled. The property adjacent the Jail is also part
of a proposed Justice Center project that is on a State priority list and may be approved for partial State finding in the FY 20192021

Budget,

The County also continuss to participate in a major State health care initiative (“Health Care Transformation™) involving the
creation of Coordinated Care Organizations (CCOs). The CCOs arc providing physical, mental and dental health care for people who
receive coverage under the Oregon Health Plan (Medicaid). The Health Department is providing services via contracts with the local
CCO, InterCommunity Health Network (IHN) CCO. The IHN-CCO provides services in Linceln, Benton and Linn Counties and
those services continue to expand as a part of Oregon’s Health Transformation. As mentioned earlier, that expansion of services hasa
growing impact on the Heulth Department’s State revenuc streans, much of which now flows to the CCO and then (o the Department,
Revenues have increased as services are now provided to a larger population and thus the Department has been adding employees.

The Parks Department is using its new lease agreement with the US Army Corps of Engineers and the Bureau of Land
Management in the Green Peter/Quartzville areas to consiruct the first phase of the expansion of the Whitcomb Creek Campground
fiom 39 sites to 92 sites with full completion expected by June 2017. The County has also completed further improvements to the
Edgewater RV resort and marina (restroom remodel, ADA sidewalk added, debris boom rebuilt), completed restroom roof and
clecirical utility line replacements at Lewis Creck Park and a roof replacement at the Historical Museum. The programmex! road and
bridge improvements by the Road Depariment upgraded 58.93 miles of road miles of the County’s road system and completed

replacement/major repairs to fourteen bridges.

Regarding labor contracts, the County had three labor agreements ending June 30, 2016 and thus upr for negotiations. Two
contracts have been settled (Service Employees International Union and Juvenile Detention Association) with the Deputy Sheriffs
Association contract still in process. Both of the settled confracts are for three years with a 2% COILA each year.

The County is also involved in two major lawsuits with the State of Oregon, one a contractual issuc involving the County’s
Forcst Trust Lands managed by the State and the other involving a January 1, 2016 new State law mandating paid sick leave and the
State’s Constitutional restriction on unfunded mandates. Both lawsuits could have significant fiscal impacts, depending on the legal

outcome,
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Cash Management Policies and Practices, Cash temporarily available during the year was invested in certificates of deposit;
obligations of the U.S, Treasury or agencies (notes, cubes, bills and strips); or the State Treasurer’s Oregon Local Government
Tnvestment Pool. Deposits were either insured by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation or fully collateralized. The average
distribution of investment maturities for the year was as follows: 30 days or less — 71.98%; 30 to 20 days —4.96%; 90 daysto 12
months — 13.18%. 12 to 24 months — 5.93% and 24 to 36 months — 3.95%, The average yield on investments for the year was 0.756%
compared to an average of 0.70% for the State’s Local Government Invesiment Pool. The County recorded interest revenucs of
$310,805 on all County investments in the year ending June 30, 2016. This represents a increase of $181,650, up 71.10% from the
prior year due to lower rates for reinvestments on investments maturing.

Risk Management. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, insurance coverages were not changed from the prior year with ligbility
and property continuing with City County Insurance Services and workers’ compensation continuing with SAIF Corporation. Excess
crime coverage, including faithful performance of duty, continues in the property policy replacing the blankel and two individual
bonds and providing broader coverage. The County continues to cover actual and potential uncmployment compensation costs with a
self-financed internal service fund (Unemployment Insurance Fund, pages 23, 24, 25 and 78). Additional information is included in
the Financial Section of this teport {page 6{7) with a schednle of all the County’s insurance coverages included in the Statistical

Section of this report (pages 103 and 104).

Pension and Other Post Employment Benefits. Linn County participates in Oregon PERS, which inclndes PERS Tier I and 2, and
Oregon OPSRP, which combined, is a statewide multiple-employer pension plan that provides retirement, dizahility and death benefits
{0 plan members and beneficiaries. The Ticr 1 and 2 portion of PERS is a hybrid defined benefit/defined contribution retirement plan
which is now “closed” to new cmployees who instead enter OPSRP, a defined benefit retirement plan. PERS is administered under
Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 238 and 238A by the PERS Board of Trustees. In addition, effective January 1, 2004, both PERS
Tier 1 and 2 and OPSRP member employees are required to contribute six percent {6%) of their salary to an Individual Account
Program {IAP), a defined contribution plan, unless the employer has agreed, as Linn County has, to “pick up”™ the contribution on
behalf of the employee. The AP is also administercd by the PERS Board of Trustees. The cost of the PERS system has been an issue
with the legislature and changes were made, mainly related to retires COLAs, in both the regular 2013 Legislative Session (8B 822)
and the September/October Special Session (SBs 861A & 862A) 1o avoid a significant rate increase in FY ’13 — 15, The legislative
changes werc challenged by retiree groups directly to the Oregon Supreme Court and many of the changes were disapproved and most
of the savings to the system eliminated. Legislative changes to the system were also made to allow PERS to provide the necessaty
information to comply with GASB Statement 68 audit requirements regarding pension-related obligations.

Every other vear, an independent actuary engaged by PERS, calculates the County’s employer rate required to ensure that the County

will be able 1o fully meet ils obligation to retircd employees on a timely basis, The PERS Tier 1 & 2 and OPSRP employer rates
changed cffective July 1, 2015 as follows: 18.96% (Tier 1 & 2), 11.6% (OPSRP General Service} and 15.71% {OPSRP Police). The
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rates will change again effective July 1, 2017 as follows: 23.15% (Tier 1 & 2), 14.1% (OPSRP General Service) and 18.87% (OPSRD
Police} which, overall, will result in an increase of an estimated $1.32 M in annual cost, The 2017 rates were affected by the Supreme
Court decigion, the PERS Board's decision to reduce the system’s assumed earnings rate to 7.5 percent and an actual earnings rate in
2015 of 2.1 percent. The PERS rate increases would have been larger but rate changes are restricied by a process that “collars™
increases. Like 2017, large increases in the County's PERS rates are expected in 2018, 2021 and perhaps further in the future.
Additional information on Linn County*s PERS participation is included in the Financial Section of this report (pages 49 - 56).

Linn County has no other County directly funded retirement benefits since the option to continue health insurance benefits, as

required by State statute, is fully paid by the retiree (at thc same premium raie as active employees). However, the required inclusion
of retirees in the County’s insurance plans does negatively impact the claims experience for the plans and thus the premiums charged.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENIS

For the twenty-fifth consecutive year, the GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
to Linn County for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR} for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of State and Local
government financial reports and satisfaction of both GAAF and legal requirements. In addition to being awarded the Certificate,
Linn County’s CAFR was judged to be easily readable and efficiently organized. The Cerfificate is valid for a period of one year only
and, as mentioned earlicr, this CAFR will be submitted to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report was made possible by the dedicated services of the Treasurer (who is also the Budget Officer)
and the staffs in Accounting, Information Technology Services, Health Department, Road Department, Asseszor’s Office and certain
speeific others including the aforementioned independent auditors. Each person contributing to the report has our sincere appreciation
for the assistance given in its preparation. Credit must also be given fo the Board of Commissioners for their consistent support in
maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of Linn County’s finances. Overall, the efforts to manage the
County’s resources and activities wisely and efficiently to best meet the needs of Linn County’s citizens have continued, building on
past accomplishments while committed to producing future improvements.

Respectfully Submitted,

Ralph E> Wyatt David E. Alderman If
Accounting Officer

Administrative Officer
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Name

Roger Nyquist

John Lindsey

William Tucker

David Swartzlender
Steve Druckenmmiller
Douglas Marteeny
Honorable Jad Lemhouse
Bruce Riley

Charles Gibba

Michelle Hawiins

LINN COUNTY

Elected Officials

Position

Commissiencr, Board Chairman
Commissioner

Commissioner

Assessor and Tax Collector

Clerk

Dristrict Attorney

Justice of the Peace — Central Linn
Sherift

Surveyor

Treasurer

Administrative Officer
Ralph E. Wyatt

Registered Address

Linn County Courthouse
P.O. Bex 1400
Albany, Oregon 97321

X

Term
Expires
January 2017
January 2019
January 2017
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January 2019
January 2017
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Janvary 2017
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PalLy, ROGERS, AND Cin, PG,

12700 5W 72™ Ave. Tigard, OR 57223
{303) 620-2632 (503} 684-7523 FAX
wwrw, panlyrogersandcocpas.com

e N ST LRI

November 9, 2056

To the Beard of County Commissioners
Linn County, Cregon
Albany, Oregon

EFENDENT AUDITORS REFOR

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the acconpanying financial statements of the gnw.mniental activities, cach major fund, and the Aggregate remaining fund infosmation of Linn County, Oregon, as of and for
the year ended Junc 38, 2016, and the related notes lo the Enancial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management {5 responsible for the preparation and fair prescntation of these financial statcrments in accordance with accounting principles gonerally accepted in the United States of
America; this tneludes the design, implementation, and maintenance of jntermal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free o material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror.

Auditors’ Respansibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financlal statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gavernment Aditing Standards, 1ssucd by the Compiroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statcments are free from material misslatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedurcs selected depend on the audifors” judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due io Traud or emor, Tn making these risk asscssiments, the anditar considers infernal
control retevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design andit pracedures that are appropriate in the eircumstances, but not for the purpase of
expressing an opinion on the effectivencss ol the internial contre!, Aecordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit atso includes evaluating the appropriatences of accounting policies uscd
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 5 well as evaluating the overall preseniation of the financial statements.

Wa believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for cur andit opinions,




Orpinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, sach major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of 1.ina County, Orcgon as of June 30, 2016 and the respective changes in financial position and budgctary comparigons for the General Fund, General
Road, Law Enforcement 4-Year Levy, Health, and Veterans Home Loan Funds, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance wilh acconting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Aimerica.

Hlwer Matters

Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounling principles gencrally accepted in the United States of Amnerica requize that the management's discussion and analysis and the required supplemental informeation, as listed in the
table of contents, be presented to supplement the hasic financial statements. Such informatien, although not 2 part of the basic financial statements, fs required by the Govemmental
Accounting Standards Boand, who considers it to be an ssential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operationat, economic, or histarieal
cantext. We have applicd certain limited procedures to tha required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generzily accepted in the United States of Americs,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the metliods of preparing the informatton and comparing the information for consistency with managements responses W0 cur inquiries,
tho basic financial statements, and ather knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion o provide any assurance on the inform gtion

because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufiicient wyidence to express an apinion or provide any assurance.

Ovher Inforsmation

Our sudit was conducted for the purpose-of forming opinians on the financial statcinents that collectively comprise the besic financial statements. The supplenientary and gther information,
as listed i the tabls of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and fsnol & required patt of the basic financia statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards
iz presented for purposes of addilional analysis as required by Title 2 UL5. Code of Federal Regalations (CRF) Part 200, Unifarm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information, as listed i the table of contents and the schedule of expenditures of federal expenditures are fhe respansibility of management end were: derived from and
relate ditctly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedurcs, including comparing and revonciling such information directly to the underlying Bocounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial slatsments ihemselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United Statcs of America, In our opinion, the supplementary information, 28 listed in the table of contents and the schedule of federal expendilures, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in

relation tothe basic financial statemenis as A whole.

The introductory, statistical, and other reports sections and the other information, as listed in the tablo of contents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applicd in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, aceordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assutanceon them,

Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Stancares, we have also issued our reports dated November 9, 2016 on our consideration of the intemal control over financial reporiing end on our
tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agrezments and oflier malters, The purpose ol these reporis is o describe the scope of cur testing af
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intemal cantrol over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinfon on intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance, Those
reports are an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Anditing Standereds in considering internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report dated November 9, 2016, on our consideration of compliance

with cerfain provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report s (o
describo Ihe scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an apinion on compliance.

M’Wé’f 7/

Tara M. Kamp, CPA
PATLY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C,




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Linn County, we offer readers of Linn County’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of Linn County for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in comjunction
with additional jnformation that we have furnished in our letter of fransmitlal, which can be found on pages i-viii of this report.

Financial Highlights

« The assets of Linn County cxceeded its labilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $192,912,780 (net position). Of this amount,
($23,029,104) (unrestricted net position) which is a negative number due to GASB 68 pension reporting requirements, is not available to mect
the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

s The government’s total net position decreased by $21,035,546 year over yeat, primarily duc to an increase in the pension liability.

o  As of the close of the fiscal year, Linn County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $27.903,313 a decrease of
$2,162,579 in comparisen with the prior year, with 95.24% of this total amount, $22,576,250 available for spending to meet government’s
commitments and obligations (restricted, commiited assigned, and unassigned fund balances).

At the end of the fiscal year, the fund balance for the general fund was ($7,197,339). The negative fund balance is primarily due to interfund debt as

follows:

Amount Purpoze
2006-07 $ 1,450,000 175 acres of land
2008-09 860,001 Financial softwarc
2009-10 890,000 District Attorney Case Management software, Courthouse elevator improvements, new
Asgessment and Taxation Soflware.
2012-13 400,000 Land adjacent to the Linn County jail.
2013-14 1,500,000 Building for Linn County Health Services.
900,000 Purchase of a marina on Foster Lake.
2014-15 950,000 Building and land for the Linn County 4-H and Extension Service office.
2015-16 1,750,000 Purchase of the Albany police station, and land adjacent fo the fair and expo center.

2,000,000 Shexiff communication system software
200,000 Upgrade Elcction software

The cmrent general fund interfund loan balance is $8,588,593, which paid being paid over a ten year. The combined balance of all the interfund loans
is $15,609,738. Linn County has no general obligation bond debt as of June 30, 2016.

Overvicw of the Financial Statements
This discnssion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Linn County’s basic financial statements which are compriscd of three

components: 1) government-wide financjal statements, 2) find financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains supplementary and other information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

a



Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial stafemenis are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Lim
County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of Linn County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as nel
position, Ovet time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Linn County is

improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change ocours, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses arc reported in this statement for some jtems that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods {c.g., uncollected taxes and

earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Linn County that are principatly supported by taxes and intergovernmenial
revenues (governmental activities) [rom other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges {business-type activities). Linn County has no funds considered as business type activities. The governmental activities of Linn County
include general administration and suppert, local government services, public safety, health services, community development, and highways and

streets.
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1 and 2 of this rcport.

Fund financial siatements: A find is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. Linn County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensute and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of Linn County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds

and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental find financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as, on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal ycar. Such
information may be useful in evalnating a government’s near-term financing requirenients,

Becausc the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statemenis. By
doing so, readers may better understand the Jong-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities,



Linn County maintains 15 individual governmental funds. Information is presented scparately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General, General Roads, Law Enforcement 4-Year
Levy, Health Fund and Veteran’s Home Loan Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data {rom the other 10 governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentaiion under non-major funds. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statemenis elsewhere in this report.

Linn County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for all funds fo
demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basit governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 3 through 26 of this repori.

Proprietary funds: Linn County maintains one type of proprietary fund, an infernal service fund, an accounting device used fo accumulate and
allocate costs internally among Linn County’s various functions. Linn County uses internal service funds to account for its unemployment related
transactions. Pecause these services predominantly bencfit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have becn ineluded with
governmenial activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statcments, only in more detail, The proprictary fund
financia! statements provide separate information for the Unemployment Fund of Linn County.

The basic proprictary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 through 25 of this report.

Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held in trust for the benefit of parties outside the government, Fiduciary funds are
not presented in the government-wide financial statements hecause the resources of those are not available to support Linn County’s own programs,

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 26 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is esseatial to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 27 through 59 of this report.

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary
information concerning Linn County’s selection to use the “madified approach” to account for the majority of the infrastructure assets. As a resull
there is a 5-year planned versus actual road maintenance cost schedule on page 60 of this report. In addition, on page 61-63 is reported the Other
Post Employment Benefit Schedule of Funding Progress.

The combining stalements refcrred to carlier in connection with non-major governmental funds and intemal service funds are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can he found on pages 64 through 77 of

this rcport.




Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of Linn County, assels
exceeded liabilitics by $192,912,780 the close of the fiscal year.

By far, the largest portion of Linn County’s net pesition (103 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.. land, buildings, machinery, and
equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assels that is still outstanding. Linn County uses these capital assets fo provide services to
citizens; consequently, these asscts are nof available for future spending, Although Linn County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of

related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debl must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves

cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The County currently has no long-term debt.
Linn County’s Net Position

Governmental Activities
2HNa 2015
Asseis
Current and other asseis b} 724750 § 534622524
{apital assets 199,586,021 192,271,083
Deferred Outflows {persion) 5,958,879 .
Tota! assets and deferred oulflows of resources 245,370,550 245,893,607
Liahilitles
Lorg-term lishilities custanding 3431,637 3,230,009
Mot Pension Lisbility 31,118,510 -
Other Habilities 10220438 0573,244
Defetred inflow of resounces 7586185 18.842.027
Total Jiabilities and defemed inflows 52357770 11.945,280
Net Position
Met investment in capital assets 195 586,521 192271,083
Reatricted for:
Highways and Stects 13,839,794 20,840,007
Health Services 1,188,106 9318500
Other Restricted 1,327,063 1 600,005
Unrestricted (23,029,104) {10,081,275}
Total net position _§ 192912780 § 213948376




The balance of restricted and unrestricted net position may be used to mect the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The government’s net position decreased by $21,035,546 during the current fiscal.

Governmental activities. Governmental aciivities decreased Linn County’s net position by $21,035,546. Key elcments of this decrease are as
follows:

Linn County’s Changes in Net Position

(Governmental Activities

2016 2015
Revepunes

Program
Charges for scrvices 11,924,879 10,799,699
Operating grants and contributions 37,356,551 39,490,274

(General
Property taxes 31,765,350 30,076,947
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 13,266,810 12,568,940
Other 313,704 79,960
Total revenues 94,627,294 93,015,820




Linn County’s Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities (continued)

2016 215
Expenses
General government i 8.236,233 § 5,480,755
Public zafety 46,277,810 22,864,199
Highways/streets 13,380,008 9,589,994
Local government services 4,410,573 2,676,302
Health services 32,142,187 20,535,611
Community development 9,677,310 6,170,919
Apportionment o school districts 1,538,719 1,733,163
Total expenscs 115,662,340 69,050,943
Increase (decrease) in net position (21,035,546) 23,964,877
Net position - beginning of the ycar 213,948,326 212,737,294
Restatement of beginning net postion - (22,753,8435)
Net position - end of the year $ 192912780 § 213,948,326

Total revennes increased by $1,611,474 between the prior fiscal year and the current fiscal year, primarily due to increases in mental
health capitation rates increasing, and property lax revenue going up as a result of the asscssed property vaiues rising.

Overall, Couniy-wide expenses increased by $46,611,897 from the previous year. This increase is somewhat misleading becanse of
the implementation of 2 new government accounting standard (GASB 68) during 2014-135 fiseal year, which resulted in a reduction of
pension expense of $16,195,726. During the current fiscal year,- the pension expense was $26,188,697 due to the Moro law-suit
decision. (See the notes to the financial statements on pages 49-56 for more detail). This increased pension expense is allocated to
each functional catcgory by a percentage of pension contributions made for the year. The change in pension expense between this year
and last year is $42,384,423 and is the primary reason for the large increase in expenses.




Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted earlier, Linn County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds: The focus of Linn County’s governmental funds 1s to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resourccs. Such information is useful in assessing Linn County’s financing requirements. In particular, the restricted, committed, and
assigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current year, Linn County’s governmental {unds reported combined ending fund balances of $27,903,313; a decrcase of
$2,162,579 in comparison with the ptior year. Of this total amount, $41,206,974 constifutes the restricted, committed, and assigned, fund balances
which are not available for new spending because it has already been commilted to liquidate confracts and purchase orders of the prior period, to pay

debt service or for a variety of other restricted purposes.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Linn County. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance was ($7,197,339); a
decrease of $912,871 compared with the previous year.

Key factors in this change are as follows:

e Overall revenue in the General Fund increased by $1,939,443 from $28,301,496 in 2014-15 to $30,240,939 in the current year with the mix of
revenue categories similar to last year, Most significantly, intergovernmental revenue increased by $791,125.
« Expenditures in the General Fund increased overall by $3,199,480 primarily due to increased personnel scrvice cosls in the public safety of

$3.197,496 as the re-opening of a jail wing became fully functicnal,
« As mentioned earlier, the General Fund negative fund balance is a result of a 38,588,593 interfund loan payable, (Roads Fund, $7,399,215 for
various projects, and the loan payable of $1,189,378 to Health Services as mentioned earliet), All interfund loans are being repaid over a ten-

year period.

Linn County considers four additional funds to be classified as major funds, the General Road Fund, Law Enforcement 4-Year Levy Tund, Health
Funds and the Veteran’s Home Fund. Each of the major funds is presented in separate columns on the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenugs,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance.




General Road — Operations of the County Road Department are shown in this fund. Major sources of revenue include federal forest revenues and
motor vehicle fees. Expenditures are primarily for road construction and maintenance. The cnding fund balance was $32,179,026 at year end. This
balance decrcased by $2,138,210 during the year due to increased in capital road and bridge expenditures,

Law Enforcement 4-Year Levy — The current four-year local option property tax measure was approved by voters in November 2013 (Starting in July
1, 2014, with a new rate of $2.83 per thousand of assessed value). Expenditures are primarily for continuing law enforcement (sheriff, district
attorney, and juvenile). The ending fund balance deficit of (3412,240) was smaller than the prior year balance of ($990,294) by §578,054 from
current operations. The LE Fund property tax revenue increased by $1,317,543, from $18,211,212 in 2014-15, to $ 19,528,755 in 2015-16. The
effect on property tax revenue was significantly reduced ($5,432,606) due to compression of the overall property tax ceiling imposed by Mcasure 3,
Expenditures increased by $535,776 from $18,434,274 in 2014- 15 to $18,970,050 in 2015-16 as a result of increased personal service costs.

Health — County health related activitics are recorded in the Health Fund. Resources of this fund are from various State of Oregon grants, Title XIX,
managed care and transfers from the General Fund, County provided health care services rise and fall as a function of faderal and stale government
fund levels. The ending fund balance of $8,779,423 represents a decreass of $578,483 from the prior year. In the current fiscal year, overall revenues
decreased by $400,031 ($24,593,948 in 2014-15 and $24,193.917 in 2015-16). In addition, expenditures increased by $1,987,704 ($23,754,028 in
2014-15 to $25,741,732 in 2015-16) due to increased services provide as mentioned above, as well as, increased staffing for mental health care and

treatment.

Veteran’s Home Loan - (formerly Properlies) The cost of transferring funds to the State of Oregon for the construction of a Veteran’s Home in
Lebanon, and the related propexty lax revenues are recorded in this fund. The only expenditure of this fund is the interfund loan payment to the Roads

Fund. {See letter of transmittal).

Proprictary fund: Linn County’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found jn the government-wide financial statements, but in
more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Unemployment Fund at the end of the year amonnted to $444,667, This is an increase in net position over last year by
$265.175 primarily due to a positive change in revenues over expenses resulting in an operating income for the period of $262,276. There was &
reduction of unemployment claims of $85,474 from the prior year, (589,080 in 2014-15; $3,606 in 2015-16).



Gencral Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the adopted budget and the final amended budget as a result of resolutions and a supplemental budget were $2,657,857 (increase
in appropriations) mostly dug to an agreement with the City of Albany to share in the improvements and upgrade of the sheriff communications
imitative, $742,157 and the purchase of the Albany Police Station $1,750,000 once their new building and facility is complete. Actual receipts in the
General Fund were $764.359 less than anticipated and actual expenditures were $5,746,559 less than appropriations, demonstrating a generally
prudent spending policy. Overall Personal setvices expenditures were $1,539,996 under budget, and capital improvements were $2,854,778 undet
budget due to the Albany Police Station transaction not ¢losing until July 2016, The sheriff communication upgrade is sill in process.

Cuapital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets: Linn County’s investment in capital assets for its govemnmental type activities as of June 30, 2016 amounts to $199,586,921 {net of
accumulated depreciation) and include machinery and equipment, park facilitics, roads, highways and bridges. Beginning in fiscal 2002-03 the
connties infrastructure assets were added to its capital asscts, which increased the total capital assefs by $83,990,910 (net of accumulated
depreciation). Each year sincc then, capital assets have increased and most recently in 2008-09 by $3,181,006; in 2009-2010 by $2,788,267; in 2010-
2011 by $1,905,445; in 2011-12 by $ 1,013,397; in 2012-2013 by $2,758,899; in 2013-14 by $7.847,544; in 2014-15 by $4,939,558 and in the
current fiscal vear $7,315,838 was added to capital asscts, net of retirements and current year depreciation. Beginning in 2002-03, Linn County
adopted the modified approach for its valuation and accounting presentation of infrastructure assets.

Other major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following:

« Additional capital cxpenditures of $4,639.249 were made for road and bridge improvements during the year,
« Asmentioned earlicr, the Sheriff Communication project is still in process with current year spending at $1,586,885 of a budget of $2,000,000.



Linn County’s Capital Assets
(Net of depreciation)

Governmental Activitics

2016 2015
Land $ 17476,519 $ 17,440,608
Buiklings and improvements, net 37,178,692 38,008,190
Equipment, net 8,789,507 7,966,425
Infiasiricture, net 127569,385 124,564,898
Tnznghbles 1,060,581 851,441
Consfruction in progress 7,111,737 3,439,521
Totals $ 199586921 8 192,271,083

The 2016 Pavement Condition Index (PCI) data indicates a slight drop in overall pavement conditions from the 2014 inspection. The arterial roads
weighted average PCI in 2014 was 89.1 and 83.6 in 2016, a slight drop. Collector roads improved by 1.20 (2014 =75.9, 2016=77.1} Residential/local
roads decreased by 1.0 (2014=80.8, 2016=79.8). The Road Department anticipates the data may be revised once a quality control check is conducted

on the 2018 indicators. The next scheduled pavement inspection cycle is 2018.

The current assesscd condition compares very favorable when compared (o the Linn County policy of maintaining its road condition level of good to
better (PCI of 65 or above) on a weighted average basis,

Additional information on capital assets can be found in the letter of transmittal under “initiatives and projects” on page v, and in the footnotes on
pages 43 and 44 of this report.

Long-term debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, Linn County has no-long term debt.




State statutes limit the amount of general abligation debt a govermnental entity may issue to 2 percent of its total assessed valuation which would
make the current debt limitation for Linn County is $187,800,480.

Feonomic Factors

« The unemployment rate for Linn County js currently 6.2 percent which is a decrease from a rate of 7.0 percent a year ago. This compares
unfavorably to the State’s average uncmployment rate of 4.8 percent and the National average rate of 4.9 percent. (See the letter of transmittal

for additional detail}.

« Linn County’s economy continues to improve at a slow pace in housing development both in new construction, refinancing and home
improvements, This trend continues, into the first quarter of 2015-2016. The real market value of property coniinucs to improve slightly which
has a positive effect on property tax revenue. Oregon law requires taxes to be assessed on the property’s assessed value not to exceed an increase
of more than 3% a year. In most cases the property assessed value is still lower than the real matket value although the margin is getting much
closer. Duting the cwrent year, the combined Linn County property tax rate ceiling was reached and caused a reduction of $5,432,606 in property
tax revenue collected for the Law Enforcentent Levy Fund.

. With 52.23% of revenue dependent on resources from State and Federal governments, the State’s fiscal condition is a critical issue for county
government, As the State has increased and/or cut back the resources it provides to the county programs, the County has made adjustments in
staff and services.

« Sec the letler of transmittal for additional economic factors.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Linn County’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Dave
Alderman, Accounting Officer, Linn County, 300 4™ Ave, SW, PO Box 100, Albany, OR 97321,
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LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITI{N
June 30,2016

ASSETS

Cash and investtnents

Reccivables, net of ollowanee fir doubtful eecounty

Due from cther governments

Inventorics

Investment in joint venturs

Capital a55ets:
Land, infrastructuce, and conslruction in progress, not being deprecigied
Cither capital asscts, net of sccumulated depreciation

TOLIAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RES(OMIRCES
Neferred Outflows (pension)

LIABILITIES
Accountd payalla
Due to wlher govermments
Payroll, payroll taxes, and benefits payable
Claimy Habilicy
Long-term obligations:
Druc wilh in ane yoar
Accumulated componsalsd abiences
Dire in more than one yoar:
Accumulated compenseted sbscnces
Fost employment heulth care benefits
I'roportionate Share of Met Pension Liability
TOTAL LTABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURLCES
Deferrod Inflows {pension)

NET FOSITION
Met invested in capital asscts
Restricted for:
Highweys and Streets
Health Services
Qther Punposos
Unrestricted

TOTAL WRT POSITION
Sez sotes fo bosle financial siatemenis ’

Govocrmmentul
Actlvities

§ 12,062,067

4, 188,457

2,15.536

1,327,063

131,550

127,679,752
71,907,168

233,311,670

5,958 679

1,560,047
26,349
6,162,135
B 604

2,361,302
1,499,576

1,932,061
31,119,510

44,771,584

1,586,185

195,586,921

13,839,794
1,188,106
1,327,063

{23,020, 104)

§ 192,912 780




LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Propram Bevefjues Hel (Expensos)
Pces, Fines, end Operating Grants  Revenued and Changes
Funeliong/Programs Expenses Charges for Services _and Contributions in Nel Assels
Gavernmental activitles
Gencral adminiziration and suppord b 8,216,233 § 656,837 § Ia0gos % (7,218,500
Local povomiment services 4,410,573 %60, 706 565514 (2,984,048}
Pubiic salety 46,277,810 3,256,834 2282834 (40,738,1400
Health scrvices 32,142,187 1,071,980 21,059,128 10,011,079
Community development 9677310 3,124,803 34,369 {6,518,133)
Highways and strects 13,380,008 2,942,188 11,526,315 1,085,495
Apporntiooments to school districts 1,535,719 11,529 1,527,150 -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES b 115,662,340 % 11924879 § 17,356,551 {66,181,410)
General Revenugs
Property taxcs levied for:
General purposes 31,765,350
Grants and canlributions not restricted to specific programs 13,266,310
Interest and investment eamings 313,704
TOTAL GENERAL REVENLUES 45,343,864
CHAMGE N MET POSITION (21,035,540}
NET POSITION - BEGINNING 213,948,326
WET POSITION - ENDING 5 192!9]2!?313

See notes to basle financial staferments



LINM COUNTY

BALANCE S1IEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2016
Law Other
General Enforcement Veterans Home  Govemmental
Ciencral Hoad 4-Yepr Lovy Health Loan Funds Totals

ASSETS

Cash and invesiments lows O8 checks § 4,051,784 § 17048543 % 823,589 B 7883575 % - 5 1,739,015 % 31,546,500

Receoivables, not of allowanee for

doubtful aceounts 1,154,123 11,283 1,896,156 905,693 117,048 d4, 144 4,185,497

Due from other funds 31158 - 2,750 2,522 - 800 LY ALY

Dius [rom other govermrments 8.7 774,240 - 1,107,641 - 54,861 2,015,536

Advances to other funds - 14,420,360 - 1,189,378 - - 15,609,738

Loventorics - 1,327,063 - - - - 1,327,063

[nvesiment in joint venture - 131,590 - - - - 131,550
TOTAL ASSETS % 5335821 % 33,773,079 % 2,722,405 $11,089,209 % 11704 % 1832820 § 54876512
LIABILJTIES

Accounls peyable 5 233,697 8 534,158 § 1m757 3 164,187 5 - 126248 § 1,360,047

Due to other funds 23,042 27,300 5019 20,213 - 4,584 80,158

Due to other goverpments 5384 - 17,873 - - 234 23,498

Advances from otber funds 8,588,593 - - - 7.4%21,145 - 15,609,738

Uneamned reyenue 1,052,303 33,176 - 457,806 - 44,144 1,587,431

Fayroll, payroll taxes, and benefits payable 2,630,139 518,077 1,211,689 1667580 - 94,651 6,152,136
TOTAL LIABILITTES $ 12533160 % 1,572,711 & 1336338 % 2,309,786 3 T.021,145 bl 269,866 § 25043006

Sce siofer to basic financial sfioterenis
Confinyed on page 4




BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS {Contlnued) Lo Other
Ceneral Fnforcemerit Vetergns Home — CGrovemmental
Genergl Road 4-Year Levy Health Loan PFunds Totals
Unaveilable revenus - assessments 3 - 5 21,342 % - % - % - 5 - % 21342
{Inavailable revcnue - proporty faxes _ - - 1,708,397 - 110,464 - 1,308,861
TOTAL DEFERELLD TNFLOWS OF RESOURCES - 21,342 1,798,397 - 110,464 - 1,930,203
FUND BALANCES
Non spendable:
Inventories - 1,327,063 - - - - 1,327,063
Beatticted for:
Roads - 16,431,503 - - - - 16,431,603
Health Setvices - - - 7,590,045 - - 7,500,045
Grants’ minor funds - - - - 4,634 1,568,954 1,575,588
Corpmitted to:
Intetfund loan commitmenis - 14,420,260 - 1,189,372 - - 15,609,728
Unessigned {7,197,339) - 412,240y - {7,021,145) - £14,634,724)
TOTAL FUND BALANCLES {7,197,33%) 32,179,026 (4122400 8779423 (7014511 1,568,954 27,901,313
TOTAL LTABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RISQUCES, AMD FUND BALANCE % 5335521 § 13,773,079 % 2,722,495 §11,089,209 5 117098 % 1,535.820 % 54,876,522

See wates to basle fiwvanciol siafenents



LINN COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET OF GOYERNMENTAL FUINDS
TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2016
TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FIINDS ] 27,903,313

Anonnts reported for govermuental activities in the statement of
met aggels ave differeml becanse!

Capinal sssets uscd in govemmentad activities are not finaneial
resourcey and (herefore ere not reported in the govemmental funds.

Governmental capital pssets ] 239.935,990
Less accumulated depreciation {40, 349,069 199 586921
Mzt pengion Liabiliby/Assct not reperied in govemnment funds (21,114,510)

Net delzrred pension inflows (outNows) ere not payablc in the
current period and thetelore are not reported in the funds. (1,627.306)

Accurulated cumpensated absences arc nol payable in the
gurrent period and therefore are not reported in the Bmda. (3,860,878)

Post emiployment healthcare henefits are not payable in the
current period and therefore arc not repotted in the finds. (1,932,061}

Unavailable revenue represeats amounts thul were net availablo to fund
cutrent cxpendilures and thereforc are not reparted in the govermnmental funds. 3,517,634

[nternel service funds are used by managoment to charge the casts of
certain activitics to individoal funds. MNel assets of the intcrnal

service [unds that are reported with governmental selivities. 444 pET
1OTAL NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITITS ¥ 192,912 780

Kea nofes o basic finoweial sttferenis




LINN COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES , EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2016
Lawr {Hlaer
General Enforcament Yeterans Hune Oovernmenial
General Road 4-Year Levy Health Loan Fundsg Telals
REVEMNUES
Propetty takes b 10,763,660 § - % 19,528,755 § - ¥ 1,284,177 % - % 31,578, 592
Inicrgovemmental 0785 550 14,843,102 - 21,4B0, 187 - 4277240 500,392,072
Licensas, pemits, [ines and services B,047 421 I 751 2,750 2,123 383 - 1,377,594 11,924,878 .
Tnicrest camingsa 03,353 125,417 15,708 58,2358 2658 12324 Fo.808
Intecest imer fiind Loan - 183,845 - 26,025 - - 216,770
Indirgct east reimbursemsnt 1,550,945 - - 315,974 - - 1,566,219
Misecllangaus - - 1,373 190, 140 - 250 141,753
TOTAL REVENUES 30 2AREI 15533115 19 551 586 24193317 1280835 5667 404 06.473,500
EXTENDTTURES
Currstil -

Ganaral adminiztration and sopport 6,352,065 - - - - - 6,312,665

T.ocal government services 3,302 064 - - - - - 3,308, 0a4

Public safery 15,221,611 - 18,085 080 - - 2036044 35,345,739

Ilealth scrvices - - - 24643028 - - 24,643,028

Conmunily developinent 5,402,901 - - - - 2,138,054 1,540,935

Ilighvrays and atresls - 11,691,535 - - - - 1,691,535

Apporionments to achonl districis - - - - - 1,538,719 1. 538,719

Capital Culbay 315,217 5,497 659 348 609 - - 16,304 6 177,945

Inditcet cost elbocatic - 190,583 533271 1,098,704 - 44,361 1.EA5.0{D

Debt ser'_.'ir.'a:

Irerest interdund f5983 - - - 143,747 - 20170
TOTAL FXFEMIDITURES 0,627 501 17,379,787 18,570,050 25.741,731 143,787 5,773,522 DB 536,373
Excess (deticiency) of revenues over cxpendiures {38£,562) (1.846.673) 581,536 [1.547.415) 1,142,048 {106,114} (2,162,579
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfera in 693,005 - - 059,332 - 253 353 1,915,780

Trangfors et {1,219 443 [291,53K) {3480 - - {401 356) {1,915 78H
TOTAL OTIER FINANCING SOURCES (LUSES) (526309 (291 538) {3487 969 332 - {146,003) -
Met change in fund balancss {912,871} {2,133.210) 57E 054 (376487) 1,143,048 (254,117} (2162579
Fund balances (defieit) at boginning ol year {6,284 468} 34,317,236 {9940 254} 9,357,908 {8,157,559} 1,423 071 30,565,892
Fund balances (defici() al end of year b (7,197,339} % 32 UTa06  § (412,201 % 770421 % (7,014,511 & 1 568 954 & 2703313




LINN COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF TIIE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENIMTURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2416

MNET CHANGE Il FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDE

Amaunis veporied for governmental aciivitics in the statenent af
ref assels are diffevent becante:

Govemmentit funds roport capital outlay as expenditures; however in the statement of activities,
the cost of thosc asscts is depreciated over their catimated usefu] lives

Expenditures for capital sysels
Capital assct deletions net hook valuc
Tss current yoar deprecition

Hevenves in the stalement of activities that do nol provide cumrent financial resources are nof
reported as revernues in the governmental funds,

Change in wavailable revenue
P'crnsion Expense! Income

Some cxpenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current TIinencial
respurces and therefore arc not reported s expenditures In governmental funds

Wet OPEB obligations
Accumulated compensated absences

Inbomal service finds are used by managescnt fo charge the costs of corlaln activities to individual
fiunds. The nct income of the internal seryice funds is reported with governmenlal activities

CHANGE IN HET PORITION OF GOV ERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Ser notes to boslc financial siarements

£ (2,162,579}

2,850,161
(82.324)
{2,451 995} 7,315,439

(37,3598)
(26,188,697)

(170,080}
(57,606}

265,175

& (21,035,546}




LINN COUNTY

GENERAL FUND

ﬂ

The General {und is used to account for the financial resources of the County that are not accounted for in any other fund.

Principal sources of revenues are Oregon and California land grant proceeds; state and federal revenues; property taxes; local
government sources; licenses, permits, fines and services.

Primary cxpenditures arc for general administration, local government services, public safely and comtrunity development.
Significant operating transfers are made to other funds.



LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT ©F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUNE BALANCES
BURGET {NON GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUNE
Year Ended June 34, 2016
Budget
Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES
Properly texes
Current year's levy Includes CATFA, and Severanc $ 10,474,063 § 10,474,063 § 10,445,572 % {28,451}
Prior yeurs' levies 380,000 330,000 axroi {52,060
Tatal property tuxss 10,854,063 13,854,063 10,773,501 (B 5600
Intergovemmental
O & Cland grant 1,007,000 1,007,000 009,814 (97,188)
Payments in lieu of taxes F0,000 170,000 22100 50,100
State forcst land sules 1,700,000 1,700,000 1,551,370 (148,620}
Armusemend (ax 24,000 24,000 23,561 (439}
Cigarete tax 115,000 115,000 147,882 32,830
Electric co-op tax 181,000 181,000 195,041 14,041
Liguor tax 417,000 A17.000 402 791 {124,200
Video lotery reimburscmcint 521,000 521,000 329894 2,894
Private car tax 3,000 3000 1458 458
Asscssment and laxation grant 623,000 625,000 ' SGS,504 {59,4%4a)
Assessment and 1axation contracts 42 000 42,000 15,103 {26,895
Veterans' officer reimburscment &3,790 83,790 79,069 (4,721}
State prison revenuc-comeclions 1,450,875 1,450,875 1,492,512 41,737
State prisoner allocation-conlract - ctiminal 1,121,724 1,121,724 1,086,028 {35,656)
Juvenile detention confracts 129906 329,206 350,908 1,000
Planning contragt with cities 150,300 150,000 168,124 18,124
Cities and district contract with Sheriff Support 394,424 1,135,581 1,166,033 29452
FEmergency 911 coniract with Sheriff 640,000 640,000 640,000 -
Citicy contiact with Jestice court 23,267 25,267 18,374 {6,353}
Juvenile work crow! Fed Garest title T 38,625 38,625 17,063 (21,562)
Juvenile contract with cities 116375 116,375 154,785 35,410
Surveyor coniracts 3,000 3,0H0 - {3,000%
General Services from 4H Extension 55,000 55,000 38,790 (16,210}
GIS grant 5,000 5,000 1,364 (1,636}
Infurmation techiol ogy service contracle 28,040 29,000 25,575 (1,425
Total intergovemmental 9,447 9486 10,190,143 9,873,252 {316,891)

Nee notes to bisic fluirelal sfatenenis
Continied on pages 9-14




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHARGES IN FUIIND BALANCES

BUDGET (NON GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUNI} (Continped)

REVENUES {Conilnucd)

Licenses, permils, fincs and setvices

Commissioners

Asgsessment and taxation

Cierk

Treasuret

surveyor

Plamming

Parks and recreation
Hiatorical

Justice court - Central Linn

District atlomey
Medical Examincr
Sheriff

Comreclions

Civil

Criminal

Dogs

Juppart
Juvenile
Cicneral administeation
[nformation technology
General services
Printing
County Counsel

Crepgraphic information system

Fxpo
Man deparienental

Regeonos and SATF settlement
Tndirect cosl reimbursenients, net

Tatal licenses, permits, fines and services

Literest eamings

TCTAL REYENUES

See notes o basic flaancial sfeteriens

Conifnned on pages 10-16

Budget
Originel Firal Actual Variance
50 §$ 0 % 5 % {45}
94,500 94,500 BE553 (5,047
1,211,399 1,229,399 1,262,804 33,405
2,400 2,400 2547 147
£2,000 £2,000 81,247 AE)
920,500 995,500 1,089,813 4,313
1,873,140 1,373,140 1,704,677 {168,463)
40,000 40,000 12575 (27.425)
75,000 475,000 698,573 23,573
150,000 150,000 210,839 af, 835
46,000 46,000 47,600 1,600
721,736 729,436 494,965 {234,473
161,250 3s1,250 459,865 93,615
105,000 145,000 20,985 (75,015)
174,300 174,300 166,770 (7530
R 980 &8,980 28,800 (40,1300
25,901 23,900 34,288 B384
50,500 50,500 41,431 (9,060
6,000 6,000 930 (5,070
26,0680 26,680 19,808 6,374}
286,824 311,824 290,074 (21,7300
- - 2407 207
700 7,000 - (7.0HD
1,030,00H) 1,030,000 1,015,208 (14,792)
143,366 143,166 145,897 6,531
155,000 138,000 92,798 (65,202
1,550,935 1,550,935 1,550,945 &
Q831 464 9,057 164 9,573,200 {I81.5964%
15,4000 15,000 30,056 15,054
30,148,513 31,016,370 30,252,001 {76435




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (NON GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL F'UND (Continued)

Budgzl
Criginal Final Actupl Yarlance
EXPENDITURES .

Commissiongrs

Peisonal serviccs b 476,595 % 119,595 % 474,623 & 1,072

hiaterials and services 2525 13,625 11,434 2,191
Total Commissionets 486,220 490,220 486,057 4,163
Azgessment and Taxation

Perspnal services 1,956,055 1,956,055 1,807,658 148,309

Materlals and services 219,150 219,150 193,931 25219

Capilal outlay 5 5 - 5
Total Asscesment atd Texation 2,175,210 2,175,210 2,001,589 173,621
Cletk

Pcrsonal sarvices a0 112 999,112 376,164 122,948

Malerials and services 252 870 252870 146,749 106,121

Capiial oullay 200,000 200,000 196,463 9,537
Taotal Clerk 1,451,982 1,451,982 1,213,376 238,506
Trensuret

Personal services 257,041 257,041 255,131 1,710

Materiald and servicos 9,650 9,650 0,386 264
Total Trcasurer 266,691 266,691 264,117 1,974
Surveyar

Personal scovices 6d8,775 634,775 £53.910 g5

MWatcrials and services 13,787 13,787 0,093 4,694

{Capital Cutlay 1 1 - 1
Total Surveyor 52,563 668,563 663,003 5,560
Veterans' Scrvices

P'ersanal serviees 237,815 237,815 235,398 2,417

datorials and services 9. 744 2,744 9622 122
Teatal Voterans' Services 247,559 247,359 245,020 2,539

See nofex fa basic financial stotentens

Canilnned on pages 1 1-16
LH



STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (NON GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND (Continued)

Budget liudget
Diriginal Oripinal Actual Variange
EXTENDITURES (Conilnued)

Flanning and Bullding

Personal services 5 1,120,586 3 1,158,586 % 1,057,840 % 110,737

Materdals and services 76,500 103,500 §2,590 20,910

Capital Outlay 25,003 25,005 23,235 1,770
Tolal Planhing and Boilding 1,222,051 1,207,081 1,163,674 133417
Parks and Recreation

Personal services 1,089, 187 1,024,187 1,022,576 1,611

Mlaterials and serviccs 514,450 579,450 379,130 320

Capilal autlay 168,500 168, 500 26529 141,971
Total Parks and Recreation 1,772,137 1,772,137 1,628,235 143,002
Histotical

Mersonal services 26,900 22,400 21,178 1,222

aterials and services 21,653 26,355 23,087 3,288

Capital oullay 20,000 20,000 - 20,000
Taotal Historival 68,735 6,753 44,245 24,510
Sherifl - Support Services

Personal services 2452919 2,452,929 2,308,021 144,303

Materials and scrvives 430,579 430,399 404,631 26,268

Capital outlay 2,000,001 2,742,158 1,935,421 806,737
Total Sherill - Support Serviees 4,883,820 5,625,986 4,648,673 977,313
Bherdff - Civil

Pcrsonal services 84,404 o4, 404 068,772 5,632

Materials and services 33,050 43,050 14,143 8,907

Capital Qutlay 1 1 - 1
Total Sherilf - Civil 1,017,455 1,017,455 1,002,915 14,540

Sew srotes 1o basic fluanclnl statements
Continied on pages 12-16

11




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (WON GAAP BUDGETARY DASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND (Continued)

Budgst Budget
Driginal Original Achual Variance
EXPENDITURES {Contlnued)

Sheriff - Criminal

Perzonal scrvices 3720752 % 3720752 % 3,309,285 % 420,457

Materiald and services 140,715 140,715 1,604 49 106

Capital Cutlay 1 | - 1
Tolal Shetift - Criminal 3870408 3,870 463 3,400,894 469,574
Justice Court - Cenlral Linn

Personal services 501,883 591,888 571,767 24,121

Materials and serviccs 100,650 100,650 100,212 413

Capital outlay 5 5 - 5
Total Justice Court - Coniral Linn (92,543 002 543 6TLATY 20,564
Dristrict Attorney

Personal zervices 891,671 97,671 80,002 17,669
"T'ntal THstrict Altomey 897671 £97,671 gRO002 17,689
Medical Examiner

Personial services 144,040 144,640 112,576 32,064

Materiats and sorvices 12,000 12,000 6,502 5,458
Total Medical Examiner 156,640 156,540 119,078 37,562
Juvenile

Personal services 172,869 1,072,845 1,058,954 13,215

Materials and scrvices 67,307 67,307 52,852 14,413

Capital Outlay 5,000 5,000 - 5,000
Total Juvenile 1,145,176 1,145,176 111,846 33.330
Sheriff - Corrections

Perzonal scrvices 2,834,124 2,759,024 2,481,926 277,098

W aterials and services 307,404 440,104 425,695 14,409
Total Sherill - Corrections 3,191,428 3,199,128 2907621 291,507

Tee notes 1o basic financiol sfatenenis
Conrinned on pages 13-16




STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
EUDGET (NON GAAP BUDGETARY DASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUNI (Continued)

Budget RBudmet
(Jriginal Original Actual Variancc
EXPENEMTURES {Continued)

Sheriff - Dogs

Personal services £ 492535 3§ 492,535 § 156826 & 135,709

Materials and scrvices 99,206 99,205 71,208 27,503

Capital Cutlay 2 2 - 2
Taolal Sheriff - Vogs 591,743 591,743 428,124 163,619
General Administration

Personal =ervices 683,101 6831 601 683,223 378

Miaterials and services 6h2.414 632,414 656,167 26,247

Capital cultay 3 3 - 3
Tetal Gencral Adminisiration L365 518 1,366,018 1,339,390 26,628
Informpation Systems

I"ersonal services 806,655 Q07,655 907,069 586

Materials and seivices 121,511 110,111 105,107 5,004

Capital outlay 33,510 33,510 18,896 14,614
Total Information Systems 1,051,276 1,051,276 1,031,072 20,204
General Services

Personal services 1,092,044 1,086,044 1,045,588 40,056

Materialz and scrvices 015,345 915,345 £33.020 62,325

{Capital cutlay ) 46,073 52,078 51,932 148
Total Guneral Services 2,053,467 2,053,467 1,950,340 102,527
Printing

Personal services 257,703 257,703 255,292 2411

Waterials and services 154,460 179 460 171,133 8,327

Capital cullay 1 1 - L’
Tatal Printing 412,164 437,164 420,425 10,739

See notes to basie ffoancial stefements
Contliived on poges 14-16




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

RUDGET (NON GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUNE (Contlnued)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

County Counzel
Pcrsonal services
Muterials and scrvices

Total County Counsel

Goographic System (GIS)
Personal scrvlees
daterials and seryices
{apital oullay

Total Geagraphic System (GIS}

Expa
Peraonal services
hviaterials and services
Capital Outlay
Total Expa
Non-deparimental
Materials and services
Capital outlay
Tolal Mon-deparimental

Contingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURLS
Excess (dcficiency) of roverues over cxpenditures

See reates fo hosic finarcial stetewien!s
Conthined on pages 15 -16

Budget Budget

Orginal Original Actual Varianco
436,826 % 456,826 % 453,246 % 1580
27,762 27,762 16,163 11,594
484,588 484 588 469,414 15,174
355,551 354,351 358,167 384
54,828 51,828 15,569 15,259
L 1 - 1
410,380 410,380 38 15,644
762,446 747 446 13,709 33,737
495,600 510,600 505,011 5,580
247,883 247,883 146,851 191,002
1,505,925 1,505,929 1,365,601 140,328
706,728 706,728 521,234 185,494
71,168 1,841,160 37178 1,753,982
777,888 2,547,886 GlR.412 1,939,476
752,369 721,869 - 721,869
33,613,740 30,213,597 30467038 5,746,559
(3,465,227) (5,197,227} (215,027} 4,982,200




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT{RES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET (NON GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUNI {Continued)

Budget Budwet
Original Original Aciual WVariance
OTIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from ather funds
Transfer from Roads/sheril support 5 2000000 S 2,000,000 % 2,000,000 -
Tranafer Gom Rosdefclerk 200,000 200,000 193,076 £5,924.00)
From the uncmployment fund 2000 200,000 - (Z06,000)
Road lunds { Cormections 40,000 &0,000 - (60,0000
Corner Proservalionfsirveyor 173,301 173,301 133,032 {40,269)
Toad fundxs f Surveyor 15,000 325,000 280,194 {44,306)
Ruoad Tunds /non department for police station py - 1,750,000 1,750,000 -
Ruoad Fund / Juventle L0000 LG, 000 3,250 {6,750
Road fund toan/Criminal 1,000,000 1,000,000 - {1,000, 000
Rad fund transferfCriminal 1,000,000 1,000,000 - { 1,000,000
Fair fund 1o expo 25,500 29,500 2,500 (AT0000
Road Fund / GIS 10,000 30,000 6,323 (23,677)
TRgad Fund 7 Inlonnetion Technology Service 15,000 15,000 1,771 (13,2299
Law Enforcement Fund Sherill to ITS 3000 3,008 3,000 -
Federal Fovestfsherilf support 13,540 13,540 13,540 -
Federal Forcstisheriff criminal 184,531 184,631 184,631 -
Fedcral Forestfsheri ¥ corrcctions 54,154 54,154 34,154 -
Transfers {to) other funds
County Fair {60,000} {60,000} {60,000) -
Corner ProzervalionfClerk (161,000} {175,000) (178,014) 2,984
Law Library {3,8080) {3,800) (3,338) @8
Health Fund - A&D (87,372 (87,374 {87,372) -
Health Fund Public (B51,961) (F51,961) (531.961) -
Ta roads fand for loan payment, Assessment and (68,134} {68,134} {68,133) 1
To rogds fund for loan payment, parks macina (101,003) (101,003} (101,003) -
I.oan Bopayment to [Tzaith Fund (183,774) (133,774 (183,770} 1
Loan Repayment {647,743} {647,743) (647,740 3
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USLES) 3,103,339 4835319 2,415,635 {2,419, 70E)

Kee eutes fo dasic fingnclal sfatemenis
Conftnied on page 16



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET {NON GAAF BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUNE {Continved)

Budget Budget
Original Crriginul Actual Variance
Met change in fund balancc £ (361,888 § (361,288 & 2200608 5 2,362,494
Fund balance at beginning of year 361,888 361,888 L 496,928 1,335,040
Fund belance at cnd of year b - £ - 3,697,536 § 3,697,536
Reconciligtion to GAAP hasis
Y ear End Cash Adjustment 30027
Fair market viloe adjustment . 1183
Accounts reccivable 46017
Adjust for change in workman compensation reserve 292,138
Property taxes receivable and available 55,801
Due fror other govemments and available 78,785
ue from vther funds and available 51,128
Advanee (tom HRoads Fund (8,588,591)
Accounts payable {233,607
1Jue to other governinents (5,384)
Dug to other funds - (23,042}
Paytall, payrodl taxcs and benefits payable (2,630,138}
Fuid balance (GAAP basis) - at end of year b (7,193,333}

See nofex Yo bashe fiancicd Safemeiis



LINN COUNTY

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

ﬁ

$Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes.

General Road — Opetations of the County Road Department are primatily shown in this fund. Major sources of revenue
include forestland sales and motor vehicle fees. Expenditures are primarily for road consfruction and maintcnance.

Law BEnforcement 4-Year Levy — This fund was supperted by the first year of a four-year local option property tax levy in

+

amual amount of $2.83 per $1,000 taxable value. Expenditures were primarily for continuing law enforcement and jail
operations.

Health — County health related activities are recorded in the Health Fund. Resources of this fund are primarily from various
grants, Title XX, managed care and operating transfers from the General Fund, Expendimres are for health care activities.

Veterans Home Loan —{ Properties Fund re-named) Established in fiscal 2010-11, this fund records the cost of translerting property
and funds to the State of Oregon for the Construction of a Veterans Home , and the related property tax revenues.




LINN COUNTY

ETATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDUTURES AND CHANGES 1N FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON GAAP BUDGETARY BAXIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL ROAD FUND - MAJOR SPECTAL REYENDE FLND

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Budpret
{riginal Final Actual Varianes
REVENUES
tditer vehicle appartinnments 3 5037841 £ 8037841 % 32090 % (5,651}
Fedeeal forest 2,200,000 3,200,110 2624954 {575.045)
Interpovemmentel 2055000 2055000 4 503 484 (5,361,514}
Intereat eamings 100,000 100,100 10,114 114
b{iscellaneous £18& 450 618,450 B9, 981 {225 4649}
TOTAL REVENUES 21,911,298 21.911.221 15740725 {6, 170565}
EXPENDITURES
Permanak services 7,396,100 TA10, 160 6,792,333 617,767
Malarials and services 5620455 5,620,455 3975717 1,644 738
Indirsct cost ollecation 15, 533 190,583 190,583 -
Capital outley 15,177,500 15,177,500 6,703,180 8474320
Contingency 4. 000,000 2,036,000 - 2,036,000
Reacree for Mulure years 4,531 51 4,832,501 - 4433550
TOTAL EXPEMDITURESR 37215139 35.268,1339 17,661,813 17,606 326
BExoess (delficiency) of Tevenues ower expenditures (15,306,848 (13,355,848} {1,921.088) 11,435,760
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Luoan repayments from other fuwds
Geneeal fund fAcceuniing software 125209 125,209 125,308 .
General Pund For park 265615 65,615 65,614 {1}
Genaral fund £ Aszsezainent and Tax &E,124 68,134 68,133 {1}
Ceoeral fund £ parks Maring 101,003 101,003 101,063 .
Gongeal Tund f “latpent propeoty 26049 5,45 05,040 .
General fund fClethk - - 2612 2412
Yeterans Home Lean 1,320,950 1,320.9538 1,287,877 (42091}
Repoyment Jacksen Stoeet ona97 90,0497 90,046 (1}
General lund £ Willarielle propecdy 70,733 10,713 10,772 (1}
Loan Advance f Pairal {1, 0000003 {1,000,000 - 1,000 DK
Tranafer Lo Genaral Fund {1,000 {1,000,500 - 1,000,000
Loat Advanet {2, 0000} {2, G0, CO0 (2, L0, B0 -
Loan Advence to General Fund/Police property - {1,750,000) (1,750,0007 .
T.an Advance to Jencel Fundfelerk - (200,000 (193,076} 6,924
General Fund fSurveyor confract (3250000 (325,000 (280, 1943 44 805
Juyenile work erevnGeneral Fund RIS {10,000 (3,250) £.750
ITS supparlCeneral Fund (15,003 {15,000 {1,771 13,229
318 Contraet (I b {20,000 {6,322} 23,578
Ehetiff-Road Crew (000 L6000 - 60000
TOTAL OTHPR FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {2 200,152} [4,243,157) {2 127,248} 2,11590

Kew wores fo baste finaioial sialements
Conthrered o page 18 17




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENIITURES AND CIIANGES TN FUND HALARCE

BUDGET {MON GaAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL RDAT - MAJOR SPECIAL REYENTE FUND (Contlnued)

Med changa in fund balange
Fonodk balatice at beginning of year

Fund batenes ul end of year

Reconclliztion 10 GAAP basis:
Aceonnts receivable and available

Cash impreal edjustment

Fair vulue adjustment

Dhu fretn other governmgats and evailuble
Investment it fuel Facilisy

Inveniarica

Accounts payable

Comtracts payahle

Chue to gther lunds

Payroll, paymod] taxes und benelils payable

“Total current reconciling itsma

Long-term povtion of interiund lean receivahbla

T'odal al] reconciling items

Fund batence {LiAA¥ basis) at end of year

Keg nedes e baste franclsl siaemanis

Budget

Hinlgmi

Criginal

Dhrigintal

Actual

Yariance

5

(17600, 3

17,600,000

(17,600.000) 3

17 600,000

{4,048, 336)
21,1087 263

§ 13,351,664
3,487,863

i

18

17,038,527

21,342
356

B 665
760,664
131,590
1,327 062
(365,078}
(569,020}
{22.3000
{578,674)

718,139
14,420,360

15,139,499

32,179,026

17,0348 527

s—hh




LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENINTURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET {NON-GAAP RUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

LAW ENFORCEMENT 4-YEAR LEVY - MAJIOR SPECIAL REVEN [JE FUND
Yoar Ended June 30, 2016

BREVENLES
Propeity laxes:
Current ycar's levy
Prior year's levy
Tolal property taxcs

Conlreeds
Interssl eamings

TOTAY REVEMUES

EXIENDITURES
Personal services
Materials and serviees
Tndirect cost allocation
Cepilal outlay
{Operating Continpeney

TOTAL FXPENDITURES
Gxcess (ileficicney) of revenuss over ppenditures

(OTHER FINANCING S0URCES (USLS)

T'runsfer to Genersl Fund
TOTAL OTHER FINANCRMG SOURCES (USES)

Met change it fund balance
Funid batance at beginning of yoar

Fund halenco atend of year

Recnnzilintiun to GAAT bazla:
Property taxes rocelvahle and aveilable
[hge from other funds
Fair valus adjusiment
Accounts payeable
g ko other gavernmenls
13ue te other Tunds
Payroll, payroll tnxes and benefits payuble

Fund halance (GAAP basis) at end of year
See nofes o hasic flnquecial statenicals

Qriginal Fingl
Budget Budgst Actual . Variange
18,E64,602 18,264,602 19,012,028 147426
733,000 735,00 532,073 {205,227
14,599,602 19,599,602 19,541,1M (3E,501)
- - 13713 1,373
10, 0} 10,000 IE,EE 8,280
19,609,602 19,609,502 19,56(,763 {18,830
13,358 877 15,357,377 14,724,516 632,851
3,307,236 1,308,736 3,283,740 4,996
512271 533,271 533,271 .
419,007 419007 415,230 Ry
#2720 62,729 - 62,729
19,681,120 19,681,120 18,956,767 724,353
{(71,51E) (7L515} 07,996 75,514
(3.4820) (3.4} £3,432) -
(3.482) (3.482) (3488 -
(75,000 {75,000) £00,514 £75.514
75,000 75,008 222 657 147,657
. . §23,171 823,171
97,744
2,750
410
{101,757
{17,873)
{5,019
(1,211,689)
{412,2400
19




LINN COUNTY

ETATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENIMTURES AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCE
BUNGET NON-GAAP BUNGETARY BASTS) AND ACTUAL
HEALTEH - MAJOR SPECLAL REVENUE FUND

Year Ended June 38, 2016
Budget _
BEVENUES : Oiriginal Final Jgtual Varianta —
‘Healih ndminfatration;
Grants ] 84,588 £ 384,858 % WazTE & [T5.011)
Bianaged Core Capitaicn 5,000 50400 149,404 133000
Indirecd ost relnbursemeami 43,162 43 162 43,167 -
Mendal heablh eervices;
Grants 3,901,767 2001, 767 3,660,908 TEQ 141
Craup home rom aod bansd 31000 5,004 27405 (13043
Title X1X 395,R46 185, Ed6 452,433 66,587
Comtracls 116,544 116,544 5B, 1405 {5E,236)
Manijged care 9,412,066 9,412,965 TEI6 604 {1,706, 262
Faolily-PEF - - 650,327 a50,827
Relinburssments 522,044 522 050 a12,524 .3
Earninga on dapasits 21,762 2LTGT 36,155 433
Miscellateoun fea 59,150 58,150 26,463 (32,667}
[evelnpmetital disabilitisa:
Gmnts 1,852,711 2ATTEI 2,254,101 (223,519
Bamings wn depaaite - . 5370 5370
Alcahal wid deag; :
Grants 1,335,271 1,429,621 1,680,711 251,000
Teer atd wins 1 121,13 121,103 13, M {471,307
Tille X¥iX 165,907 (LR 141,355 {24.512)
hakdped care 1,234 426 1234 426 1,210,008 [H.418}
Rebnshuresments [LiEL 21386 45,786 (30, LCHR
Miseellaneaws fegs 11,958 11,958 12,861 1n3
Earnings ol deposits | 1 2% 1381
LongtionsHFEL . - G043 545
Indirecd cost Teinburacment 71,363 71,569 TLi65 -
Fublic health:
Grants 1,$42, 506 1,640,450 1,562,847 {78,163
Modicais admdaisraticn 125,000 125,000 97 256 [32,744)
Title X1X 408,324 405,224 {18,535 A%
Frnily-FEF 135,040 135,000 11534 (21786}
Miseellenzons fees 134,400 134,400 145,571 TL1TL
Reimburaements 13,040 13,50 4818 PIzg
Fraltga on deposils 25 15 295 471
Indirect cost reinbursament 20 249 0], 149 201,243 ()]
leformalion Lechnalogy
Gt - A8 7E 327,503 8735
Envlranmeniol baalth:
Granty 1 GIT 230,637 198,051 (42578}
Liceoses and pecrmils 3600 360,04 42 853 B2.893
Bipgallaicans fes 296,30 296,00 318,236 ik
Faroioga on dapasits 3679 3674 2,004 {15753
TOTAL REVEKLIES 23,116,378 23352 698 23,955 566 [427,133)

Fee rotes te bavde (Taanefol stodeniemts

Conttrued oa gege I 20




STATEMENT OF BEVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FURND BALANCE

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGEVARY DASIS) ANI} ACTUAL
HEALTH - MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNL (Continued)

Budget
Origionl Final Actunl YariBNgD

EXFPEMNLLTURES

Feraomal services 5 20,734,550 ¥ 438456 K 16 423 63F 1,514,821

batcriala and sarvicas 4,515,074 5761147 4,740,572 1,024,523

ludircel copt sllacaliatn 1,098,704 1,063, T 1,098, T4 -

Capidal outlay §03,004 557,001 464,074 3,827

Canfingansy 564001 4 B30 630 - 4 530 B30
TOTAL BXPEMDITLIRES (1] 32,415,317 231,521,138 25727 315 7 5 FO3
Excast (deficiency]) ol rmvenuca aver expandifures (10,295 439) {10,250 435 {2, 761,76%) 2.536,670
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [UEES)

Tranafers from Qenecad Fund 1,155,107 1,133,107 1,153,107 -

Trangderd aut - - - -
et changs bn fond belance (9,145,322) £9,143,332) [1,608,652) 7536670
Fund balance at beginning el yoar 145732 4145331 o A58, 234 L I
Fund halzance at ¢nd ol year ¥ - % 787,572 TRET2
Recoucllation vo GAAF baaks

Feir moarket value and cash neljoslmed 4,403

Aecaunie receivabile {neth 447 387

Drie From other governments and available 1107, 61

Droe from other fande and avedlabla 1,512

Mdvanges 1o oiber fanda 1.189,378

Acepanis payable {1464,187)

Pun s ather funds (20,213)

Payroll, payroll dexos and beoefits poyable 1,669,550
Fund halsnes {AAY Tasis) at end of year £ 3770471
{1 Sumurary of Bxpardltures by Frogrom
Health ademindsiralian § SA1L918 B g 5 391,335 10,544
Menlal - emcdionnl disiurbances 14 229,652 15,082,202 13,562,574 1,319,628
Dovelypmceial disobitilies L3151 3,183,501 2,593 568 580,025%
Aleghal and drug 2,508,638 7,999,387 2,873,915 125,472
Pubiléa haalth 3,100,393 2,278,777 107228 206,403
Heghth Infimetion teghnatagy 1,160 1 1,528,262 1354028 174,233
Enviranmenial beath E37,636 957,656 80,926 206,730
Indirzzt Cost Allooabion 1,098,704 1,098, 7ad 1,008,709 -
Contingenicy 555001 49305630 . 4930630
TOTAL EXPRNUITURES RY 'ACORAM 1 32415317 F 31.641,178 & 2573730 T3, B3

B¢ notes to Aosle flaarcial statemenls
21



LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND} CHANGES 1IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET [NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASISY AND ACTUAL
VETERANS [IOME LOAN [PROPERTIES FUND)
Vear Ended June 30, 2016

Budget
Original Final Aciual Wariandes

REYENUES

Property Tax - Cwurent b 1,290,398 & 1,290,398 § 1,253,310 % (37,088}

Propetiy l'ex - Prior 38,570 38,570 31,782 {6,788)

Eamings on deposits oo 1,000 2,659 1,659
TOTAT REVENLLES 1,325,968 1,329,968 1,287,751 (42,217}
EXPENPITURES

Loan Repayment L - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - - - -
Excess {deficiency) of rovenues over cxpenditures 1,320,008 1,329,968 1,287,751 42,217
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfer out (1,329,968) {1,329,968) {1,287,877) 42,081
Net change in [und balances - - (126) -
Funl balance at begineing of year - - 126 -
Fund balance at end of year b - % - - % -
Reconciliation g0 GAAP hasis:

Properfy tax receivable 6,634

Advances from Diher Fonds (7,021,145}
Fund balance (GAAP basis) at end of year £ {7,014,511)

See naies to baslc financial statemeliis 22




LINN COUNTY

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

ﬁ

Unemployment Insurance — This fund began in 1990-91 with funding obtained threugh action by the County Commissioners in
requesting monies that had accumulated in the State Employment Division Local Government Benefit Trust Fund. Currently,
this fund is self-financed by obtaining monies from other County funds. Expenditurcs from the Unemployment Insurance Fund
pertain to cmrent year unemployment claims.




LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
June 30, 2016
Govermnental
Agtivities
Trernal
Service
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 515,157
Due from other funds 22,967
TOTAL ASSETS 538,124
LIABILITIES
Due to other gevernments 2,853
Claims liability 90,604
TOTAL LIABILITIES 93,457
NET POSITION
Unrestricted $ 444,667
23

See noles to bosle financial statements



LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended June 34, 2016
Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
OPERATING REVENUES
Reimbursements L) 265,882
OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance claims 1,606
Operating income 262,276
NONOPERATING REVENLES
Interest earnings 2,800
Change in net asscts 263,175
Total net position - beginning of year 179,492
Total net position - end of year $ 444,667

See notes fo basic financigl stateniends



LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2016
Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash recetved from reimbursements $ 264,802
Cash paid for insurance claims {62,317
Net cash provided (used) by operating activitics 202,485
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Intercst earnings 2,899
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 2,899
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 205,384
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 309,773
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 515,157

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income $ 262,276
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds (1,080}
Increase {decrease) in due to other government (17,388)
Increase (decrease) in claims liability (41,323)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 202,485

See wofes to bayle financial statemenss 25




LINN COUNTY

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2016
Agency

ASSETS

Cash and investmenis b3 1,903,891

Receivalles 12,430,981

Due from other governments 62,815
TOTAL ASSETS 3 14,397,687
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 36,136

Due to other governments 1,146,929

Amounts held in trust 13,214,622
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 14,397,687

See mates te basfe financial shreniens
24
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LINN COUNTY

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended June 30, 2016
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LINN COUNTY

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of LINN COUNTY have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setling body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the County’s accounting
policies are described below.

A,

QOrganization

LINN COUNTY was [ormed under the predecessor chapter to ORS 202 in 1847. Its boundaries are established by ORS 201.220. The
County’s budgeting and accountability for fiscal matters is directed by a Board of County Commissioners consisting of three
independenily elected members. Eight other elected officials manage various other public service areas. '

Reporting Entity

The accompanying basic financial statements present all activities funds and component units for which the County is considered to be
financially accountable. The criteria used in making this determination includes appointment of a veting majority, imposition of will,
financial benefit or burden on the primary government, and fiscal dependency on the pritmary government. Bascd upon the evaluation of
this critetion, the County is a primary government with no includable component units.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) rcport information on all of
the nonfiduciary activities of the County (the primary government), For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Govermmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activifies, which rely to a significant cxtent on fees and charges for support.
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NOTES TQ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuced)

¢, Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment, Program revenyes include 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment, Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenies,

Separale financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major governmental funds and major proprietary funds are reportcd in separate
columns in the respective fund financial statements,

D. Measurement Focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reporied using the economic resources measurement focus and the gcerual busis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, except the agency fund has no measurement focus under
accrual accounting. Revenues are recorded when carned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized

as revenue as soen as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

As a general rule the effect of interfond activity has been eliminated from the govermment-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this
general rule are charges between the functions of the County, the elimination of which would distort the direct costs and program revenues

reported for the various functions concerncd.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)
D. Measurement Focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentalion (continued)

Amounts teported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2)
operating grants and contributions, and 3} capital grants and coniributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources
are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues, Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and cxpenses {rom nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
{rom providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprictary fund’s principal ongoing operations, The
principal operating revenues are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary fimds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenscs not meeting this definition are

reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resoutces arc available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted resources first, and then
unresiricted resources as they are needed.

Governmental fund financial statements ate reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of aecounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available, Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period, For this purposc, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Significant
revenues, which are susceptible to acerual under the modificd accrual basis of aceounting, include property taxes and federal and state
grants. Other revenue itcms are considered to be measurable and available when received by the County. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is jncurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The basis of accounting described above are in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

The Counly reports the following major governmental funds:

General: revenue Sources are property tuxes, intergovernmental receipls, and permits, licenses, and fees.
General Road Revenue source is primarily infergovernmental receipts

Law Enforcement 4-Year Levy: revenue source is properiy taxes

Health: revenue sources are intergovernmental receipis, and licenses, perwmits and fees.

Veterans ' Home Loan: revere sotirce Is properiy taxes
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NOTES T{) BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D). Measurement Focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation (continued)

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Special revenue funds are primarily operating funds that account for revenue derived from specific taxes or other revenue sources, which
are legally restricted to finance particular functions or activities, When a special revenue fund is not an operating fund, transfers are made
from the special revenue fumd to the operating fumds authorized to make expenditures.

Proprietary fund accounts for the operations of predominantly self-supporting activities, The intemal service fund accounts for services
provided to ofher departments or agencies of the government, or fo other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis. Linn County has a
self insured unemployment fund classified and reported as an intemal service fund.

Fiduciory funds account for resources received and held by the County in a fiduciary capacity. Disbursements from these [unds are made
in accordance with the trust agreement or applicable legislative enactment for cach particular fund, which in Linn County include a
vegional fueling facility, justice courts and various other receipts held by the County Treasurer’s Olfice,

E. Budget

Generally, Oregon Local Budget Law requires annual budgets be adopted for all funds except agency finds. The cash basis of accounting
is used for all budgets. Ali annnal appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The County begins its budgeting process by appointing Budget Committee members in the fall of each year, Budget recommendations arc
developed by management through early spring, with the Budget Committee meeting and approving the budget document in late spring.
Public natices of the budget hearing are generally published in March or April and the hearing is held in April. The Board of
Commissioners adopts the budget, makes appropriations, and declares the tax levy no later than June 30, Expenditure appropriations may
not be legally over-expended, except in the case of grant receipts and bond sale proceeds which could not be reasonably estimated at the

time the budget was adopted.

The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations, The
County established the levels of budgetary contrel at the (personal services, materials and scrvices, capital outlay, operating contingencies,
debt service, and all other requirement} levels for all fimds except the General Fund and the General Grants Fund budgetary controls are

established at the department level.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Budget (Continued)

Budget amounts shown in the basic financial statements have been revised since the original budget amounts were adopted. The Board of
Commissioners must authorize all appropriation transfers and supplementary budgetary appropriations. Expenditures for all funds wers
within appropriation amounts, with the exception of the 911 Emergency Communications Fund {page 72) where no budget numbers were
adopted in the Linn County budget.

Investments

Investments included in cash and investments are reported at fair value. The County invesis in the State of Oregon Local Government
Investment Pool, certificates of deposit, United States Government securities held under repurchase agreements, and other government
investments authorized by Oregon Revised Statutes. The Local Government Investment Pool is not registered with the Securitics and
Exchange Commission as an investment organization, Interest earned from pooled investments is allocated bascd on a fund’s portion of
the total investment balance. The County maintains depository insurance under federal depository insurance funds and state and financial
institution collateral pools for its deposits with financial instilutions.

For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows, the Internal Service Fund considers ils cash and investments as cash and cash
equivalents. This is in conformity with Statement No. 9 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board which states that deposits in

. cash management pools that have the general characteristics of demand deposit accounts are appropriately classified as cash.

Fair Value Inputs and Methodologies and Hierarchy
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabilily in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date. Observable inputs are developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of
the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available about the assumptions market participants
would nse in pricing the asset. The classification of securitics within the fair value hierarchy is based up on the activity level in the market
for the secutity type and the inputs used to determine their fair value, as [ollows:

Level | — unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical asscts or liabilitics that each Fund has the ability to access
Level 2 — other observable inputs (including, but not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets that are active,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for the assets or liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, loss saverities, eredit tisks and defanlt rates) or other market—
corroborated inputs)

Level 3 ~ uncbservable inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances, o the cxtent observable inputs are not
available {including each Fund’s own assumptions used in determining the fair value of investmenis)
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F, Investments {continued)

I1.

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to nnobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Accordingly. the degree of judgment exercised in
determining fair value is greatest for instruments catcgorized in Level 3. The inputs nsed to measure fair value may fall into different levcls
of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosurc purposes, the fair value hierarchy classification is determined based on the lowest
Jevel input that is significant ta the fair value measurement in its entircty.

Receivablcs

Property taxcs receivable in the Governmental Funds, which have been collected within 60 days of year end, are considered measurable
and available, and are recognized as revenues in the funds. All other property taxes reccivable in the Governmental Funds are offset by
unavailable revenues and have not been recorded as revenues. Property taxes receivable in the Agency Fund are offset by a liability
account cntitled “Amounts held in trost,”

Accounts receivable in Governmental Funds are recorded as revenue as they become measurable and available, An allowance for doubtful
accounls pertaining to estimated uncollectible health and mental health fecs has been recorded.

Receivables for federal and state grants, and statc shared revenues are entered in the Govemmental Funds as “Due from other
governments.” These receivables are recorded as revenue in all fund types as they become measurable and available.

Loans receivable in the Special Revenue Funds consist primarily of regional siratcgy loans and rehabilitation loans, net of an allowance for
doubtful loans, which arc also offset by an unearned revenue account, Loans reccivable will be recognized as rcvenue as they become

measurable and available,

Assessmcnts receivable pertain to improvements benefiting specific property owners. These receivables are offset by an unavailable
revenue account and arc recognized as revenue as they become measurable and available,

Interfund loans

Lending and berrowing arrangements between funds, which are outstanding at the cnd of the year, are presenied as either “interfund
receivables/payables™ for the current portion or “advances to/from other funds® for the non-current portion of the interfund loan. All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as due toffrom other funds, Advances to other funds are offset by a reservation of fund
equily to indicatc that they are not available financial resources.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

I.

Inventories

Inventorics consist of materials and supplies used for road repaits in the General Road Fund. Inventories are valued at average cost. The
County uses the consumption method of accounting for these inveniories, whereby inventories are charged as expenditures when used.

Foreclosed Properties Held for Sale

These properties arc valued at the amount of property taxes owing upon acquisition, and are continually offered for sale at which time
revenues are recognized. The inventory of forcclosed properties held for sale is offsel by unearned revenue,

Capital Assets

Capital asscts, which include property, equipment, infrastructure assets {c.g., roads, bridges, and right of ways), and their improvemcnts,
are reported in the governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capilal assets are defined by the County
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated usefu] life of more than one ycar. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capifal assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at

the date of donation.

The County has elected to use the modified approach to present infrastructure relating to paved roads. Under the modified approach, assets
are capitalized but not depreciated, In lieu of calculating depreciation, a condition assessment of the eligible assets must be presented
listing planned versus actual maintenance and details of the basis of assessment and the level of condition at which the County intends to
preserve the eligible assets, All other infrastructure assets arc being depreciated.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
K. Capital Assets (Continued)
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially cxtend assets lives are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital asscts and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the County ars depreciated after reducing the capitalized cost by the estimated salvage value, if any,
using the straight-linc method over the following estimated useful lives:

»  Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years
» Equipment 5 - 30 years
» [Intangibles 5-15 years
» Buildings 39 - 50 years
= Buildings improvements 50 years

« Public domain infrastructure 25 - 50 years

Upon disposal of such assets, the accounts are relieved of the related costs and accumnlated depreciation and resulting gains or losses are
reflected in the statement of activities.

L. Investment in Jomnt Venture

The County rcports its vested pro-rata sharc of the June 30, 7016 Net Position of the Linn Regional Fueling Facility (a jeintly governed
organization) as investment in joint venture. Sec also Note 16.

M. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are rcported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. The excess of bond amounts issued to refund
previously issucd debt over the refunded debt are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. There is no

debt in the current year.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
M, Long-Term Obligations (Continued})

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during
the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums reccived on debt issuances are reportcd
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as ather financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt procoeds received, are teperted as debi scrvice expenditures.

M. Leases

Leases which meet certain critcria esiablished by the Financial Accounting Standards Hoard are classified as capital leases and are
recorded in the Statement of Net Position. Leases which do not meet criterina of a capital lease are classified as operating leases.

Q. Cempensated Absences

Accumulated vacation is accrued when incurred in the government-wide statements. Sick lcave, which does not vest, is tecorded when
leave is taken. All of the County’s major and minor funds that have accrued payroll periodically liquidated the compensated absences

liability.
P. Net Position and Fund Equity

Net Position

In the government-wide financial statements, net position is reported in three categorics: invested in capital assets, restricted net position;
and unrestricted net position. Net position invested in capital asscts represents assels less agcumulated depreciation less outstanding
principal of related debt, Restricted nct position represents net position restricted by partics outside of the County (such as creditors,
grantors, contributors, laws, and regulations of olher governments). All other net position are considered wnrestricted.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based

primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be
spent. Fund balance is reported in five components — non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coutinued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
P. Net Position and Fund Equity (Continued)
Non-Spendable - Includes items not immediately converied to cash, such as prepaid ifems and inventory.

Restricted — Inciudes items that are resiricted by external creditors, grantors or contributors, or restricted by legal constitutional
provisions.

Committed — Includes items formally set aside by the Board of Commissicners for a particular purpose. The Board of Commissioners
may commit funds balanccs by resolution, Commitments of fund balance must be made prior to the end of the fiscal year.

Assigned — Includes items assigned for specific uses, authorized by the Counly Assignments of fund balance can be done at any time,
including after the fiscal year end date,

Unassigned — This is the residual classification used for those balances not assigned 1o another category.

Use of Restricted Resources
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted resources first, then

unrestricted resources, as they are needed. When unresiricted resources (committed, assigned, and unassigned) are available for use it is the
County’s policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then unassigned as they arc needed.

Acconnting Pronouncement - GASB Statement No. 54

In February 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporiing and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The statement gnhances the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fimd
balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions, The County
implemented GASB 54 in the year ending June 30, 2011.

Q. Property Tax Calendar

Property taxes become an enforceable lien on July 1 for real property and personal property, Taxes are levied on July 1 and are payablc on
November 15 with 3 percent discount, or without discount in installments en November 15, February 15, and May 15. The County levies,
collects and distributes properly taxes for the taxing jurisdictions within its boundaries. Uncollected taxes, including delinquent amounts,
are considered substantially collectible ot recoverable through liens.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

R. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to asscts, the statement of financial pesition will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then.

In addition to lisbilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of rescurces. This
scparate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The govermnmental funds report unavailable
revenues from two sources: property taxes and special assessments. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources

in the period that the amounts become available.

S. Pension

For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflow/finflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense,
information about fiduciary net position of the Oregon Public employees Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/deductions from
PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee centributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with bencfit terms. Investments are

reported at fair value.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The County maintains a pool of cash and investments pool that is available for use by ail funds. Hach fund’s portion of this pool is displayed
on the financial statements as “Cash and investments.” Additionally, scveral funds hold separate cash and investment accounts. Interest
earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated to participating fumds based upon their combined cash and investment balances.

Investments, including amounts held in pooled cash and investments are stated at fair value. In accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporiing for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools,
investments with a remaining maturity of more than one year, at the time of purchase are stated at fair value. Fair value is determined at the
quoted market price, if available; othcrwise the fair value is cstimated based on the amount at which the investment could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than a forced liquidation sale. Investments in the Statc of Oregon Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP} are stated at fajr value.

Investments in the Local Government Tnvestment Pool (LGIP} are included in the Oregon Short-Term Fund, which is an external invesiment
pool that is not a 2a-7-like external investment pool, and is not registered with the U.S, Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment
company. Fair value of the LGIP is calculated at the same value as the number of pool shares owned. The unit of account is each share held,
and the value of the position would be the fair value of the pool’s share price multiplied by the number of shares held. Invesiments in the
Short-Term Fund are governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon Investment Council, and portfolio guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-Term Fund
Board, which cstablish diversification percentages and specify the types and maturities of investments. The portfolic guidelines permit
secutities lending transactions as well as investments in repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements. The fund appears to be in
compliance with all portfolio guidelines at June 30, 2016. The LGIP secks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share; an investment in the LGIP is
neither insured nor guaranteed by the FDIC or any other government agency. Although the LGIP seeks to maintain the valuc of share
investments at $1.00 per share, il is possible to lose money by investing in the pool. We intend to measure these investments al book value
since jt approximates fair value. The pool is comprised of a variety of investments. These investments are characterized as a level 2 fair value
measurement in the Oregon Short Term Fund’s audited financial report. As of Tune 30, 2016, the fair value of the positien in the LGIP is
100.6% of the valug of the pool shares as reported in the Oregon Short Term Fund audited financial statements. Amounts in the State
Treasurer's Local Government Investment Poel are not required to be collateralized.

Credit risk; Oregon statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the U.8. Treasury and U.S. agencies, bankers' acceptances,

repurchase agrecments, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor’s Corporation or P-1 by Moody’s Commercial Paper Record, and the
state treasurer’s investment pool. The Pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company and is unrated.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

As of June 30, 2016 the County had the following investments:

Fair Value

Investment Raling Maturities Activily Level Fair Value

Stale Treasurer’s Investment Pool Norating N/A Cuoted market price, Level | % 17,895,478
Corporate bond -Coca Cola AA 9/1/2016 Quoted market price, Level 1 1,076,658
Corporate bond -US Bancerp At 10/16/2016  Quoted market price, Level 1 1,204,508
Corporate bond -RY 1.2 AA- 172312017 Quoted market price, Level ) 500,625
US Agency-FNMA .75 AA+ 412012017  Quoted market price, Level 1 500,729
Corperate bond -USB 1.65 A+ 5£15/2017 Quoted market price, Lovel 1 135,548
Corporate bond -U58 1.65 A+ 5/15/2017 Quoted market price, Level 1 502,031
Corporate bond ~WFC 1.13 A 6f2{2017 Quoted market price, Level 499,848
US Agency-ENMA 1.05 AA+ 512017 Quoted market price, Level 1 502 294
US Treasury T-Bond 0.625 AA+ 11/30/2017  Quoted markef price, Level 1 500,312
US Agency-FHLMC .90 AA+ 12/28/2017  Quoted market price, Level 1 a70,086
Corporate bond -MRK 1.1 AA 1/31/2018 Quoted market price, Level 1 601,753
Corporate bond -Apple Inc 1.5 AA+ 5/3/2018 Quoted market price, Level 1 501,015
US Treasury T-Bend 1.0 AA+ 573172018 Quoted market price, Level 503,604
Corperate bond -NAB 1,875 AA- 7i23/20118 Quoted market price, Level 1 430,548
Municipal Bond —San Bernadina AA &/1/2018 Quoted market price, Level | 255,467
US Agency-FHLB 1.05 AM+ 0/28/2018 Quoted market price, Level 1 500,786
US Agency-FICO AA+ 11/2/2018  Quoted market price, Level 1 487,735
Corporate bond —Shell Intl 1.625 At 1141042018  Quoted market price, Level 1 880,504
US Treasury T-Bond 1.25 AA+ 11/15/2018 Quoled market price, Level 1 BOG,B7S
Corporate bond -JPM 2.35 A- 1/2812019 Quoted market price, Level 1 510,855
Cerporats bond -CSCQ 4.95 At 2/15/2019  Quoted market price, Level 1 549 562
Corporate bond ~-PFE 6.2 AA 3/15/2019 Quoted market price, Level 1 564,446
Corporate bond -FHLB 1.25 AA+ 6/21/2019  Quoted market price, Level 1 500,822
Municipal Bond ~-ORSGEN A4 4/1/2020 Quoted market price, Level 1 226,509
Municipal Bond ~-ORSGEN AA+ 5/172020 Quaoted market price, Level 1 509 595

3 30 227,648

Total Investinents
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk: The County does not have a formal policy that limits jnvestment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair-
value losses arising from increases in interest rates. The county’s policy te manage its exposure to fair-value losses arising from increases in
interest rates is in compliance with Cregon Revised Statutes.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The County does not have a formal policy that places a limit on the amount that may be invested it any one
insurcr. 87% of the County’s investments are in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool. The County’s policy does not allow for an investment
with any one issucr that ig in excess of 25% of the County’s total invesiments.

Custodial Credit Risk-Investments: This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the
value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside party. Investments of $11,373,765 have custodial credit risk because the related
securities are uninsured, untegistered and held by the County’s brokerage firm, which is the counterparty to those securitics. Investments in the
LGIP are not exposed to custadial credit risk. The Connty’s investment policy does not limit the amount of investments that can be held by

countcrparties.

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits: This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be returned. Deposits with
financial institutions consist of bank demand deposits. For the fiscal year ended Junc 30, 2016, the bank balances were $3,583,239. Of the
. bank balance, $ 403,572 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance. Oregon Revised Statutes require deposits to be adequately covered by
federal depository insurance or deposited at an approved depository as identificd by the Treasury. Effective July 1, 2008, state statucs (ORS
295.002) allow public officials to deposit public funds in one or more depositories currently qualified pursuant to ORS 295.001 to 295.108. As
long as the bank depository has entered info an agreement (ORS 295.008(2)X(b)} and has deposited securitics pursuant to state statues (ORS
295.015(1)), therc may now be on deposit at any one bank depository and its branches, a sum in excess of the amount insured by the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

A.  The County's deposits and investments at June 30, 2016, are as follows:

Cash on hand 3 13,444
Deposits with financial institations
Checking and saving accounts 3.024.664
Investments 30.927.846
Total cash and investments — all funds $33.965,954

B. Cash and Investments by fund:

Governmental activilies
Governmental funds

General $ 4,051,784
General Road 17,048,543
Law Enforeement 4-Year Levy 823 589
Health 7,883,975
Other governmental funds 1,739,015
Tetal governmental funds 31,546,906
Proprietary fund
Intcrnal Service 515,157
Total governmental activities 32,062,063
Fiduciary fund
Agency 1.903.891
Total cash and investments $33,965,954

41




NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

3. RECEIVABLES

Law Non Major
General Entorcement Vaterans Government
General R oads 4-Year Levy HomeLoan Health Fun ds Aponcy Totals
Property taxes $1,101,003 % _ §$1,894,794 § 117,098 % - % - % - & 3,112,895
A ccounts 46,017 21,3412 - - 2,107,488 42,721 - 2,217,568
In torest 7,103 28,202 1,362 - 13,040 1,423 51,130
A sseasment - 21,7349 - - - - - 21,739
Gross Receivable, net 1,154,123 F1,283 1,856,156 117.0%38 2,120,528 44,144 - 5,403,332
Less & llowance for unct - - - - (1,214,835) - - (1,214,833}
Receivables, net £1,154,123 $71,283 $1,896,156 % 117,088 % 905,693 £44,144 % - 4,188,497
4, INTEREUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
Due from Dug to
Fund Other Funds Other Funds
General $ 51,11¢ $ 23,042
General Road - 27,300
Law Enforcement 4-Year Levy 2,750 5,019
Health 2,522 20,213
Other governmental funds 800 4,584
Internal service 22 967 -
$ 80,158 § 80,158

The interfund balances between the G
mailing

information technology is centralized in the

eneral Fund and the othet County funds

depariments within the General Fund which bills the other funds for
General Fund and bills all other funds for services provided.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continned)

5. INTERFUND LOANS

On June 19, 2007, the General Road Fund made an interfund loan, which will be re
amount of $1,450,000 for the purchase of land. During the year, $10,314 of interest
to the General Fund for the purc
software and reporting system, During Fiscal Year 2009-10, interfund loans between the General Fund and the Road Fund amounted to
$890,000 (new assessment and taxation system $490,000, new District Attorney tracking s
Courthouse $170,000). The District Attorney loan was paid off in fiscal 2013
Tnterest payments of 523,047 where made to the Road Fund for those addifional
$12,000,000 was made from the Road Fund to the Velerans Home Loan Fund to purchase
representing the County’s contribution, for the new Veterans® Home, This
and interest of $143,787 was paid to the Road fund by the Veterans Home Loan
12, a $400,000 loan was made between {he General Fund and thc Road Fund to pur

2008-09, the General Road Fund made an $860,001 interfund loan

-2014. Those
interfund loans. In Fiscal Year 201

paid over a ten-year peri
was paid to the Road Fund on this loan.
hase of a new financial applications

loan will be paid off over a ten-year per
fund during the current fis
chase propetty next to

2012-13, the Health Services Fund loaned $1,500,000 to the Genetal Fund for the purchase of a building,

many parts of the Linn County Health services. During the 2013-14 fiscal year 2
Road Fund to purchase a marina on Fostor Lake; During 2014-15 a $956,000 loan
the Tangent property, a ncw home for the Linn County 4-H and extension district. In the current
Fund and Roads was made to purchase the Albany Police Station. As

$15,609,738.

6. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

be expended were as follows:

$900,000 loan was
between the General Fund and
year 2 $1,750,000
of June 30, 2016, the

Interfund transfrs used to pay for administrative scrvices by the general fund, and to reallocate financial resources to funds where they will

Fund Transfer In Transfer out
General $ 693,095 3 1,219,404
General Road - 291,538
Health 969,332 -
Law Enforcement 4-year Levy - 3482
Other Government Funds 253,353 401358
Total L_M_ ,..E_—_.=--Mg1
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od, to the General Fund in the
In Fiscal Year

ystem $300,000, and a new clevator in the County
loans will be repaid over a five to ten
¢-11, an interfund loan of
iand which was then given to the State of Oregor,
iod, Principle of $1,144.090

year 2011-

-year petiod.

cal year. During fiscal
the Sheriff's Department /Jail. In
which will be the new home for
made between the General Fund and the
Roads was made to purchase
loan between the General
combined balance of the interfund loans is




NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Changes in capital assets dvring the year were as follows:

Balances Balances
June 30, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 5 17,440,608 § 35911 % - & 17470519

Infrastruclure 101,651,338 1,440,159 - 103,001,497

Constroction in progress 3439.521 6,046,601 2,974,385 7.011,737
Total capital assets not being depreciated 122,531,467 8,122,671 2,974 385 127,619,753
Capital assels being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 51,392,968 - - 51,392,968

Intangibles 1,632,618 310,693 - 1,952,311

Equipment 23,909,427 1,300,223 200442 24,905,208

Infrastructure 11,419,791 2,581,959 - 34,001,750
Taotal capital assets being depreciated 108,354,804 4,701,875 gondd2 1 12,256,231
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 13,384,778 824,498 - 14,214,276

Intangibles 781,177 110,533 - 891,730

Equipment 15,943,002 394,817 718,118 16,119,701

Infrastructure 3,506,231 617,131 - 4,123,362
Total agcurmulated depreciation 38,615,188 2,451,999 718,118 40,349,069
Total capital assels, being depreciated, net 69,739,616 2,249 876 82,324 71,907,168
Governmental activities capital assets, net ) 162271,083 § 10,372,547 $ 3,056,709 § 199,386,921
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7, CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental activities:

(teneral administration and support $ 187,345
Local government services 51,841
Public safety 494,340
Health services 64,5601
Commumity development 442 280
Highways and streets 1,211,632
Tota! depreciation expense — governmental activitics $ 2,451,999

4. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS

At June 30, 2016 the internal service fund - owed the State of Oregon $2,853. In Addition, Linn County’s General Fund and Law Enforcement
Fund owed the Regional Fueling Facility $23.496 for gasoline used in June 2016.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
9, LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the following changes occurred with long-term pbligations:

Balances Balances Balances Due
June 30, 2015 Additions Reductions June 30,2016  Within One Year
Accumulated compensated absences $3,803,272 $3,860,878 $3,803,272 $3,860,378 $2,361,302
Totals $3,803,272 $3,860,878 $3,803,272 $3,360,878 $2,361,302

All major funds and the general grants fund have been ysed in prior years to liquidate the liability for comp ensated absences.

A. Capital and operating Leases

The County is also commitfed under various operating leases, primarily pertaining to equipment and office space. Lease payments for the

vear ended June 30, 2016, werc $216,260. Future minimum lease payments for the non cancelable leases are as follows.

Year ending

June 30,

2017 $173,008
2018 129,756
2019 86,504
2020 43,252
2021 21626

Total § 454,140
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. POSTEMPLOYMENT BEALTHCARE BENEFIT

The County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45 (GASB 45), Accouniing and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemnployment Benefits other than Pensions, in figeal year 2009. To comply with GASB 45, the County must account for
other postemployment benefits (OPEB) using the accrual basis of accounting rather than a pay-as-you-go basis. Under accrual accounting, &
liability must be recognized when employees earn OPEB rather than when the bencfits arc paid. To determine OPEB liabilities, the County
must obtain an actuarisl valuation every two years.

Benefit Description - Uniil they become eligible for Medicare, the County allows retirces to continue health insurance coverage for themsclves
and their qualified dependents at the samc rates as active employees, as required by ORS 243.303. Retirecs musi pay the entire premium in
order to maintain coverage; the County docs nof divectly contribute to the cost of premiums for retirecs. However, premiums paid by retirces
do not represent the full cost of providing health insutance fo retirees because the County’s rales are determined based on claims experience
for both active employecs and retites. Since refirecs typically have higher medical claims than active employees, medical coverage would be
more cxpensive for retirees in a separately rated health plan. Conversely, active employees would be expecied to generate lower medical
claims resulting in lower preminms, The additional cost of allowing retirees to purchase health insurance at 2 blended rate is called an implicit
rate subsidy and is required to be valued under GASB 45. The County treats this implicit rate subsidy as a single-employer, defined benefit
OPEB plan administered by the County only to satisfy the accounting and financial reporting requirements of GASE 45, and a separate
financial report is not issued. In addition to the requirements imposed by ORS 243.303, benefits previded to employees and retirees arc
established and may be amended by the County’s wourd of commissioners in conjunction with various collective bargaining agreemcnts.

Funding Policy - Retirees pay the entire cost of the premium at blended rates. The County's only contribution is the implicit rate subsidy
which continues to be financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. Contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the County’s
board of commissioners in conjunction with various collective bargaining agreements. All County funds contribute to the pay-as you go-basis.

Annual OPER Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The County’s annual OPEB cost is calenlated based on the annual required contribution
{ARC) determined by the actuary. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs
each vear and amottize any unfunded actnarial liabilities over a petiod nof fo exceed thirty years. The County’s annual OPEB cost, the
contribution, the percentage of annual OPED contributed to the plan, and the OPEB obligation were as follows:
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

10. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT {Continued)

Fiscal Annual % of OPEB MNet OPEB
Years Ended OPEB Cost  Contributions Cost Conlributed  Obligalion
63072011 ¥ 442478 3% 209,893 47.43% % 900,080
613042012 456,134 216,829 47.53% 1,139,385
63042013 404,304 162,115 40.09% 1,381,604
6/30/2014 416,397 200,632 48.13% 1,557,929
6/30/2015 419,722 255,670 60.91% 1,761,981
6/3042016 432,520 262,440 a0.68% 1,932,061

Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of July 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarially accrued liability was
$4,504,556 all of which is unfunded because the County has not set aside any assets to pre-fund OPEB resulting from the implicil rate subsidy.
The annual payroll of active employees covercd by the County’s healthcare plan was $38,616,194 and the ratio of the unfunded actuarially
acerued lability (UAAL) to covered payroll was 11.67 %. The County implemented GASB 45 in fiscal 2008-09, A multi-year schedule of

funding progress is presented as Required Supplementary Information.

2012 2013 2014 2015 _ 2016
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) § 454,523 $ 402,357 % 414427 § 416,864 $ 429,370
Intcrest on priot year Net OPEB obligation 36,004 45,575 55,260 03,918 70,479
Adjustment to ARC (34,393) {43,538} {52,796) {61,060) (67,329}
Annual OPEB cost " 456134 | 404354 416897 419,722 T 432,520
Implicit benefit payments (216,829) (162,115) (200,632) (255,670) {262,440)
Increase in net OPEDB obligation 239,305 242,279 216,265 164,052 170,080
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 900,080 1,139,385 1,381,664 1,597,929 1,761,981
Net OPEB abligation - ¢nd of year $1,139,385 $ 1,381,664 % 1,597,928 $ 1,761,581 $1,932,061
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continucd)

10. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions abeut the
prabability of evenis far into the future. Examples include assumptions about the future employment, mortality, and healthcare cost trends,
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual resuits are compared to past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. Calculations are base on types of benefits provided at the time of valuation and the pattern of cost-sharing between the
employer and plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective, including techniques designed to reduce

short-term velatility in actuarial accroed liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,

For the July 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the actuary used the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. Actuarial assumptions included a
discount rate of 4 percent, inflation rate of 3 percent, projected salary increnses of 3 percent per year, and a healthcare cost trend rate of 7
percent initially, and reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent after sixteen years. The UAAL is being amoriized over an open

period of 30 years as a level percentage, The amortization method used is the level % of payroll and an open period is used.

11. RETIREMENT PLAN

Gieperal Information about the Pension Flan.

Plan description. The County is a participating employer in the Oregon Public Employec Retirement System (PERS)—a cost-sharing
multiple employer defined penefit pension plan administered inder ORS 238 and Internal Revenue Service 401(z) by the Public
Employees Retirement Board {PERB). PERB issucs a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at

httn:ffwv.orcgnn.gnvfpersfPagesfsectinnfﬁnancial reports/financials.aspx.

Plan Benefits
All benefits of the System are established by the legislature pursuant to ORS Chapters 238 and 238A.

Tier One/Tier Two Retirement Bencfit. Tier One/Tier Two Retiement Benefit plan is closed to new members hired on or after August

79, 2003.

Pension Benefits

The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13 retiroment benefit options. These options include
survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds, The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average salary. A percentage (2.0
percent for police and fire employecs, 1.67 percent for general sexvice employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the
final avcrage salary. Benefits may also e calculated under either a formula plus armuity (for members who were contributing before

August 21, 19381) or a money match computation if a greater benefit results.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued}
11. RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a scrvice retirement allowance if he or she has had a
coniribution in cach of five calendar years or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing employment with a participating employer
(age 45 for police and fire members). General Scrvice employees may retire after reaching age 55, Police and fire members are gligible
after reaching age 50. Tier One general service employee benefits are reduced if yefirement cceurs prict to age 58 with fewer than 30 years

of service. Police and fire member bencfits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 35 with fewer than 25 years of service, Tier Two
members are eligible for full benefits at age 60.

Death Benefits
Upon the death of a non-retived member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance {accumnlated

contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account
balance, provided one or more of the following conditions are met:

e the member was employed by a PERS employer at the time of death,

« the member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-covered employment,

e ihe member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or

e the member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death.

Disability Bencfits
A membet with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other than duty-connected causcs may receive a non-

duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for
disability bencfits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time
is computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) when determining the monthly benefit.

Rencfit Changes After Retirement
Members may cheose to continue participation in a variable equities investment account after retiring and may cxperience annual bencfit

fluctuations duc to changes in the market value of equity investments. Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefils are adjusted amually through cost-
of-living changes, The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual benefit.

OPSRP Pension Program {OPSRI" DB)
Pension Benefits. The Pension Frogram (ORS Chapter 238A) provides benefits to members hited on or after August 29, 2003.

This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions. Bencfits are calculated with the following formula for
members who attain normal retirement age: Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final
average salary. Normal for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of retirement credit. To be clagsified as a police and
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)

11. RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

fire member, the individua) must have been employed continuously as a police and fire member for at least five years immediately
preceding retirement.

General Service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Normal retirement age for
general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retitement credit.

A member of the OPSRP Pension Program becomes vested on the enrliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600
hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and, if the pension program is
{erminated, the date on which terminaiion becomes effective.

Death Benefits
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as

the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwisc have been paid to the deceased member.

Disability Benefits
A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before The member becomes disabled or a member who beconics

disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month
of employment before the disability gccurred,

Benefit Changes After Retirement
Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes. Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are
adjusted annvally through cost-of-living changes. The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the antual benefit.

Contributions,
PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined eates. These contributions, expressed as a

percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. This funding policy applies to the PERS
Defined Benefit Plan. Emplayer contribution tates duting the period were based on the December 31, 2013 actuatial valuation as subsequently
modified by 2013 legislated changes in benefit provisions, The rates based on a percentage of payroll, first became effective July 1, 2015.
Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2016 were $5,830,307 excluding amounts to fund employer specific liabilities.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resourees and Deferrcd Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the County reported a liability (asset) of § 31,119,510 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability (assct). The
net pension liability (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2015, and the fotal pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Connty’s proportion of the net pension Jiability was based on a prajection of
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continaed)
11, RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

the County’s long-ierm share of contributions 1o the pension plan relative to

the projected contributions of all participating County’s,

actuarially determined, At June 30, 2015, the County’s propartion was .5420 percent, which was the same as its proportion measured as of

December 31, 2013.For the year ended June 30, 2016, and the County recognized pension expense of $(26,188,697).

At June 30, 2016, the Couniy reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

following sources:

Differences between expected and

acinal experience.

Changes in Assumptions.

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments.

Changes in propottion share and differences between

employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions.

Subtotal-Amortized Deferrals (see table below)
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources

§ (5,906,550) reported as net deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension

repotted as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

Tollows:

32

related to pensions from the

Deferred Qutfiows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Rcsources
N 1,678,122 § -
- 6,523,355
1,513
1,062,830
1,679,635 7,586,185
4,279,244 -
Y 5,958879 § 7,586,185

e —— e e ——————

engions resulting from County contributions subsequent
liability in the year cnded June 30, 2016, Other amounts

will be recognized in pensiofn expense as




NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

11. RETIREMENT FLAN {Continued)

Year ended Junc 30:
2017
2013
2015
2020
2021
Thereafter
Total

Actuarial assumptions

The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2015, through June 30,
the Ticr One/Tier Two component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this metho
amouni for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary 10 finsnce benefits earned by the employees durin
which are being amortized over a fix

amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities,
accrued liabilities being amortized over 20 years. For the OPSRP Pe

53

(2,981,525)
(2,081,525)
(2,981,525)
2,965,402
72,623

(5,906,550)

2017, were set using the projected unit credit actuatial cosl met
d praduced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1} an
g the current service year), (2} an

ed period with new unfunded actuarial
f the PERS Defined Benefit Pi
d amount necessary to finance benefits earned
4 actuarial acered liabilities, which are being

nsion Program component o
produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimate
by the employees during the cutrent service year), (b) an amount for the amartization of unfunde
amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuatial acerued liabilities being amortized over 16 years,

an, this meihod



11, RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contioued)

Valuation date Diceember 31, 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2015
Experience Study 2014, Published Septemnber 2015
Report

Actuarial cost method

Entry Age Normal

Armaortization method

Amortized as a level percentage of payrol! as layered amortization bases
over a closed poriod; Tier One/Tier Two UAL is amorlized over 20 years
and OPSRP pension UAL is amortized over 16 years

Asset valnation method | Market value of assets

Inflation rate 2.75 porcent

[nvestment rate of 7.75 percent

e

Projected salary 3.75 percent overall payroll growth; salaries for individuals arc assumed

increass to grow at 3,75 percent plus assumed rates of merit/longevity incrceses
hased on service. For COLA, a blend of 2% COLA and graded COLA
(1.25%/0.15%) in accordance with Moro decision, blend based on
service.

Mortality Healthy retirces and beneficiaries:

RP-2000 Sex-distinct, generational per Scale AA, with collar adjusiments
and set-backs as described in the valuation. Active members: Mortality
rates are a percontage of healthy retirce rates that vary by group, as
described in (he valuation. Disabled retirecs: Mortality rates are a
percentage (65% for males and 90% for females) of the RP-2000 static
combined disabled mortality sex-distinet table.

into the future. Actuarially

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve esiimates of
determined amounts are subject

the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the probability of events far
to coniinual revision as actual rcsults are compared to past expectations and new
of even numbered years, The methods and

estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31

gssumptions shown above ate based on the 2014 Experience Stu
2013.

dy which reviewed experience for the four-year period ending an December 31,



NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
11. RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan. The projection of cash

flows uscd to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of the contributing employers are made
at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary nct position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan invesiments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.

The following presents the County’s proporticnate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as
well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point Jower (6,75 peicent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8,75 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease (6.75%)  Discount rate (7.75%) 1%lncrease (8.73)

Linn County's prepertionate share of
the net pension liability {asset) S 75,105,780 § 31,119,510 % {5,949,359)

Since the December 31, 2013 actuarial valuation, the system-wide actuarial accrued liahility has increased primarily due to the Moro
decision and assumption changes, along with interest on the liability as current active members get closer io retirement. The Oregon
Supreme Court decision in Moro v, State of Oregon, issued on April 30, 2013, reversed a significant portion of the reductions the 2013
Oregon Legislature made (o future system Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) through Senate Bills 822 and 861. This reversal increased
the benefits projected to be paid by Employers compared to thosc developed in the prior actuarial valuation, and consequently increased
plan liabilities. The employers’ projected long-term contribution effort has been adjusted for the estimated impact of the More Decision.
In accordance with statute, a biennial review of actuarial methods and assumplions was completed in 2015 to be used for the December 31,
2014 aciuarial valuation. After completion of this review and subscquent to the measurement date, the PERS Board adopted several
assumption changes, including lowering the investment return assumption to 7.50%, which will be effective Januaty 1, 2016 and will be

included in the next update.

A deferred compensation plan is available to employees wherein they may execute an individual agreement with the County for amounts
earned by them to not be paid until a future date when certain circumstances are mel, These circumstances are: termination by reason of
death, disability, resignation, or refirement. Payment to the employee will be made aver a period not to exceed 15 years. The deforred compensation
plan is ene which is authorized under TRC Section 457 and has becn apptoved in its specifics by a private ruling from the Internal Revenue Service.
The assets of the plan arc held by the administrator for the sole benefit of the plan participants and are not congiderced assets or liabilities of the County.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued})

11. RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Individual Account Program - IAP Plan Deseription:

In the 2003 legislative session, the Oregon Legislative Assembly created a successor plan for OPERS. The Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan
(OPSRP) is effective for all new employees hired on or after August 29, 2003, and applies to any inactive OPERS members who return to employment
following a six month or greater break in service. The new plan consists of the defincd benefit pension plans and a defined contribution pensicn plan
(the Individual Account Program or IAP). Beginning January 1, 2004, all GPERS member contributions go inta the [AP porlion of OPSRT. OPERS’
members retain their existing OPERS accounts, but any future member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP, not the inember’s OPERS
account, Those employees who had established an OPERS membership prior to the creation of OPSRT will be members of both the OPERS and
OPSRP system as long as they remain in covered employment. Members of OPERS and QPSRE are required to contribute six percent of their salary
cavered under the plan which is fnvested in the 1AP. The County makes this contribution on behalf of its omployees. Tho County contributed
approximately $2,171,529 for the year ended June 30, 2016, Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP Individual Account Program {IAP) may
teceive the amounts in his or her employee account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal
installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 minimum distribution

limit,

Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available anline, or by contacting PERS at the following
address: PO BOX 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-3700.

12, RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various tisks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to
employees; and natural disasters. The County carries commercial insurance for risks of loss including general liability, automobile liability,
automobile physical damage, property coverage, workers’ compensation, boiler aud machinery, public official bond and employee dishonesty
coverage. Scitled claims resulling from these risks have not exceeded commoercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

The County has an Unemployment Insurance Fund (an mnternal service fund) to account for self-financed unemployment insurance. [runds of
the County participate in the program and payments are made to the fund based on estimates of amounis needed to pay claims. The claims
liability of $90,604 is based on the requirements of GASE Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if
information pricr to the issuance of the financial statemcnts indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated, Changes in the fund’s claims liability amount during the past

three years were a3 follows:
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

12, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued})

Beginning Changes in Ending
Fiscal Year Liability Estimates Payments Liability
2013-14 $ 115,668 $ (51,622) % 187,266 $ 123,200
2014-15 123,200 166,048 89,080 131,928
2015-16 131,928 160,215 62,317 90,604

13, CONTINGENCIES

The County is contingently liable in respect to lawsvils and other claims incidental to the ordinary course of ils opcrations. The likely
outcome of these suits is not determinable at this time and the County does not believe that the ultimate regolution of these lawsuits will have a

material effect on the County’s General Fund.

14. COMMITMENTS

A Construction commitments Linn County has the following active construction projects as of June 30, 2016

Remaining
Spent to date Commitments

Bridge/ Road Improvement $ 5,524,852 $ 16,210,000

Sherifl Communication s 1,586,885 500,000
Totals $ 7,111,737 $ 16,710,000

Road and Bridge improvements are funded primarily by state and federal grants.

B. Loan comumitments

The County has agreed to make funds available for Linn Regional Fueling Facility in the amount of $100,000 for normal operations.
The loan is available for drawn downs beginning July 1, 2015, All advances must be repaid by May 31, 2016.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

15.

16.

FUND DEFICITS

At June 30, 2016, General Fund had a deficit fund balance of ($7,197,339). The General Fund has an interfund loan balance with
the Roads Fund and the Health Fund of $8.588,593 as of June 30, 2016, as well as an accrued payroll of $1,995,758 which
reprosents the reason for the deficit. The loans will be paid back with general fund revenue over the next gight years.

At June 30, 2016, the Law Enforcement 4-Year Levy Fund had a deficit fund balance of (§412,240) primarily due to recording the
accrued payroll.

At Junc 30, 2016, the Veterans’ Home Loan fund had a deficit fund balance of ($7,014,511) primarily due to an interfond loan
with the Roads Fund. (Discussed in previcus notes, and the MD&A)

JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

The Counly is a participant in two jointly governcd organizations and manages the daily aperations of each organization:
e The County does not have an equity interest in the Linn County Emergency Telephone Agency.
e The County has a 34.6 percent intercst in the equity of the Linn Regional Fueling Facility.

Financial statements are available for these organizations as follows: Linn County Emergency Telephone Agency, | 115 Jackson
Street SE, Albany, Oregon 97321; Linn Regional Fueling Facility, 3130 Ferry Street SW, Albany, Oregon 97321,

Both agencies have stable funding sources and any future liability to Linn County arising from normal operalions is remote,
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Linn County Road Dapartmant
Planngd versus Actual Malntenanas

Five Years - 2012-2016

Flscal Yea rmng Juna 304
| 2016-15 [ 201415 [ 201314 [ 2012-13 | 2H1-12

. I .o B . Artarjals R L . : . .
Planned [ 481,567 | § 525016 | § 171,790 | & 1B0AGT | & 173,064
Actual 5 405,005 | § 626,678 | § 166,525 | § 167,704 | § 176,957
. ' CR . ) L L, ) cnl[ﬂmm s o : . . . .
Planned 5 3,872,405 | § 4016508 | § 3,260,373 | § I0R4T22 [ § 3,304 585
Actual 5 3,781,581 | § 4022816 [ § 3,242,553 | § 3012117 [ § 3,378,028
AN : . - Logal o o
Flanned 3 5,013,088 | § __ 5474537 | § 4728318 | 5 4417480 | & 4, 763,368
Actual 3 5152701 | § 5482466 | & 4874237 | § 4243086 | 5 4,870,531
atal Plannod 3 73078 [ 8 10017461 [ § 5,180,481 | § 7542590 % 8,241,121
atal Actual 5 0,430,370 | § 10,031,660 | § 5,066,005 | § 7,614,006 [ § 5,426,524
[ffarance 3 (257.200)] § 113,5005)] § B350 | 3 128552 | & {(185,404]
Hatas:

Linn County's Gravel roads are not included above amounils &8 they are ona depreclalion schadule.
The above smounts ane derved from reporis produced through the IRIS cost accountlng syslen for actue! and The Road Departmen! budgel documenis for
planned.

Differencs batween planned ant acluak maintenance for FY 2012-2013 was due {o nol expending the SE00,000 budgeatad for azphall ovedays.

Ditferencs batween planned and actual malnfenance for FY 2010-2011 was primarlly related to the additional aaphalt paving praject unded by the American
Racovary Acl.

Pavament Condition Indax {walghted average]

Functional dass 2016 2014 2012
Arterlal 8k 891 e
Collector 77l is9 FLE |
Resldental § Lacal 9.8 8.8 814

The pavernenl condition index (PCI) Tor each road sagment fs calcutated wslng the Slreet Saver Pavement Managemenl Syatem [rom Malropdtitan
Transportation Commiseton and Assoclallon of Cregon Countles. The PG is based on & scafe of 0 to 100 where 100 |6 considered a new pavermenl and 0 is
congidered complelely feiled. The PCI value is abtalned by subtracting polnts based on several dlstrass Factors noled during tha visual Inspechion of the
pavament. The PG| 15 used lo dlassly pavemenls a3 vary good (100-85), good {B4-60}, poor (53-35), and very poor (34-0). Linn Counly has adopted a policy
of malntalining its road network al a conditlon level of geod or better {PCI of 85 ar above) on & welghled average besis.

Moderale fluclualions in PCI are nomal and are the result of the slallstical sampling precass as well as maintenanca perfommed bebwzen the Inspacticn cycles.
The 2018 pavement inspection data Is (he mest recani and |s refiecled in the table abave. Alag included are ine mainlznanca trealments parformed in the

summer af 2016, The next schaduled pavement Inspeclion cycls 18 2018.
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LINN COUNTY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

OTHER POST EMPFLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2H6

Acluarial Actuarial Value Actuarial Accrued UUAAL a5 a %o of
Valuation Date of Assets Liability TUJAAL Funded Ratio Covered Payroll Covared Payroll
172008 ¥ - b 3,614,984 % 3,614,984 ¥ - £ 31,569,264 11.45%
F/2010 - 4,241,537 4,241,537 - 32,440,648 13.07%
F42012 - 4,007,352 4,007,352 - 34,012,953 11.78%
712014 - 4,504,556 4,504,556 - 36,346,056 12,39%

The above table presents the most recent actuarial valuations for the County's post-retirement health and welfare benefits plan, and it provides

information that approximates the funding progress of the plan. The next vahuation will be as of July,1 2016.
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LINN COUNTY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016
Last 10 fiscal years

(a) {b} (bfe) Plan fiduciary
Employer’s Employer's (e) NPL as a net position as
Year  proportion of proportionate share  Linn County percentage a percentage of
Ended  the net pensior of the net pension covered of coverad the total pension
June 30, liability (NPL) liability (NPL) payroll payroll liability
2016 05420 § 31,119,510 k3 36,141,418 86.1 % 1.9 %
2013 0.5419 (12,283,908) 33,973,436 (36.2) 103.6
2014 0.5419 27,655,258 32,600,717 848 2.0

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determined at 12/31 and rolled forward to the measurement date.

These schedules ate presented lo illustrate the requirements to show infonnation for 10 years. However, until a full 10 year trend has been compiled,
information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.
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LINN COUNTY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
Fer the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016
Last 10 fiscal years

Coatributions in Contributions
Statutorily relation 1 the Cantribution Emplover's as a percent
reguired stalutorily required deficiency coverad of covered
conte lbution contribution {excess) payrall payroll
Wwie 3 5,830,307 5,830,307 § ¥ 36,141,418 16.13%
2015 5,093,522 % 5,003,522 - 33,973,436 14.99%
2014 4,901,413 4,901,413 - 32,600,717 15,03 %

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determined at 12/31 and rolled forward to the measurement date.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, uniil a full 10 year trend has been compiled,
information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information iz available.
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LINN COUNTY

COMEINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENTIE FUNDS

June 34, 2016
Comer County
County Law Feneral Like Preser-  Historical — Forest! County Federal
Fair  __Library COrants _ Trails vation  Restoration  Park Sehool Forest Totals

ASSETS

Cash and investmenls $ 46500 $ 241,052 3 860490 § 378190 § 120271 $ 17,197 $ 75315 % - % - 5 173015

Recoivables, net of allowance for dovbtful accound: - - 44,144 - - - - - - 44,144

Due from other funds - - 800 - - - - - - SO0

Diue fram ather governmeants - - 54,861 - “ - - - - 54,961

TOTAL ASSLTS $ 46500 § 241,052 § 960205 § 378,100 F 12027 $ 17,197 § 75315 % - % - § 1,833,820
LIABILITIES

Accounts payeble § 11,001 % a0 § 114,124 § - ¥ - & - ¥ 5t4 % - % - 5 126248

Due to other funds 324 7 3,753 - - - - - - 4,584

Dug to other governmenta - - 238 - - - - - - 234

Unearmned revanue - - 44,144 - - - - - - 44,144

Payroll, payroll taxes and benefits payable - 3,304 91,257 - - - - - - 94,651

TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,925 4,010 253,317 - - - 54 - - 269,866
FUNL BALANCES

Restricted for:
Grantsf minor funda 34,675 237,042 706,778 378,190 120,271 17,197 14,801 - - 1,568,954
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 34675 237042 06,778 378,190 120,271 17,197 74,801 - - 1,568,954
TOTAL LIADBLITIES AND FUMD BALANCES  § 46,500 § 241,052 $ 060295 % 378,190 § 120271 § 17,197 § 75315 § - ¥ - § 1,838,820
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LINN COUNTY

COMEINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENIMTURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NOMMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

REYVENUES
Intesgovemmenial
Licenses, pormits, (ines and servives

Interest earnings
Miscellaneous

TOTAl REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Public safcty
Communily development
Apporionments 1o school districts

Tndiresl cast allocation

TOTAL EXPENDIVURRS

Excess {deficiency) of revenues evet axpenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (1ISES])

Transfers in

Trensfers out

TOTAL CFLITR FINARCING SOURCES (USES

Met change in [ursd balances

Fund balances el beginning of year
Funl balancas {deficil) a1 end of year

Year Ended June 30, 2016
0-1-1
Emegency Comer County
County Law Zenaral Dike Cormtnni- Pressp- Histarical Farzat! County Federal
Fair 1 Tibrary Granis __Treila CAligns vation Resteralion Furk School Porast Tatals
§ 51667 % - % 1,513,812 § 81131 $§  A67Q52%F 8 - & - & 57517 % O15R7ALY 363,157 4,277,240
300,433 108,577 055,234 n - - - 13,350 - - 1,377,554
- LM 5217 2280 - 701 157 i) 1,280 - 12,324
- - - - - - 50 - - - 250
354,100 110,348 2474 263 B3 413 670,528 Tol qa7 71,775 1,538,719 362,457 5,667 A08
- 03,660 1,138,361 - 670,525 - . - - 145,802 2,052,745
431, 245 - 1495872 - - 297 7,646 152,031 - - 2. 138,084
- - - . - - - - 1. 535710 - 1,538,719
- 18,455 12,440 - - 13,465 - . - . 44,361
481,248 112,115 2646673 - 670,525 13,763 7646 153,061 1,534,719 Ladr Ak 5773882
(127,148} 1,767} (1724103 3,413 - {12,052 (7.239} {81,256 . 213,355 (16,114}
60,500 3838 13452 - - 176,016 - - - - 15335
- - (15999 - - {133,032 - - - {252,325) {40],376)
B0 3538 {2,503 - - 42984 - - - {252,325 {148,005}
(67, 148) 2,071 (174,210 83,413 - 29,922 (7,239 (81,236} - (389707 {254,117
101 823 234 971 #81 GER 294777 - 90, 34% 24436 156,057 - 3BT 1,423,071
£ 4675 0§ 3T & TORTTE 5 ATRIS0 8 - % 120271 & 17197 £ 7450 % - - 1,568,354
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LINN COUNTY

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted for particular cxpenditure purposes.

County Fair — Financial activities of the fair are accounted for in this fund. Primary sources of revenue include state apportionments,
operation of the annual fair and transfers from the County General Fund. Expenditures are primarily for administration, operation of
the fair and maintenance of fair buildings and grounds,

Law Library — This fund is used to account for moneys collected which are restricted for the purpose of providing the County with a
law library. Revenue is derived from court fees, a portion of which is specified for the Law Library Fund. Expenditures are for the
operation and maintenance of the law library.

General Grants — This fund is used to account for revenues from special taxes, grants and other sources for which expenditures are
restricied by law.

Bike Trails — Designated Oregon highway tax apportionments for the construction of bike frails are accountcd for in this fund,

9.1-1 Emergency Communications — 9-1-1 emergency resources received from the Oregon telephone excisc tax and from the various
cities in the county joining in intergovernmental agreements are accounted for in this fund. Expenditures from the fund during the
year represented contract payments for operation of a 3-1-1 center,

Corner Prescrvation — This fund was established to account for expenses incurred ot authorized by the County Surveyor in the
restoration of government corners. Fund revenues are generated by fee charges for filing and recording instruments under ORS

205.130(2).

Historical Restoration — The fund was created for the purpose of restoring and preserving the Moyer ITouse, The Moyer House isa
museum located in the community of Brownsville.

County Forest/Park — The fund was created to accept all proceeds from the sale of timber products or mineral resources from land
included in the Forest/Park System. The (und is used to pay the expense of administering, operating and acquiting property for the
Forest/Park System, or for development of and operating the County Park System,

County School — Revenues of this fund consists primarily of ptoperty taxes and federal and state forestland sales, Proceeds are
distributed to the school districts in Linn County.

Federal Forest — This Fund was created in fiscal 2001-02 to account for U.8. Forest Service Title 11 and III funds. Distributions from
the Forcst Service are recorded in this Fund and transferred to other county funds as actual project expenses are incurred.



LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
COUNTY FAIR - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year Ended June 30,2016
Crriginal Final
Budget Budget Agtual Yarlance

REVENIIES

Cregon State Lottery distribution 5 51,000 3% 51,000 % 53,667 % 2,667

Patking fees 31,000 31,000 27,848 (3,152}

Spongorship fees 134,000 134,000 90,387 (43,613

(iate fees, camival fees, entry fees 100,000 100,000 85,348 (14,052)

Booth revenues, contracts, miscellaneous 100,925 115,925 5,850 {4,075}
TOTAL REVENLIES 416,925 431,925 354,100 {62,825)
EXPENDITURES

Materials and services 459,925 474,925 471,540 1,385
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {43,000) {43,000} {119,440) {76,440
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfer from General Fund 60,000 60,000 60,000 -

Transfcr to General Fund (27,000} (27,0003 - 27,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 33,000 33,000 &0,000 27,000
Net change in fund balance (10,0000 {10,000) (59,440} (49,440}
Fund balance at beginning of year 10,000 10,000 105,940 05,940
Fund batance at ¢nd of year ¥ - 5 - 46,500 % 46,500
Reconciliation to GAAP basis:

Due to other Funds (824)

Aceounts payable {11,001)
Fund balance {GAAP basis) at end of year 3 34,675
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LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
LAW LIBRARY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

REVENUES
Law libraty fees
Rcscarch and card fises
Tnteresl eatnings
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDIT{IRES
Personal services
Materials and serviccs

Indirect cost allocation
Capital aullay

Contingengy
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (deflciency) of revenues over expenditurcs

OTIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer {from Gonersl I'und

Met change in lund balance
Fund balance at beginning of yeer

¥und balanee at end of year
Reconcillation to GAAT basist
Agcounls peyeble
Nuc to other fund
Payroll, payroll taxes and benefits payable

Fund balance {GAAP basis) at end of year

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Budget
Qtipinal/Final Actual Varlance
L} 30228 % L0g,s1e & 19,291
10 3t 48
Q00 1,774 87
10 - (10
o, 148 110,348 20,200
TEA10 50,733 27,657
94,400 45217 54,583
18,455 18,455 -
20,600 . 20,000
111,245 111,245
370 114,425 212,485
{237,762} 4.0 233,685
3.600 1,338 kL]
(233,962) (239 233,723
233,562 241,281 7,325
$ - 241,052 § 241,052
{60%)
M
3.394)
§ 237,042
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LINN COUONTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANTF CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (§ON-GAAP AUDGETARY BASTSE) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL GRANTS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Conifuned on poge 70

Budpet
REYENTIES Original Final Achuat Varanes
Conimissianers:
Commissioners' grants 320,000 & 320,000 ¥ 357, TED 37,780
Famings on deposits Qo0 900 2.676 1,776
Reimburzements and miscellaneons feos 137,000 T37.0H00 388,332 (348,668}
Pagks;
Rental paymetits 2,600 2,500 £,8500 {3000}
Beibursementy - - 7.569 7,869
Donations! Gifts 1,000 1.000 32058 2,205
Grants 270,000 272,500 - (2725000
Earnings en deposils 325 325 k1L {13)
W utine pas tax 69,534 59,534 73,512 3,078
BV license fecs 420,000 424,00 458,523 38,523
Fair 40,138 411,130 LA (2.138)
Sherilf grants- Suppoert 77,857 177,857 133,20 {4.566)
Criminal 206,908 212 408 196,539 [15,86%)
Comections 43 064 43,004 53442 10,378
District sllarmey grants 141,867 141,867 123,641 {12,226)
Dog Control denalion 13,000 15000 16,883 1,883
Juveaile:
Liraols 350,834 Jad 834 305,221 (57,5343}
Contragts and Redmbursements 195,687 195,087 113,280 (82,407
Gieneral Admikistration -Linn Benton Mediation Gran 75,733 15,732 13,860 {1,933
Bamings oo deposit 00 SO0 932 412
Qencral seryices Orants 26001 25001 21,220 (4,781)
Encryy Ltility Reimbursement 5,000 5000 3116 (1,380
Fair and Expa 90,0320 91,048 34,369 (56,671)
TGTAL REVENUES 3,165,960 3,177,980 2,420,303 (151,171
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SCIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXTENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUNID BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAATP BUDGETARY DASIS) AND ACTUAL
GFNERAL GRANTS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND {Continued)

EXFENDITURES
Cotnmissioners' grans
Weterat's serviccs
Parks grants
Feir
Sherifl Supporl

criminal

porreeiiong
Dog Control
Diiztrict attorney granis
Tuvenile high tisk
General Adnunistration
Cleneral Sorvices
Fair and Expao
Investment Incentive contracts
Incfirect Cost aliocation
Contingency/Obligated reserves

TGTAL EXPEMDITURES
Baxccss (defiziency) of evenues gver expenditurcs

OTIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfis out

Toal other financing sources {uscs)

et chengs in fund balance
Fund balanes of bepinning of your

Fund balanee &t end of year

Reconcilialion to GAAF basiw
FhIY adjustmont
Adjust Cash
Due from other povernments
g from othter funds
Agcouns payable
Duge to other govermucnts

e to other funds
Fayroll, payroll taxcs and benglits payatls

Fund balanes (GAAP basis)at end of year

Budget
Crriginal Final Aol Vorance
L] 1,240,800 § 1,240, 4H % 150,665 & 490,135
9,207 9,207 - 9.207
241,609 844,100 FTO46T 264 542
77134 77,130 26854 50,266
170,676 178,976 154,174 14,302
320,105 125,608 HLETS 104,924
99,627 176,167 152,690 L6477
45,766 45,756 7,048 38,718
201409 201400 191,955 2454
46,293 440,783 395,833 53430
105,454 111,746 B0 BB7 30,559
154,184 154,184 20,915 124,269
), 020 91040 31,683 59,337
47100 47,100 - 47,100
12,240 12,440 12,440 .
127,930 119,634 - 119,630
3,980 770 4,084 302 2,651,300 1,433,202
(823,410 (B06,612) (210,457) 676,115
39,5040 349,500 13,499 (26,00
{42,000 (42,000 (15,994} 26,001
[2 500 £2.500) £2.500) .
(B26,310) {902,112) {232,997) 676,115
BG40 11 1,092,530 133,738
b - % - 859,851 3§ §50.853
437
08
54,864
200
(114,1243
(235}
3.753)
(91,257
i T, 778
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REVENUES
Maotor vehicle apportionments
Interest eatnings

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITLRES
Capital cutlay

Het change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BABIS) AND ACTUAL
RIKE TRAILS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Budget
Original/Final Actual Variance

3 31,190 5 81,133 b {57

700 2,280 1,580

§1,200 83,413 1,523

31,807 - 381,307

{200,917} 33,412 333,330
299,917 284,717 {5,140}

3 - £ 378,190 3 373,190
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LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET {(NON-GAAT BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
9.1-1 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Year Ended June 34, 2016

Budget
Qriginal/Final Actual Variance

REVENUES

9-1-1 emergency communications tax B - i 239,142 5 239,142

Citiza' 9-1-1 emergency communication tax - 431,383 431,383
TOTAL REVENUES - 670,525 61,525
EXPENIMTURES

haterinls and services - a70,525 (570,525)
Met change in fund balance - -
Funhd belance at beginning of year - -
Fund balance at end of year 3 - ¥ - 5 -




LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON GAAP-BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
CORNER PRESERVATION - SPFECIAL REVENUE FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Original Final
Budget Budpet Aclual Varianes
REYEMNUES
Interest eamnings b o) % ain 3 701 § (181}
TOTAL REVENUES G600 {00 T0L 972
EXPENDITURES
Materals and services 18,381 18,381 297 18,084
Tndirect coat allocation 13,4608 13,466 13,466 -
Capital outlay 3 3 - 3
Contingency 13,800 13,800 - 14,800
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 45,650 45550 13,763 31,887
Excess (deficiency) of revenuss over expenditurcs {(45,050) {45,050} (13,062) 31,088
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from General Fund - Cleiks Office 161,000 161,000 176,016 15,016
Transfer to Surveyor Conteact/GIS Condract {173,301) (173.301) {133,032y 40,269
Total ather financing sources {uses) {12,301) f12,301) 42,984 55,285
Met change in fund balance {57,351) [57,351) 29,922 §7.273
Fund balance at beginning of yeat 57,351 57351 on,34% 32,998
Fund balance at end of year 5 - 5 - ¥ 120,271 3 120,271

13



REVENUES
Interest earnings
Ionations and gifts

TOTAL REVEWLIES
EXPENDITURES
Material and services

Capital cutlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

et change in fund balance
Fund balanee at beginning of year

Fund balance st end of ycar

LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
HISTORICAL RESTORATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Budget
Original/Fina} Actual Variance

b 15¢ 5 157 i 7
3,000 250 (2,730)
3,050 _—@1 £2,743)

4,552 - 4,552

28,650 7 46 21,004

33,202 7,648 25,556

(30,052) (7,239) 22,413
30,052 24,436 {5,616)

] - 5 17,197 ) 17,197

™




LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FOND BALANCE

REVENUES
Firewood sales and U.S.F.8 Camp Grounds
Timber sales
Federal projects
Interest satnings

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
higterials and services
Capital outley

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NMet change i fund balance
Fund balates et beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Recenciliatlon to GAAP basis:
Accounts Payable

Fund balance ot end of year

BUDGET (NON-GAAP GURGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
COUNTY FOREST/PARK - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Year Ended June 2016
Original Final
Budget Budget Aciual Variance
3 - 3 - 13,350 3 13,350
372,025 372025 - £372,025)
- - 57517 57,517
100 100 B08 802
372,525 372,125 71,775 (300,350)
28,125 66,125 38,505 27,620
355,000 355,000 114,223 240,777
383,125 421,123 152,728 268,357
{11,500 {49,000) (0,953} (31,953}
11,000 44,000 136,268 107,268
h] - % - 75,315 b 75,315
{314}
74,501
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LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANI CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUES
State forest land sales

Federal foreat land sales
Private Car Co Tax
Electric co-op tax

Mizscellaneous fees
Interest oarnings

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Materials and Services

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

HUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
COUNTY SCHOOL - SPECIAL REVENUE EUND

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Budget
Qriginal/Final Actual Variance

] 1,200,000 L 559,869 3 (640,131}
1,000,000 874,985 (125,015)
5,000 2,580 {24207

85,000 97375 12,375

300 2 620 2,320

304 1,200 490
2,291,100 1,538,719 (752,351)

2,291,100 1,538,719 752,381

$ - 3 - 3 -

L



LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET {(NON-GAAF BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FEDERAL FOREST - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Year Ended June 3, 2016

Original Final
Budpet Budpet Actual Vatiance
REVENUES
Federat Forest £ 379,234 b 376,234 363,156 % {16,078)
EXPENDITURES
Materials and services 165,880 165,880 149,801 16,079
Excoss {deficiency} ol revernues over expendgitures 213,354 213,254 213,355 1
OTHER FINAMNCING SOURCES (USES):
Tranzfer ont (232,325) (252,225) (252,325)
Net change in fund balance (38,971) {33,971} (38,970) |
Tund balanee at beginning of year 38,971 38,971 38,270 (1)
Fund balance at end of yzar 3 - % - - % -
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LINN COUNTY

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

W

Unemplovment Insurance — This fund began in 1990-91 with funding obtained through action by the County Comrnissioners in
requesting monies that had accumulated in the State Employment Division Local Government Benefit Trust Fund. Currently,
this fund is self-financed by obtaining monies from other County funds, Expenditures from the Unemployment Insurance Fund
pertain to curent year unemployment claims,




LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (MOMN-GAAF BUDGETARY HASIS) AND ACTUAL
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

REVENUES

Heimbursements
Interest eamings

1I'TAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Program matagement
Claim payments
Conlingency

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Lixcess (deficicnoy) of revenues over exponditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transler to Gengral Fund
Total other financing sources {uscs)

Wei change in fund balance
Fund balance at boginning of year

Fund balenee at cod of year
Reconclliation fo GAAP basis:
e fram other fundg and availablo
THue to othor goventuments

Claims liability

MNet posificn at end of year

Year Ended June M, 2016

Budget
Original
Ludget Final Actual Yatiance

¥ 250,000 § 250,000 % 264,803 14,303
F00 300 2,808 2,008

250,800 250,200 267,701 16,901

2,500 2,500 1,728 712

200,000 200,000 0,530 135,470
133,300 133,300 - 133,300
335,800 335,800 62,318 273,482
{85,000) (85,000} 205,383 (256,581)
{200,000 (200,000 - 200,000
{200,000) {200,000} - 200,000
{263,000 {285,000} 205,383 490,383
283,000 283,000 309,774 24,7714

] - % - 515,157 515,157

22,967
(2,853}
{90,604}
b 444,667

TR




LINN COUNTY

AGENCY FUNDS

M

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
gavernments and/or other funds.

Taxing Districts — These funds are used to record transactions pertaining to individual taxing districts within the County.

Treasurer’s Departmental — These funds consist of undisiributed taxes and other receipts held by the Treasurer for various
County departments and other governments.

Property Taxes — This fund accounts for uncollected but collectible property taxes.

Justice Courts, Sheriff and Certain Others — These funds consist of undistributed collections, some of which will be due to the
Statc.

Regional Fuel Facility — This fund handles cash transactions involving the buying of diese! and unleaded fuel, and the selling of
such to certain local governments inclnding fhe County.



LINN COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGLS IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Taxing Districts
Agscts

Cash and investingnts
Liabilities

Amaunts held it trost

Treasurer's Departmental

Anacis
Cash and investments
Accounts meelvable

Tiptal asscts
Liahilifjes
Duc o olher governments
Amounts held o trust

Total ltabilitics

Property Taxes

Asgela
Cash and investnionts

Froperty taxcs rsoeivable

Total azzeta
Liakilitics
Duie to other govemiments
Amounts held in trust

Total Babililies

Contliived on page 8

AGENLCY EUNDS
Yenr Ended June 30, 2016
Balances Balances

Junc 30, 2015 Additions Deductions June 30, 2016
b T06,994 % 141,315,619 141,724 104 298,309
L 06994 ¥ 141,315,619 141,724,104 298,509
3 259M7 % 2,368,805 2,302,059 326,493
a64,212 363,924 f6d, 212 563,924
i 923,559 % 2,032,729 2,966,271 290,417
5 o6d,212 % 563,024 664,212 563,924
259747 2,368,805 2,302,059 326,493
L 923,859 % 2,932,719 2,966,271 E00 417
] 195,127 % 141,315,619 140,905,388 1,104,858
10,945,176 11,321,650 10,945,175 11,321,850
i 11,640,303 % 152,637,269 151,851,064 12,426,508
$ 664,212 % 563,924 664,212 563,924
10,574,091 141,315,619 140,429,126 11,862 584
b3 11,643,303 & 141,879,543 141,093,338 12,426,508

"



COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS {Continued)

Ralances Balancas
Junc 30, 2015 Additions Deductions Junc 30, 214
Justice Courts, Sheriff and Cerdain Others

Asscls

Cazh and investments 5 105,064 % 716,547 46,187 T, 824

Accounts reccivable 516,739 545,406 516,739 545,408
Tulal assels by 625,303 % 1,262 353 1,262,926 625,230

Liabkilities

Due 1o othet governments 5 15,082 % 19,081 19,082 15,081

Amounts held in trust 606,721 1,243,272 1,243 844 604,149
Tatal liabilitics % (25,803 % 1,262,353 1,262,526 625,230

Rtegianal Fuel Facility

Aggets

Cash and investmeonts ¥ anusl % 713,135 708,878 04,208

Duc fram olhet governments 78,313 62515 78313 62,815
Twial assets 5 168,264 % 175,950 787,191 157,023

Liabilitizs

Accoutita payshle 5 75,3541 % 36,136 75,341 36,136

Amaunts held in trust 92,923 739,814 T11,B50 120,387
Total labilitics by 168,264 % 775950 TE7,191 157,023

Totals - All Agency Funds

Azupis

Cash and investhents 5 1,E60.683 $ 286,430,125 286,387,114 1,903,392

Properly laxes receivable 10,945,176 11,321,650 10,945,176 11,321,650

Accounts recoivable 1,180,951 1,102,330 1,180,951 1,109,330

Due from other governmants 78,313 62,815 78,313 f2,E15
Total assels L} 14,065,223 % 294,523,920 298,591,556 14,397,657

Liabilitics

Accounts payable L 75,341 % 36,130 75,341 36,136

Due to other povernments 1,347,508 1,146,920 1,347,506 1,146,920

Amounts beld in trust 12,642,476 286,983,129 286,410,983 13,214,622
Tata! tiabilitics L 14065323 % 288,168,194 287,831,830 14,397,657
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LINN COUNTY

OTHER SCHEDULES
—— e I v e M e

Financial schedules in this subsection display accountability for clected officials and property tax transactions,




LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTARILITY FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Justice
Caurts
Coumis- District  Centtal Linnf Tax
AszscEsor Clerk sioners Aftorney Lebanon Sheriff Surveyor {Collectar Treasurer Tofals
On hand - June 30, 2015 (1) 3 LIS o % 50 % 2000 % 0109064 % - % e 0% 650§ 36947307 5§ 37,080,191
Heceipts 660,163 1,626,804 Ta44,129 340,347 079,517 5,531,319 492,721 136,760,602 150,178,447 297,323,056
Turnovers and disburscmesnts:
‘I's Caunty Treasuter (669,163) (1,626,804}  (F44,129) (340347 (716,947) - (4927211 (136,760,609) (141,350,720)
To Others - - - - (275,151) {5,521,317 - - (152,963,245  (138,769,713)
On hand - June 3, 2016 £5} £ 870 % 200 % 50 § 2000 % 25,483 3 - & 50 % 650 § 34,162,569 § 34262812
{f]  Consists of!
Dicposils with Counly Treasurce b3 - 3 - 8 - % - 5 - 3 - - ¥ - § 16,201,719 16,201,719
Depozila with Local Govermmient
Investiment Poal - - - - - - - - 17,960,222 17,960,222
e to County Treasurer - - - - (66,997) - - - - {65,997)
TJue to State of Cregon - - - - {21,685) - - - - (21,635
Change and revolving [unds 70 200 50 2,000 185,164 - 50 650 68 189,552
Toluls by B70 8 208 % 50 % 000 3 26,483 3 - 3 505 650 5 34,162,509 §  34,202812
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LINN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Corrections

Tax Recoivable Current Discounts Interest on Cazh and Receivable

Year &f30/2015 Levy Allowed Delinguent Taxes Collections Adjustrents af302015
2013-16 % - § 146,093,564 % 3,792,449 % 69,435 § 136,760,610 § (7,814,599 3 5,380,245
2014-15 5,249,025 {200) 153,436 2,125,903 (176,859 3,104,409
2013-14 327,769 ] {62) 181,063 986,309 (225,735} 2,240,726
2012-13 2,346,715 ] {ZM 264,005 959,412 {313,107 1,338,172
2011-12 1,379,924 1] (15) 152,544 414,819 {202 ,644) 914,590
2010-11 1,544,985 0 0 51,890 18,476 533,598 1,456,003
Totals 3 13,302418 §F 146,093,564 § 3,792,143 % 877,371 § 141,315,619 § (B 192,340 § 14,434,545

Fund

General L 1,101,003
Law Enforcement 4-Year Levy 1,394,704
Veterans Home Loan 117,098
Apency 11,321,650
Total 3 14,434,545

H2



STATISTICAL SECTION




STATISTICAL SECTION

This patt of the County’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as & context for understanding what the
information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the county’s overall
financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 83-88

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the counly's financial performance and well-being have
changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 89-G2

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Courly's most significant locol
revenue source, the property tax.

Debi Capacity 93-96

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordabiiity af the county’s
current level of outstanding debt and the County s ability lo issue debi in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 57-99

These schedules present information to help the reader understand the environment within which
the county’s financial qotivities take pioce.

Operating Information 100-102

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data io help the reader understand how the
information in the county's financial report relates to the services the county provides and the activities

it performs.



Primary govermment activilles
Net Invesiment In capital aseate
Reatricted
Unrestricted

Total Primary govarnmant net pogltien

Linn County
Wet Position by Camponant
Ten Fizseal Years
(ncezual basis of accounting)
{amounts ¢xpressed In thouzands)

Z00T 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 FOTE] 2018
% 180,222 % 166,872 & 170723 § 173808 % 175,712 § 176725 3% 170484 § 187,332 § 192211 5 1903687
4,733 553 - - - - - 28 358 3,758 18356
36,252 30,634 42,598 38,895 25,003 23 634 22745 (3433 ;10.031} an,nza}
5 201,187 3§ 207060 & 331§ 21280 $ 200,715 & 200,309 & 205.559 [ FiFR LT ELL 2813
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Expanses

Gowanwmenal Aclivilles
Grneal edminisbeallon and aupport
Local gavamment servicae
Public safedy
Heehh seevicas
Cornmunlty dewalment
Highweye end siroals
Appoetionmants by schow Relricls
Intevect on long term dabt

Tolal prémany gevammant expansgs

Frogram Revenuga
Govammenial Actlviles
Fues, Flngs, and Charges for sarvice
saneral gavernmant
Pulsllz Safely
Heahh gervicas
Roads
Community Development
Operating @rants and Conbitutions
Capltal Granka and Conlribullons
Tolal peogram ravenuos

Ganarel Revesua changa In Net Poaition

General Ravenues and Other Chanpges In
Het Fosliion
Govemmanizl activilas:
Taxes
Propady taxas
Interest and Investmeant aarmings
Caplal confribution
Logs of sale of cevital assels
Unreztricted grants and contdbwilons

Todal primery governmental activities

Change In Het Posltion
Gewarnmental acllviles

Linn County
Changes In Net Poslticn
Ten Fiscal Years
{accrual basle of acsounting}
{amounts expressed in thousands)

2007 2008 2005 2010 2014 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
8T B 8,025 7,596 6,558 8268 § 6.150 7 056 6,767 B, 450 8,236
2,382 2,388 2,586 2442 3,189 3,371 2,222 aHy 2678 4411
20,417 27,828 31,122 52,967 31,305 31,413 20,568 50,427 92,864 48,278
15118 16,344 16,502 17,568 18,708 20,247 20,068 20,725 20,5238 az142
7101 8,543 1776 B.2¢0 10,838 BA7T &,652 6,646 : A Fal 9877
5,448 11,604 12,032 12,687 13,018 12,404 10,788 B.a0e 8500 13,380
2,926 2,861 2676 2687 a3z 1314 1,406 2000 1,793 1,539

79 54 24 13 - 267 27 - -
76185 3 73,838 81,301 §3.480 [TREEIE S 81,288 77 &3 75 887 50050 115 GBS
2048 % 1,824 1,829 1,844 1617 % 1,491 1,826 1,083 1518 4,529

3347 3270 3,847 3,835 3,194 2902 e 2,466 2,559 3,257

1581 1501 1,358 4,432 1,191 1185 2620 852 1,021 1,072

1678 1768 1,338 1,371 1,141 1760 1540 2735 2618 2042

2881 2062 2,780 2847 2,204 2958 3223 2,550 3,084 3,125
38E22 24830 41017 34,604 37,947 36,972 32,096 5T 308,450 a7,357

ABaF1 5 A6 52,074 46,720 46,714 _§ 47,288 45574 45,522 50268 a0, 282
Ta141 § (27,294 {26,237} {57,761] [&7.859) 3 (34118) 32,848 133,346} 16,752 {66,381}
21456 § 24644 25,388 26,285 3513 § 26373 26,464 27,561 30,077 31,765
2,360 1,830 1,082 478 Fi8 107 117 418 80 3i4
{148) ) - - - - - - - -
AT 1,238 8,00 11,478 10,282 7,283 6,952 16,678 12,568 13,267
31,034 33812 35,481 37,242 ELRLT 33,763 38 53 43 853 42 728 45,348
4920 % 8,517 6,264 (G150 {12087} % {355 4,001 10,508 23 684 £21,035)

B4



Linn County
Governmental Activitles Revenueas By Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{accrual basis of accounting)
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Charges Licenses, interest

Flecal Propertty for Permits and

Year Taxes Intargovernmental Services and Flnes Miscellansous Total
2007 5 21434 5 45,707 $ 5342 3 3,12 $ 3,336 5 79531
2003 24,644 43,082 5712 3,820 2,797 80,055
2009 24,865 47,818 £,631 4.608 2,413 88436
2010 25,284 45,380 G,667 4,445 1,215 82,971
2011 25,137 48,771 §,708 3,842 1,022 82,480
2012 26,241 44,014 5,178 4118 505 81,156
2013 26,464 42,5456 7.517 5011 518 B2,056
2014 27,561 50,827 8,343 4228 1248 80,208
2015 29,852 51,291 8,479 4,320 2280 94,232
2016 577 50,392 7,155 4770 2580 96,474

is)




Linn County
Fund Balancas of Governmental Funds
Last 10 flacal Years
{modifiad accrual hasls of accounting
{amocunts expressed in thousands)

2007 2008 2009 2010 201 2012 2013 2014 2016 2016
Geperal fund
Mcn spandahle
Committed o
Interfund loan
Assignaed to
Unasslgned $ (508} & (44T} § (F43 & (1,188) § (2198) $ (4611) § (8082 $ (554§ (6284 § (7.197)
Total genezal fund {E98) 447} 743y (1,188) {2,109 4511} {6,082} G54 (5200 {7,797}
Al other governmental fund
Non spandabla
Invantoriss 1,015 1,540 1,580 1,718 1,452 1,164 1051 1,289 1,078 1,327
Committed o
Interfund laan 2.m2 1,920 1,704 2,787 2,258 2,828 14 582 14,813 13,747 15,810
Capital Projects 5418 3.070 2,228 0 1] 0
Restricted for
Roatds 33742 33,702 36,387 32,444 14,010 16,355 18,033 20,318 20,840 16432
Publlc Safety 1] Ly 0 ] 0
Healih Ssrvices 2,151 2,181 2871 3,748 5,112 §,629 5079 6,054 8012 7,580
Granta/Minor Funds 2,204 2453 2,045 1,448 1,160 1,467 1,344 1,682 1,831 1,675
Aaslignad ta '
Unassigned {5E3) (rig (303} (403) {FoB8} {8o0) (11,088} (10,868} (e, 156) {7,424}

Total all ather governmantal funds 41,457

e GASH 54 wag implimeniad in FY 2010-11 requiring new fund halance catagonies. Prior years have baen restatad to mest the
new provisions of GASE Staternsnt 54 fumd bafance catagoras.



Revenungs

Taxes

Licanses and Parmils
intargovemmental

Chargas for services
Ivestrnant aamings
Miscellanaous

[ndiract cost relmbursement
Tolal revaniies

Expendliuras
Seneral govemment {lacal governmant)
Public Safety
Hezalth Servlces
Comrmunity development
Highways and sireets
Apporfionments to schoal distets
Capital outlay
[ndirect sogt allocation
Dbt senvice

Frincipal

Inlerest
Taotal axpendituras

Excess of revanuas
over [undar) expendiiures

Other {inanclg scurces {LUsag)
Transfars In

Transfars oul

Refunding Bond Issus

Payments bo rafunded bond estrow egent
Total ofher {inancing aources (Lasa)

Mat charga In fund balances

Debt servica ey @ percaniage on noncapital

expandiuras

{mod fled ascrual basly of accountng)

LInn County

Laat 10 Flacal Years

{amounts exprassad In thousands}

Changes In Fund Balances of Governmantal Funds

2007

2008

2003

2010

2011

2012

amna

2014

2ME

2076

$ 21434 § 24508 § 24061 § 25170 § 24941 § 26341 § 26595 § 27100 § 204853 § 31677
3712 2,045 4,607 4,421 3,738 4,118 4,016 3,050 4321 4,770
45708 43082 47216 45360 46,771 44,015 42,548 50,827 61,262 50,383
5,342 6,692 £,A30 6,631 6.508 8,177 6,025 5,940 6479 7,155
2614 1,880 1,054 487 422 121 480 422 326 521
720 808 1,358 727 800 384 212 225 223 102

- - - - - - 1,710 1,736 1,730 1,866
79550 00007  @6420 82786 082,081 81,156 51,684 0,200 54,737 9B 474
5,897 9,025 8,957 9,479 8,030 B,5G3 E,703 8,250 D404 8,621
78451 27485 30287 31008 90866 30,281 29,155 20,889 29,546 35,346
19023 15288 16,387 17419 18822 20,175 20,042 20,628 24 BEB 24,643
7,063 8343 7,769 7,504 19,683 8,224 6,458 6,395 &,765 7,544
i5.832 16488 15305 18287 15374 13,859 0,508 8,468 10,745 11,691
2,928 2 851 2,876 2,567 2,321 1,314 1,408 2,000 1,733 1,639
1,450 - - . . - 4,741 10,242 B.704 6,178

- - - - - - 1,710 1,736 1,733 1,865

BAD 759 663 295 . - - - . -
70 54 26 13 - - 267 279 247 211
B3553  B0.203  PBag4D 85002 05,184 81,656 52,281 A7 BAG 1,795 03,698
{4,023) {228) 2780  (2856) ({4,103 {500 {707 2,324 2,497 {2,182)
5,608 6,191 5,547 4,293 3,643 4,048 2,201 1,958 1,082 1,515
(GE0B)  @101) (BS54 (4293 (364Y {4,048} {2,201} {1,986} {1,98%) {1,915
$ (4023) § (226} § 2780 § (2.856) ${14,103) $ _ (500) § (707 252 3 2,407 (2,162
1.4% 1.0% 0.8% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.2%

a7




LINN COUNTY
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE
Last Ten Flscal Years

Flscal Cittes and Per

Year Federal Stata Qther Totals Caplta
2006-2007 & 13,252 452 % 29086336 3 3,360,065 5 45707 851 3§ 422
2007-2004 13,427,702 27,325611 2,328 684 43,081,897 394
20082008 14,808,326 25,657,810 7,354 751 47,818,987 434
2008-2010 14,288,642 27 720,567 3,351,255 45,260,464 412
2010-2011 13,256,530 29,310,032 4125077 48,771,639 401
2011-2012 10,658,575 29,581,522 3774442 44,014,540 375
20M12-2013 0,828,807 20,874,876 2,742,715 42 548,198 360
2013-2014 12,168,848 33,017,481 5,840,590 50,827,320 431
2014-2015 10,191,186 35,049,234 8,051,326 51,291,746 429
2015-2016 9.418,795 33,264,502 ¥, 708,775 50,392,072 422

1

Note: 2007-2008 changed to using the Federal Awards revenue Information using the accrual basls.



Fiscal

Yoar

Endad
Jung 30

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
D14
2016
2015

Nota:

LINN GOUNTY
Assassad Value and Est/matad Actual Yalue of Taxable propgerty
Lest Ten Flacal Years
{In thousends of dallars)

Tatal Aspozsad

Lass Total Texable Direct Estimated Valuo &8 2
Manufactured Tax Exempt Assossad Tax Real Markaet  Porcentage of

Roal Property  Blructures Farsonal Ltllities Real Proparnty Valua Rata Yalue Aciun| Valug

5 6242503 % 116980 & 227064 % 2331953 § 2i48% § 6.B0D420 § 3.3888 % 9140480 74.40%
6,514,208 118,307 241 961 241,048 21,688 ?.UQS,EBE 3.6827 10,308,773 68.22%
6,842,925 113,772 252 789 245 35% 23,505 74432340 3.6232 10,710,762 58.38%
7110783 114 488 254,022 308,826 25,280 7080, 737 8100 12,381,268 G2.68%
7,361,330 113,366 231,304 328,812 27518 8,007,343 4.0436 10,679,845 TA.80%
1416 A7 108,088 228,878 393,11 28,110 B, 118,134 40436 10572473 TE.FOR
7,628,006 107,561 240, 404 396,608 27,141 356,450 40436 10,215,135 TP.27%
7,932,202 1{6,888 254,054 425 7103 30,625 B.Go0,022 4.2500 11.285676 78.20%
8,214,875 112,203 275483 448 542 31,384 8,017,710 42036 12,118,178 T4.41%
8,643,774 121,034 200,402 460,848 32,034 9,390,024 42838 13,241,005 70.92%

State Ballat Maasure No. 50, which bacama affective In 1997-38, astabllshed the maximum
asspssod valus of properly In ths stata for the 1987-98 tax year a6 80 percent of the property’s real
market valua In the 1996-85 tax year and then limits any Increase In max!mum assessad value for
tax yaars following 1957-3% to three percont per year, but permits susessed values to be adjusted
for naw propery or property Improvemaents and certaln other avents.

Source: Bummary of Assessmant and Tax Rell - Linn Caunty Aasessor and Tax Gollecter.




Fiscal
Yoar

2007
2008
2009
2010
201
2012
2013
2014
2015
2018

1) Includes Unlen High Schoel District

Average Property Tax Rates

Linn Gounty

Direct and Overlapping Governments

Per £1000 of Assaased value

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Cilies Rurat Firg Districts Schools Districta

Linn-Banton

Linn Swest 1 Swaat Central Coemmunity

County _Albany _Lebanon Homa Albany _Lebanon _ Albany _Lebanon _ Home Linn Coliege
3.39 8.02 5.92 a.11 218 225 4.89 7.41 6.67 £.00 .68
389 7.86 8.40 846 215 2,80 817 147 653 5.04 Q.67
3.82 777 8.2 28567 215 249 8.20 792 6.58 8.21 0.68
361 7.78 619 886 218 2.48 623 7.00 6.50 5.08 0.68
4.04 781 8.86 a8.43 213 247 819 7.25 6.59 4.62 0.68
4.04 7.50 8.18 8.64 215 248 820 7.01 7.00 8.27 0.67
4.04 .66 5.87 8.64 245 248 B.31 7.02 704 4.62 0.69
4.28 7.59 5.84 8.64 215 247 6.32 7.08 690 4.62 0.68
4.20 7.48 547 864 214 247 6.29 6.94 5.96 5.03 0.65
4.29 1.81 530 10,43 215 2.46 .08 7.02 .94 4.62 0.68

All of the listed districts are componet paria to the total direct rate, which is the sum of the component parts

Source: Summary of Asgessmant and Tax Roll - Linn County Assessor and Tax Cellecter.
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LINN COUNTY

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
June 30, 2016

2016 2007
2015-16 Percentape of 2006-07 Percentage of
Taxabhle Total Taxable Taxakle Total Taxabla
Aszeesgad Assessed Assessad Assasaed
Principal Taxpaysrs Type of Business Valua Rank Value Valus Rank Valus

Fort James QOperating Co, Timbear & Forest Products 3 108,553 1 1.13% $ 145541 2 2.30%

Pacific Powsr & Light {Paclficorp) Ltitity 104,058 2 1.11%, 60,825 4 1.00%
Lowas HIW Inc Retall digtribution 93232 4 0.99%,

Wah Chang Rare Metals 101,776 3 1.08% 53,385 5 0.80%
Ceonturylink Communications 72782 5 0.78%

Target Gorporation Retall distribution 70637 & 0.75% 74,892 5 1.20%

Weyerhasuser Company! Willametta Timber & Forest Pradusts gs1tH 7 0.60% 363,200 " 5.70%

Northwest Natural Gas Litility 61,820 8 0.66% 6,682 8 0.60%
Comcast Corporation Communications 56,205 9 0.80%

Entek Manufacturing inc. Plastic Manufacturing 24,877 10 39,415 7 0.60%

Orggon Freeza Dry Foods Inc Produce Frocessing 27 932 10 0,40%,

Fope & Talhot Reconstituted Wood Products 48 661 8 0.80%

Oraglan Metallurglcal Corp Rara Metals 28 444 g 0.40%

Total Principal Taxpayars 768,951 7.80% 879,176 13.80%

Totala 3 9,380,023 100%: $ 6,300430 100%
————— = — ] ]

Source: Summary of Assessment and Tax Roll - Linn County Assessor and Tax Collector.
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Linn County
Property Tax Lavies and Collactlons
Last Ten Flscal Years
{Amounts sxpressad in thousands)

Fiscal Year Taotal Tax Collected within the
Endet Lovy for Flscal year of the Levy Collactlons In Total Gollectlons to Date
June 30 Fiscal Year — Amount  Percenfage of Levy  Subsequent Years Amount Percentage of Lavy
2007 21,582 20,618 83.78% 1,387 21,882 100.00%
2008 25,088 24,088 896.00% 1,004 25,089 100.00%
2009 25,590 24 387 85 30% 1,203 25,580 100.00%
2010 26,141 25017 85 70% 1,124 26,141 100.00%
2011 26,895 25,834 85 30% 1,155 26,8688 99.958%
2012 27,337 25,4488 83.23% 1,716 27 202 899.51%
2013 27.650 28,572 86.51% g0& 27 477 89 38%
2014 20,476 20,198 95.80% 8204 30,180 89.06%
2015 20,478 29,318 85 20% gva 28,990 98.40%
2016 32,523 31,320 86.30% - 31,320 05.30%

Note: Above data relates only to Linn County funds and does nof Includs the other governments in the County.

Source; Summary of Asgesement and Tax Roll - Linn County Assessor and Tax Collector.
Summary of Property Tax Collectlons




Dabt lImit
‘Tatal nat debt applicabls te limit
Legal debt margin

Total net deist applicable to the limit
as a parcentage of debt limit

LINN COUNTY
COMPUTATICN OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
Last Ton Flscal Yeara
{amounts exprezzad in thousands)

2007 2008 2008 2010 2011 012 2013 2014 2018 2016
135,574 % 141431 § 145,117 & 156722 % 15401 % 160,147 § 6269 % 173800 % 180882 § 187,800
664 12 - - - - - - - -
{35076 § 141,418 % 148,147 &  i65,722 § 164021 § 160147 § 16269 $ 173800 § 80082 § 167800
0.41% 0.01% ¢.00% 0.00% Q00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Legal Dokt Margin Calsulatlon for Fiacal Year 2018
Esfimaled Actual Taxahble Value 0,390,024
Lrabt Il {2% of tolal assessed valua) 157,800,480
Cebl applicable to limit:
Ganaral chiigation bonds -
Less: Amount g2l asida for repeymeanlt -
of genesal obligalion debt
Tolat net application La limlt -
Legal Debt Margin § 167,600,480




Linn County

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Yaars

{amounts expressed in thoueands, except per capita amount)

Goneral Total
Oliligation MNotes Capital Primary
June 30, Population Bonds Payahle Leases Government
2007 108,250 1,095 622 - 1,717
2008 109,320 * 565 03 - 858
2009 110,185 - 295 - 295
2010 111,356  As of June 30, 2010 linn County has no Qutstanding Debt
2011 116,672  As of June 30, 2010 linn County has no Qutstanding Debt
2012 117,340  As of Juns 30, 2010 linn County has no Outstanding Deit
2013 118,035  As of June 30, 2010 lInn County has no Cutstanding Debt
214 118,865  As of Jung 30, 2010 linn County has no Qutstanding Debt
2015 118,705  As of June 30, 2010 linn County has no Outstanding Debt
2016 120,660  As of Juna 30, 2010 linn County has no Outstanding Debt

* Par Pariiand State Center for Population

{1} Information not avallable at this time

Percentage
Parsonal of Personal Par
Income Income Caplta
1) {1) {1
1} {1} (1)
0
0




LINN COUNTY
RATIO OF BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
Laet Ten Flscal Years
{amounts expressed In thousands, except per capita amount)

Parcentage of

Amount Estimated Estimated
{Seneral Assessed Avallabie In Actual Actual Taxable
Fiscal Obligation Value Dabt Servica Taxable Value ' of
Yaar Bonds  {In Thousands) (1} Fund Total Valua {1} Property Per Caplta?
2007 3 1,006 % 6821893 % 841 3 54 § 6,800,430 0.01% 5
2008 S6% 7,115,524 553 12 7,053,536 - -
20089 &) 7. 455,844 a 0 7432 229 - -
2010 o 7,788,117 i 0 7,780,736 - -
2011 0 8,034,863 0 0 8,007,344 - -
2012 o 8,147,244 0 g 8,119,134 - -
2013 0 8 354,805 d 0 8,013,475 - -
2014 o 8,650,022 0 9| 8,690,022 - -
2015 0 4,049,105 o] g B.o17, 720 - -
2018 0 6,422 053 4] o 9,350,023 - -
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LINN CQUNTY

GOMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAFPING BONDED DEET

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDE
Juna 30, 2048
General Obligatian Percentage Amount
Bonded Debt Outstanding  Applicable to Applicabla ko County
Jurisdiction {In Thousands) County {In Thougands)
Diract: Linn County - 10005 b -
Ovarlapping:
Gltlas: Albany 17,6056 T2.21% 12,713
Brownsyiila 2,960 100.00% 2,960
Hatsay - 100.00% -
Harrizhury - 100.00% -
Laebkanon 12 565 100_00% 12 565
Mill iy 884 78.898% 680
Millarsburg - 100.00% -
Sod aville 21 100.00% 21
Swaat Home - 100.00% -
Community Collages: Chemeketa #2315 0.07% TOB
Lane 53,025 1.08% 573
Lint-Banlon 24 000 47.55% 16,167
Schogl Digfricia: Corsallis 26,820 2.07% &55
Cantral Linn - 100.00% -
Eupena 248,145 0.08% 148
Lang 7.350 0.03% 2
Greater Albany 7,758 F2.73% 5,640
Harrlsburg 1,285 g0.14% 1,168
Jafferson - 6.83% -
Lakaran Communlly 41,515 100.00% 41,515
MNarlh Santiam 21 630 18.98% 4322
Banliam Canyoh - 48.17% -
gelo 2,785 100.00% 2788
Sweel Home 13430 100.00% 13,420
Willamalls ESD - 75.00% -
Water Districts; Grand Prairia 516 10%.00% 616
Rural Fira Districts:  Jefferson - 40.53% -
Brownsyllla 1415 100.00% 1415
Idanhe-Dalrail - 5.85% -
Lebanon 1,850 100.00% 1,850
Harrizhurg - 100.00% -
Lyans - 100.00% -
Stavton 858 10.26% 8s
Sweet Home Firefimbulance 255 100.00% 255
Total Ovetlapping 576,584 120,168
Tolal Cirec] and Overlspping 578,954 3 120,168

Source: Oregon Bfata Treasury, Dabt Managament Divislon.
Gonoral obligatlon bandad debt sutstand ng does not include Bancroft and othar

Naote:

self-zupporting genaral obligatian and limlted tax konded dabt.

L]




Fiscal

{1)
{2)
{3)
4
(2)
(6)

Year

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

LINN COLINTY
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
Last Ten Flecal Years

{1 County (2} ()] {2) 4} {6} Linn
Personal Per Capita School Unemployment Marriage County
Population Incoms Income Enrollment Rate (%} Licenses Employees

108,250 3,292,512 29,115 18,163 8.2 o042 657
109,320 3,482 5615 a7 {5) 6.5 825 650
110,185 3,345,707 28,842 17,855 15.4 838 660
111,355 3,397,004 20,070 20,094 12.7 823 846
116,672 3,563,431 30,083 {5) 11.4 744 851
147,340 3,667,273 30,984 18,068 10.8 ara Gaz
118,035 f5) (5} 18,325 89 792 603
118,865 £ (5} 22,523 B4 812 605
119,705 {a} f5} 21,617 7.0 836 635
120,880 {5} [£)] 18,347 6.2 836 636

Portland State Center for Populatfon

Bureau of Economic Analysis

Linn-Bonton-Lincoln Education Service District Envoliment Racords

County Clerk Detall Records

Not available at this time

Linn County Adopted Budget

(7) Regional Economic information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis
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LINN COUNTY
PRINCIPAL ENMPLOYERS
Juna 30, 2015

2016 2007
Percentage of Percentage of
Mumber of Tatal County Number of Total County
Employer Employeas Rank Em nt Employess Rank Employment
Samaritan Heaith Services 1,600 1 A5 1,300 1 Rk
ATl (Allvar: Oremeat- Wah Chang) 1,600 1 6% 1,198 2 28
Linn Benton Communlity Gollege 1,100 Z 2 5% 1,012 3 3 404
Greater Albany Publlc Schools 1,035 3 2.3% 947 4 2.2%
Linn County 7oo 4 1.6% 700 8 1.6%
Target Dist¢lbution Center 621 5 1.4% 831 7 1.5%
Selmat 505 & 1.1%
City of Alzany 402 7 0.9% 333 g 0.8%
Oregen Freeze Dry 400 8 0.9% 200 10
Watlonal Frozen Fooda <l B 0.7%
Assurant Solutions 00 10 0.7%
Weyarhauser Co. 652 & 1.6%
3ecrgla-PactlciGP 530 8 1.2%
Smoke-Craft 240 10 0.7%
Tatals 8.7% 9.68%
44,140 42,550

Numbst of people smployed In Linn County

Sourge: Albany Area Chamber of Cemmerge: and State of Oregon Emplayment Departmant :Benton/Linn Labor Trantds
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Lihn County

Employass by Functlon

Full time equivalent amployees as of June 30, 2018

2016 2015 2014 2013 20312 2011 2H0 2008 200B 2007

Fungtion

Community Development 83 53 13 65 67 71 89 85 71 72
Genoral Adminiatration 42 39 42 42 In 42 42 43 41 45
Health Servicas 208 180 178 178 134 187 180 171 174 161
Highways and Streets 62 67 15 73 76 85 84 84 76 76
Local Government Sarvice 40 26 M 31 a0 a3 38 40 41 41
Publlc Safety 242 245 232 233 231 258 261 278 272 286
Total 647 a30 622 622 624 678 674 &84 875 a1

Note: The Full time equivalent for 2007 is based upon catculations of FTE smployees paid durlng the pericd for
actual hours worked. Prior years was based upon employse count.

Information provided by the Linn County payroll departmant

22



Linn County

Operaling Indlcators by Funcilon
Last Ten Flecal Year

FiacalYoar

Functlen 2016 W1k 2014 2013 2092 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Sharilt

Jall Bockings A523 B128 6322 B,144 B, 208 5334 8,574 7088 7423 7778
Highweys and siresls

Road surfaca Improvarmants imiles) 5893 49.45 k¥ &0 44 &2 &5 &7 48 a0
Parks

Plcnlc ahaltar rantals 200 22% 212 168 260 180 211 170 168 T
Clark's Ollice

Docurants recordad 23883 20442 78 26,758 R EL 24,984 27544 28,028 24214 40230

Marrlage Licenass isaued (B[] B3s 49 o2 BT3 744 E23 BB &25 B42

Reglaterad Voters BE20Z 64284 B2508 83,822 60,738 50,785 56,755 &1,807 58,638 57 460
Planning

BulldIng permite 1484 1332 1353 1,228 1.123 1,186 1,160 1,587 1,794 1,688

Coniract Glthas T 548 497 428 a4 Je4 402 e H 686 328

Efscirica! parmiis 1631 1505 1335 1312 1,235 1,190 1,342 1,616 2,187 2,268

Planning parmis Ta7 842 670 313 5ig 500 Lx14 B2 i} 1,212
Health

Alcohoi and Drug cllams 950 ana TE3 740 230 857 BAT 855 776 a3

Devalopmentally Dlaabled cllsnts 202 776 842 47 738 24 FI7 B35 G20 Be

Environmental Health service contacts 1648 1842 2647 2,460 2,143 2822 2483 2 515 3,126 2 850

Marital Health cllents BE4T ahae 4273 4 882 3857 4773 2802 4,487 4084 3,840

Fublic Heaith 15695 15867 13758 12 572 13,261 13,085 13,147 .73 aa07 6,514

Women, Infants, and children cllanis BE34 5858 8214 6,052 8,521 gA414 6,285 5,849 5,780 5,780
Falrgrounds

Willamette bullding (hours of use) Ba42 a176 55450 EEM £ 200 6,198 4 A5G 1,718 2,206 1,801

Calapaoin Areng (hours of use) 1826 1845 2042 1918 1,895 1,748 2,078 2,772 2826 2475

Santiam canter (houm of use) 1503 1373 1145 1,203 1215 1,584 1,386 1,781 2,558 1,507

Cascade livesteck bullding (houres of uae) Al24 1107 3703 3,400 3838 1500 2,805 1,507 1474 1,383

Hote: new schedule, ten year trand infarmatlen not yet avallakla

Infarmation providad by Linn County #lectad offlclsls and dapartment managers.
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Linn Gounty
Capltal Asgat Statfatles by Functlon
Laat Ten Flscal Yoars

Function 2016 2016 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2008 2004 2007
Publlc Saleiy
Police:

Stationz B 7 7 7 7 7 ¥ 7 T 7

Palral Urilz 55 1:17) 55 54 B5 53 h4 63 g2 g1

Pollce servica degs 1 i 1 1 1 1 3 4 4 4
Cullure end racrealion

Parky acrasge 1384 1384 1364 1384 1360 13640 1380 1200 1202 1202

Farkg 34 24 24 23 23 22 22 22 18 17

Picnic: shaltars 13 13 13 2 13 i3 13 13 12 10
Qaneral farvicas

Motar pasl vehlclas 4 T8 Fi: ) az B0 g3 83 a3 a0
Reoada

Al Public Roads { Includes ksl access (milea} 1158 1153 1153 1163 1153 1153 1154 1,148 1,144 1,148

Bridges 338 358 36 320 329 2% 328 329 329 2

Note: naw schedulz, tan yaar rend Infamtation not yat avalisble

Informalion provided by Linn County elactad ofilclals and daparimant managers.
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LINN COUNTY, OREGON
Goneral Governmant Expendiuras by Functlon
Laat Ten Flacal Years

Portland,
Cragon
Loeal Highways Consumer
Fizcal Gonerat  Governmant  Public Haalth Community and Capital IndimctGos  Debt Index {L}] Par
Year Adminiatratlor Services Safoty Services  Devalopment Strents Education Dutlay Allocatlen  Service Totals  {{902-84) Capita
2006.2007 8034501 3312232 26450686 19023235 T.052851 15832158 2,928,087 - - Gi8827 B35B2877 2067 77185
Z007-2008 5025085 2389549 27627044 15343838 G543 544 11604208 2,851,176 - - §3,750 V2538894 2148 @7EED
2008-2000 5,399,975 2557132 30267454 16,386,585 7.769.367 15805243 2,875,530 - -  G87T.567 PB3IR4BETS Z1E3  TERIT
2009-2010 5759674 2418545 31,808,080 17419186 7.904443 16266638 28687222 - - 07837 DP5652618 2175 T69lB
2010-2041 5697 524 3341122 30085440 18822560 1) 15,863,245 15,373,608 2,320,828 - B - 75521080 2141 655488
2011-2012 £ E57.757 33352074 3001422 20,174,727 6224219 13958808 1,314,484 - - - BR1BEGESZ 2260 €95.90
2012-2013 5511,126 3,191,808 20155216 20,043,224 6,467,929 6,808,557 1405596 474,212 1,710,610 268,700 B2281.9687 2%.8 68718
20132014 5,081,149 3168212 ©0088,155 20,626,039 4,385,085 BAGFA424  15999.835 10,241,664 1736315 270447 B7.885,335 2336 74062
20442016 5076827 3424855 20,546,251 24,806,327 6,764,848 10,743,586 1,733,163 6,703,084 1,733451 248021 21735438 2427 763,35
2055-2016 6312 B85 3308064 35345739 24,643,028 7 E40885 11691535 1538718 6177045 1,86691% 210,770 008356378 2475 "1z

Nota: Includes expenditures of the General, Specfal Revenus, Debt Service, and Capifal Profecis Funds,
Popuiation hased upon the 2015 center for Popuiaiion Research ard Cansus af Portfand State Unlversity estinates for Linn County 120,860
1} 2010-2011 Community Development fgure includes a ane Hima $12 mifion expanse and fransfor fo the State of Oregon refated fo the constriction of @

Vaferns Hospital in Labanon, Oragon




LIJNN COLNTY THEEHLE; 4014 A

SCHEDULE OF INSURANGE AND FIDELITY BOND COVERAGES
Endirnyg Juna 30, 2016
Insuranca Coveregs 15-18 /Excelfaudil

POLICY AMI OF EOLICY PERIOD
NUMBER COMPANY ERAGE COVERAG FRCM FLv)
2833r SAIF Corporation Standard workers' compeneation and % 500,000 TH201s  THi20NE

employers’ liability policy

Bowdily injury by aceldent - each accldent $ 500,000
Bodily injury by dlsease - each employee $ 500,000
15LLING CityiGounty Insurance Services Comprehensive general liakility $ 15000000 THiQ1s  FHRMe
' {provides comprehensive general and  Automebile
automotive liaklity coverags Bodily {mjury
up to $5,000,00¢ an each lype Property Damage
of coverage, subject to policy Combined single limit
conditions and coantingent on
sufficiant menles being
availabla in Sel-Insured Loss
Funds). %15 000,000 Ganaral
Aggregate
15APDLING  CibyfCounty Insurance Senvices Comprehansive general liability $ £0,000 A0S TM20M6
Autpmobile - Seli-tnsured Loss Funds 2 50,000 TH201s  TH2016
16BLING CitytGounty Insurance Services All bailers end machingry Equipmant breakdawn $ 100,000,000 THI20ME  THZMME
{Rhodes-¥Warden Ins, Ine.) f$10,000 Deduchibls)
16PLING City/County Insurance Services All praperty coverage Basic Coverage §1485620,705 THfE018  FH2ne
{Rhodes-Warden Ing, Ing.) Real and Parsongl Inland Maring {irel Wil covnmpe]
{$10,000 Cadustible] Restoration/Reproduction of 160,000
books, racords, eto.
Electronic Data Restoration/ 250,000
Reprodciion
{Off Premlses 100,000
Propadty [n Transit 150,000
Pollution Clean-up 25,000
Earhquaks £,000,000
Flood 5,000,004}
Revenue and Renlal Valus 300,000
Extra Expanse and Rental valug 300,000
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LINN COUNTY LB L4 FM
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE AND FIDELITY BOND COVERAGES
Ending -June 30, 216
Ingwranga Covarage 15-18 MExcalaudit
POLICY ANT OF PQLICY PERIOD
NUMBER co NY COVERAGE COVERAGE FRGM 1o
15PLING City/Counly Insurance Services All propery coverage
{Rhodee-Yarden Ins, Inc.) Real and Perscnal Hired, Rantad, or Bomowed 5 180,000 M5 2016
Continuad {510,000 Daductible) Equipment
Crime Coverage 50,000
Pallce Dogs 15,000
Peraonal Proparty at 15,000
Linscheduled Locations
Peraonai Property of 18,000
Employsss or Voluntaers
Unzscheduled Flne Ars 100,000
Miscellanecus Coverags 50,000
15CLING Rhodes-Warden Ins., Ing Excess Crime Coverage Employee Theit g 500,000 THIZ01E  FH2016
{Matlonal Union Fire Isurance {Deductible $10,000% Forgery or Alfercalion 500,000
Company of Pitts, PA} Inside Pramlaes-theft of Manay 500,000
& Securilies
Ingfcle Premises-Robbery, 500,000
Safe Burglary, Other
Cutside the Pramlises £{0,000
Computer Fraud £00,000
Monay Orders & Countarfeit £00,000
Paper Gurrency
Funds Transfar Fraug 500,000
Faithful Performance of Duty 500,000

{Subjact to #1,000 Dedustiie}
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PAULY, ROGERS, AND Co., P.C.

12700 $W 72" Ave. Tigard, OR 97223
(5031 620-2632 (503} 684-7523 FAX
www.paulyrogorsandcocpas.com

F CER TR e L R e L L AL

Moventber 9, 2015

Independent Auditors’ Reppr{ Required

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Linn County, Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 9, 2016. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing siandards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government A uditing

Standards.

Compliance

As part of oblaining reasonable assurance sbout whether the Linn County, Oregon’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statues as specilfed in Cregon
Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Stendards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporalions, noncompliance with which could
have = direct and material effect on the deiermination of financial statements amounts, However, praviding an opinion on compliance wilh those provisions was
not zn objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opition.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the
following:

Deposit of public funds with financial institutlons (ORS Chapter 293)
Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.

Budgets tegally required (ORS Chapter 294).

Insurance and fidelity bonds in foree or requlred by law.

Programs funded from outslle sources.

Highway revenues nsed for public highways, roads, and streets.
Anthorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).

Public contracts and purchaslng (ORS Chapters 2794, 2798, 279C).
Schedule of Accountability of Elected Officials

" & &% % % % & ¥ @

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Linn County, Oregon was not in substantial compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the pravisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000
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through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, except fer the following:
1. We noted budget overexpenditures as noted on page 31 of the notes.

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit, we considered internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpos: of
expressing aur opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Litm County, Oregon’s intermal
control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express en opinion on the effectiveness of the Linn County, Oregon’s internal control over financial

reporting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Boatd of Commissioncrs and management and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

M)WJ@W (A

Tara M. Kamp, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO,, P.C.
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PAULY, Racers, AND Co,, F.C,

12700 §W 72™ Ave. Tigard, OR 97223
(503) 620-2632 (503) 684-7523 FAX
wvw.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

F  TEREE T FUE L RO NI

November 9, 2016

To the Board of County Commissioners
Linn County, Oregon
Albany, Oregon

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPCRT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GO VERNMENT AUVDITING STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standatds applicable to financial audits
comtained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptraller Generai of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
apgregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the ageregate remaining fund information of Linn County, Oregon as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to ihe financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, and have issued our report

thereon dated November 9, 2016.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and petforming our audit of the financial statements, we consideted the internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to defermine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing ovr opiniens on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an apinion on the effecliveness of internal control. Accordingly, we do net express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal condrol.

A deficiency in Internal control exists whon the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing
iheir assigned Functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A materiaf weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
‘nternal control, such that there is & reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected

on a timely basis.
A significant deficlency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
meril attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was nol designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Civen these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal cotileol that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that havo not been identificd.
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Compliance and Other Matiers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncempliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determinalion of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinien. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncempliance or other matters that are required to be reported ander Government

Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purposs of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the infernal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose,

Tara M. Kamp, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
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PavLy, ROGERS, AND Con, P.C.

12700 8W 72™ Avo. Tigard, OR 97223
{503) 620-2632 (503) 684-7523 FAX
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Movember 9, 2016

Ta the Board of County Commissioners
Linn County, Oregon
Albany, Oregon

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJCR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Report o Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Linn County, Oregon’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that conld have a
direct and mmaterial effect on each of the major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016, The major federal programs arc idenfified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with tiic requirements of Jaws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to ¢xprass an opinion on compliance for each of the major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requiremetils
referred 1o ahove. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with audiling standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial avdits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adminisirative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidanee). Those
gtandards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit {o obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements refarred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occnrred. An audit includes examining, on 2 test
basis, evidence aboul compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Wo believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program, However, our andit does not provide a legal
detcrmination of compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Litn County, Oregon, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that counld have a direct and
material effcet on each of its major federal programs for the year ended hme 30, 2016.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above, In plarning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that equld have a direct
and matenal effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and repert on internal control over cempliance in accordance with the Uniferm Guidance, bul
not for the purpose of expressing an opinien on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an apinion on the

elfectiveness of internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal eontrof over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, inthe
normal course of performing lheir assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncom pliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal prograin
on a timely basis. A material weokness in internad control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will net be prevented, ot
detected and corrected, on a timely basis, A signifieant deflelency in infernal conirel over complignee is a deficiency, or a combinatien of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe fhan a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet impartant enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might he material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
coniro! over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. Howover, material weakiesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal comirol aver compliance and the results of
thal testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

mﬁ?&f (A

Tara M. Kamp, CPA
PAULY, ROGERS ANDCO., P.C
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LINN COUNTY, OREGON
ALBANY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditors’ report issued
Internal contral over financial reperting:

Material weakness(cs) identified?

Signiticant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered

0 be material weaknesses?
MNoncompliance te financial stabements noted?
Any GAGAS audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
In accordance with section 515(d)(2) of the Uniform Guidance?
FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal contral over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identilied?

Significant deficiency(s) indentified that are not considered
10 he material weaknesses?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:

111

Unrnodilied
[ves B4 no
nene
(] yes reported
] yes 4 no
[ yes X no
] yes B no
O yes B4 none reported
Unmodified



Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
wilh section 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance? 1 yes no

IDENTIFICA N OF MAJOR PROGI

CFDA NUMBER NAME OF FEDERAL FROGRAM CIUSTER
10.663 Schaols and Roads — Grants to Counties
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000

B yes no
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Y g

SECTTON Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FININNGS

NOME

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COBTS

NONE
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

1. BAS]S OF PRESENTATICHN

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes federal grant activity under programs of the federal government. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected porlion of the operations, it is nof
intended to and does not present the net position, changes it net position, or cash flows of the entity,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expendilvres reported on the schedule are reported on the modified acerual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost prineiples
cantained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.
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LINN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Mote 1. General

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of all federal financial assistance programs of the
Linn County, Oregon,

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity: The reporting entity is fully described in Note 1 fo the County’s basic financial stalements. The schedule includes all
federal financial assistance programs administered by the County for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Basis of Presentation: The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Federal Financial Assistance: Pursuant to the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133, federal financial assistance is defined as
assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of grants, contracts, cooperalive agreements, loans,
loan guarantecs, property, intcrest subsidies, insurance or direct appropriations. Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance,
including federal surplus property, is included in federal financial assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule, if applicable.
Federal financial assistance docs not include direct federal cash assistance to individuals, Solicited contracts between the stale and
federal government for which the federal government pracutes tangible goods or services ate not considered to be federal financial

assisiance.

Major Programs: The Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133 establish criteria to be used in defining major federal financial
assistance programs. Major programs for the Counly are those programs selected for testing by the auditor using a risk-assessment
model, as well as certain minimum expenditure requirements, as outlined in A-133. Programs with similar requirements may be

grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.

Revenue Recognition: The receipt and expenditure of federal awards are accounted for under the modified accrual method of
accounting. Revenues are recorded as received in cash or when measurable and available. Expenditures atc recorded when the liability

is incurred.



SCHEDULE OF EXPFENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended Junc 30, 2016

F CirantorTass-! Crantor/Program |
Drepariment of Agnicullun:

LINN COUNTY

Food and Nutvition Service
Passed fhrough Gregow Deportorent of Edvcation:
School Break{asl Frogram
Mational Linch Program
National Lunch Pregram -Food Donations for Commadilies
Forest Servite
Depaviment af Human Resonrces Health Division:
Special Supplemental Nuttiion Pragran for Women, Infants, and Children
Womer, Infants, snd Children Bregst Feeding Perfonnance Bonue
Lrapariment of ddrivisteative Services:
Schools and Reads — Grants Lo State
Federal Forest PL 106-393 Title I
Fredera] Forest Title I
Federal Foresl PL 116-343 Title ITT
Federal Forcsl FL 110-343 Title IIT
Total Department of A gricalture

Department of the Interior

Burceu of Land Menapement
Divect Programs:
0 & C Chrant
Buteau of Land Management PL 106-252 Tite I
Paymetits in Licn of Taxes
Fish and Wildlife Service
FPussed Brongh Qregon Marine Soard.
Cloan Vessal Act

Tatal Deparment of the Intetim

(1) - major progmm

114

Fedeml
CFDA Pass thm Pazs thiu
Humber  Hntity Number ___ Expenditures to aub meipients
10.553 HNA b 7,560 5
10555 NA 13,811
10,585 NA 13,346
10.5%7  FIT600 660,253
10.578  F37009 558
10665 99999 AGRAGS 2,624 955 (1} 874,985 (1}
10665  9990% AGRA63 17.062 (1)
10665 9599% AGRAGS 363,155 (1)
1665 99995 AGRAGS 114,500 (1}
3,815,200 374 985

inGes 99999 AGRG6S 909,814 (1)
15226 NA 220,100
15616 NA 15,000

b 1,144,914 b -




SCHEDULE OF BEXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS {Continued)

Federal GraptorTass-throligh i m Lt}
Depariment of Jushice

Offce of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
Pazsed throngh Oregon Departwent of Jusifce:

Tuvenile Accountability Incentive Bleck Granis
Bureau of Justlee Assistance
Passed through of Oregon Deparimant of Human Revenrces Mental Healttr Division:
Passed througl Gregon Depavinent of fustice:
QfiTee of Victims of Crime

Crite Vieim Assstance

Total Depariment of Justice

Department of Transportation

Federal Highway Adminiztration
Possed dhrough Oregon Deparinient af Transportation:
Highway Planning and Conatruction
Granls [or Other than Urbanized Arcas
Capital Asgistanco Program for Elderly Peraons
Naliona! Priarity Salety Propram
Tutal Depeviment of Transporiation

Emvimnmental Proleclion Agency

Offtoe of Waber
Passed through Oregon Depornent of Human Resonvees Heafth Diviston:

State Public Water Systern Supsrvision
Total Envivanmental Protection Agency

11%

Fedeml
CEDA

HNumler

16.523

16.575

20.205
20Q.509
20513
20618

66.432

HA

HA

HOOOA12 09

Paas thru
Hxpenditures to sub recipicnis
b 437
51916
52,353 -
1,768416
103,807
236,939
226
1,768,642 340,746
25,568
$ 25,568 -




S¢HEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEPERAL AWARDS {Continued)

Dicpartment of Health and Human Services

Ofiice of Popuilation Affairs

Family Pleaning - Servicea
Adminisiration Eor- Ch_nildreu and Faniilics

Promuting Safc and Stable Famities

Centers [or Diseaze Control
Puassed firongh CGregon Department of Hteman Resoiirces Health Division:

Biotcrronsm preperedncss & response

EBONY paymcnolz
Sodium Reduclion in Communities

Heath Resources and Services Administration
TB Control and AIDDS

1% Care Formula Cronts

Aszzistances Progean for Chronie Dikease Provention
Matemnal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the Statea
Substance Abuse am] Mental Health Services Administration

Passed through Oregon Department of ITiman Resources Mental Health Division:

Block Chrants for Comnunity MMental TTealth Scrvices
Hlock Granls Lot Prevenfion and Treafment of Subalance Abusc

Tutal Depaviment of Health and Humen Seyvices

Depattiment of Hometand Security

Federal Emergency Management Agency

Passed throngh Oregon State Police!
Boating Safety Pinancial Assistance
Harard Mitigalion Grant Program

Esmergency Management Performanes Cheants
Total Department of Homeland Securvity

Total grant amounts espended or piassed thru

116

Tederal

CFDA
Humber

93.217

03.556

Q3062
o304
o3 B2

593118

893.917

53.945
93.0%4

93.558
93.95%

91.012
91036

97.042

Expendilures to gub Tecipicnls

FRICE FFIIPAIGOO02Z04 8 65,160 b
HA 94,163
NA 53,222
A 24,519
1058 DPM4%41 o1 75,793
sz CCUDNNso4 28 374
XOTHADQOD? 141,143
1USEDFD04333 41,180
3 i 27389
MNA 83,954
MNA 305275

233,183 -
NA 4,045
NA 269,853
NA 133,281

443,199 -

b 8,203,064 b 1215731

Pass thra




This Report is Intended to Promote the
Best Possible Management of Public Resources

You are welcome to keep this copy if it is useful to you.
I you no longer need this copy, you are encouraged Lo vefurn it to:

County Commissioners’ Office
Linn County Courthouse, Root 201
P.Q, Bex 100
Albany, OR, 97321

We care for the County and the United States of America



